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ln February 2013, HI-ll adopted an equity incentive plan under which it could grant options to purchase up to 250 shares 
of its common stock to lfl-Il employees, directors and consuJtants ("HI-D Stock Plan"), In February and March 2013, HHI 
granted to consultants and employees options, with a five year term, to purchase 140 shares offfill common stock at an 
exercise price of$1,000 per share including an option to purchase 50 shares of HHI common stock granted to the Company's 
then Executive Chairman. These option grants were subject to a combination of performance and time-based vesting, and also 
contained certain anti-dilution adjustment rights, as well as repurchase rights and first refusal rights in favor of JU-n. In August 
2013, in connection with the proposed Merger, options on 100 shares (including the 50 shares held by the Company's former 
Executive Chamnan) were amended to narrow certain perfonnance vesting conditions and provided that the options on such 
I 00 shares would terminate upon the closing of the Merger which was consununated on January 15, 2014. At December 3 I , 
2013 options to purchase 17.50 shares issued to consultants had vested and were exercisable. 

The Company used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to detennine the estimated fair value of each option while 
outstanding using a weighted average volatility of72%, a weighted average risk-free interest rate of0.68%, and expected 
terms of 5 years. The Company recorded $3,018 as option expense related to the HHl options for the three months ended 
December 31, 2013 that is included in the consolidated share-based compensation expenses summarized above. 

For additional information with respect to HHI, see Note U- "Subsequent Events". 

8. Stockholders' Equity 

Summary 
The following table summarizes stockholders' equity activity for the three months ended December 31, 2013: 

Additional Total 
Common Stock Paid-ln Accumulated Stockholders' 

Sha res Amount Ca[!ltal Deficit Egui!): 
Balance at September 30, 2013 6,835,321 $ 6,835 $ 17,383,196 $ {14,303,015) $ 3,087,016 

Sales of common shares at $14.00 
per share, net of issuance costs 
of$20,668 364,286 364 5,078,972 5,079,336 

Common shares issued upon 
exercise of stock options for 
cash 29,500 30 91,320 91 ,350 

Common shares issued upon 
cashless exercise of warrants 39,515 40 (40) 

Share-based compensation expense 512,350 512,350 
Net loss for the period {2, 754,310) {2, 754210) 

Balance at December 31, 2013 7,268,622 $ 7,269 $ 23,065,798 $ {17,057,325) $ 6,015,742 

In November 2013 the Company obtained net proceeds of$5,079,336 from the registered direct sale of 364,286 shares of 
common stock pursuant to the Company's "shelf' registration statement. 
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Stock Purchase Warrants 
The following table summarizes information on watTant activity during the three months ended December 31, 20 13: 

Shares purchasable under outstanding warrants at October I, 20 13 
Stock purchase warrants issued 
Stock purchase warrants exercised 
Shares purchasable under outstanding warrants at December 31, 2013 

NumbeJ' 
137,345 

(66,471) 
70,874 

Average 
Purchase Price 

Per Shure 
$5.45 

$5.63 

$5.28 

During the three months ended December 3 1, 2013, a total of 66,471 warrants were converted pursuant to cashless net 
exercise features, re.sulting in the issuance of39,515 shares of common stock. 

Al Dece.nl>er 31, 2013 the Company bad the following share warrants outstanding exercisable for 70,874 shares of 
common stock at an average exercise price of $5.28 per share: 

Description 
Stock Purchase Warrants (I) 
Stock Purchase Wammts 
Stock Purchase Warrants 

Number of 
Common Shares 

20,000 
46,674 
4,200 

Exercise Price 
Per Share 

$3.75 
$5.625 
$8.720 

Expiration Date 
February 22, 2016 
March 21,2017 
June30,2018 

(1) warrants held by an entity affiliated with the Company' s former Otief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary, 
James A. Barnes. 

Subsequent to December 31, 2013, a total of 18,774 warrants exercisable at $5.625 per common share were converted 
pursuant to a cashless net exercise feature resulting in the issuance of 1 I, 725 shares of common stock. 

9. Commitments and Contingencies 

Bank and Other Cash EQuivalent Deposits in Excess of FDIC Insurance L imits 
The Company maintains cash and cash equivalent accounts with Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC'') insured 

financial institutions. Certain of the Company's accounts are insured liP to $250,000 by the FDIC. The Company's exposure 
for amounts in excess of FDIC insured limits at December 31, 2013 was approximately $4.4 million. The Company has not 
experienced any losses in such accounts. 

Facility Leases 
The Company is committed on a facility lease in Poway, CaJifomia and the remaining future annual minimum lease 

payment obligation under the lease is $57,205 for the nine months ended September 30, 20 14 and $80,505 for the year ending 
September 30,201 5. 

Employment Agreement 
In April 2012 the Company entered into a five-year employment agreement with its the11 Executive Chairman, Kenneth F. 

Potashner. Under the terms of the employment agreement, the Company is obligated to pay salary continuation severance 
equal to one year of his annual base salary plus targeted bonus if his employmeJtt is terminated without cause. 

For additional information wi.th respect to Mr. Potashner's employment agreement, see Note 12 - "Subsequent Events". 

14 

Exhibit Page Number 404 

https://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgat/data/ 1493761/0001 0 1968714000429/paramet:ric_l Oq-... 6/17/2014 



 
PA488

Bonus Plan 

Parametric Sound Corporation 
Notes ro interim Coodeosed Consolidated Fin~mcial Statements 

(unaudited) 
December 31, 2013 (prior to the Merger with Turtle Beach) 

Page 18 of32 

On February 2 1.2013, the Company adopted a cash bonus plan for the period January I, 2013 to December 31,2013, 
pursuant to which each of the Company's executive officers and certain other officers and consultants designated by the Board 
of Directors were eligible to receive a target bonus equal to a percentage of the executive officer's or other individual's 
annualized base compensation if applicable perfom1ance objectives were met. No such performance objectives were met under 
the plan at December 3 1. 20 13. 

In August 2013, in connection with the Merger, and as authorized under the cash bonus plan, 1he B oard of Directors 
approved, for its three executive officers, the closing ofthe Merger as a stand-alone performance objective eligible for the 
maximum bonus payout for 2013 aggregating $453,000. The Company was also obligated to a consultant for a payment of 
$250,000 upon closing which included a bonus for business development activities in 2013. No amounts were recorded as an 
expense or obligation for the period ended December 31, 2013 as the Merger was n ot completed until January I 5, 20 I 4. 

The bonuses are merger transaction costs that will be expensed in the period incurred (first calendar quarter of 2014). 

Consulting B onus 
During the quarter ended December 31, 201 3 the Company made an application for F'DA clearance of its l:ISS product as 

a medical device for those with hearing loss. Should this application be cleared tho Company is obligated for a $250,000 bonus 
pursuant to a consulting agreement with an outside medical team engaged to assist and advise on medical applications ofl:ISS 
technology, 

Merger Fees 
For additional information with respect fees committed related to the Merger, see Note 12-"Subsequent Events". 

Shareholder Litigation 
On August 8, 2013, James Harrison, Jr., a purported stockholder of the Company, filed a class action lawsuit in the 

Superior Court California, County of San Diego, under the caption Harrison v. Parametric Sound Corp., naming the 
Company, the Company's directors, Paris Acquisition Corp. (a wholly-owned subsidiary ofthe Company) and Turtle Beach as 
defendants. Several other substantially similar stockholder class action complaints were filed in the same cowi in August 
2013. In August and September 2013, several substantially similar stockholder class action complaints were filed in the 
Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada. All complaints related to the same events and transactions regarding the 
Merger, allege breaches of fiduciary duty and aiding and abetting breaches of fiduciary duty in connection therewith, sought 
class action status, and demanded an order enjoining the Merger and unspecified reforms, actions and disclosures. On 
September 10, 2013, the California Superior Court consolidated all related cases before it under the caption In re Parametric 
Sound Corp. Shareholder Litigation, Case No. 37-2013-00061953-CU-BT-CfL (the "California Action"). On September 23, 
2013, the Nevada Dis trict Court consolidated all related cases before it under the caption In re Parametric Sound Corp. 
Shareholders' Litigatiofl, Lead Case No. A-13-686890-B, Dep't XI (the ''Nevada State Court Action"). 

Following the Company 's filing of a preliminary proxy statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") 
on November 4, 2013, amended consolidated complaints were filed on November 14, 2013 in the Nevada State Court Action 
and on November 19, 2013 in the California Action. These amended complaints reiterated the same claims and sought the 
same relief as asserted and sought in the original complaints. On November 20,2013, Sbana Vasek, a purported shareholder of 
the Company, ftled a class action lawsuit in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada, under the caption Vasek 
v. Parametric Sound Corp., Case No. 2:13-cv-02148-JAD-OWF, naming the same defendants, asserting substantially the same 
allegations and seeking substantially the same relief as asserted and sought in the above-referenced consolidated action 
pending in Nevada state court. In addition to asserting substantiaUy the same claims for breach of fiduciary duty and aiding 
and abetting as asserted in the above-referenced consolidated action pending in Nevada state court, the plaintiff in the federal 
court action asserts a claim for violations of Sections 14{a) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and SEC Rule 
14a-9. The plaintiff in Vasek has not yet served any of the defendants with process. 
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On December 3, 201 3, the Company fLied its definitive proxy statement with the SEC. On 01;:\;crnbcr 5, 2013, the 
Parametric defendants filed a demurrer to the amended complaint in the California Action and moved to stay the California 
Action in favor of the Nevada State Coutt Action. The hearing on those motions is scheduled for September 19, 2014. On 
December 10, 2013, the Parametric defendants moved to dismiss the amended complaint In the Nevada State Court 
Action. The hearing on that motion was originally scheduled for January 9, 2014, but· was rescheduled to pem1it tJ1e plaintiffs 
to file a second amended complaint. 

Between November 20, 2013 and December 17, 2013, the parties in both the California Action and ilieNevada State 
Court Action engaged in limited expedited discovery in advance of expected motions for preliminary injUJlctions ofthe special 
meeting of stockholders that was ultimately scheduled for December 27, 2013. Or1 December 11, 2013, plaintiffs in the 
Nevada State CoU!t action filed a motion for a preliminary injunction. On December 13, 2013, the judge in the Nevada State 
Court Action agreed to allow the plaintiffs in the California Action to participate in the briefing and hearing on the motion for 
a preliminary injunction in the Nevada State Court Action. On December 18, 2013, plaintiffs in both actions filed 
supplemental papers in support of the motion for a preliminary injunction. On December 23, 2013, defendants filed papers in 
opposition to the motion for a preliminary injunction. TI1e hearing on the prel.iminary injunction motion was held on 
December 26,2013. In a bench judgment at the conclusion of the bearing, the Cowt denied plaintiffs' motion for a preliminary 
injUJlction, allowing the special meeting of stockholders to proceed as scheduled on December 27,2013 and on that date the 
Company's stockholders approved the proposal to issue shares of common stock in connection with the Merger and approved 
the con-esponding change of control and related matters. 

On January 27, 2014, the plaintiffs in the Nevada State Action filed a second amended complaint, which asserts virtually 
identical claims against the same defendants based on essentially the same factual allegations as the amended complaint. TI1e 
second amended complaint seeks to rescind the transaction or alternatively seeks unspecified monetary dan1ages. Defendants 
intend to move to dismiss the second amended complaint, but their time for responding has not yet expired. 

The Company is unable to predict the outcome of the lawsuits and the possible loss or range of loss, if any, associated 
with their resolution or any potential effect the lawsuits may have on the Company's operations. Depending on the outcome 
or resolution of these lawsuits, they could have a material adverse effect on the Company's operations, including its financial 
condition, results of operations, or cash flows. No amoUJlts have been recorded or accrued related to these lawsuits as of 
December 31, 2013 except for legal fees and costs included in business transaction expenses. Such legal fees and costs totaled 
$845,244 for the three months ended December 31, 2013 net of $453,153 recoverable from the Company's D&O insurance 
carrier. The Company's legal accounts payable at December 31, 2013 was also offset by the $453,153 payable directly to legal 
firms by the D&O insurance carrier. 

Guarantees and Indemnifications 
The Company's officers and directors al'e entitled to indemnification as to personal liability as provided by the Nevada 

Revised Statutes, the Company's articles of incorporation and bylaws and by indemni·ficalion agreements with the Company. 
The Company may also undertake indemnification obligations in the ordinary cotu·se of business related to its products and the 
issuance of securities with customers, investors, vendors and business parties. The Company is unable to estimate with any 
reasonable accuracy the liability that may be incurred pursuant to any such indemnification obligations now or in the futtu·e. 
Because of the uncertainty surrotmding these circumstances, the Company's curre11t o•· future indemnification obligations 
could range from immaterial to having a material adverse impact on its financial position and its ability to continue in the 
ordinary course of business. The Company bas no liabilities recorded for such indemnities. 

10. Related Party Transactions 

In April2013, as ameuded on July 23,2013 the Company granted an exclusive, worldwide, royalty-bearing license to use 
certain HHS-related intellectual property to its wholly-owned subsidiary HHl. 

See Notes 7, 8, 9 and 12 for additional related party transactions and information. 

16 

Exhibit Page Number 406 

https://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/1493761 /0001 0 1968714000429/parametric _1 Oq-... 6/17/2014 



 
PA490

Parametlic Sound Corporation 
Notes to fnterim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

(u_naudited) 
December 31, 2013 (prior to the Merger witb Turtle Beach) 

11. Major Customers a nd Suppliers 

Major Customers 

Page 20 of32 

For the three months ended December 31, 2013, revenues from two customers accOlmted for 22% and 12% of total 
revenues. No other single customer represented more than 10% oftotal revenues. For the three months ended December 31, 
2012, revenues from two customers accounted for SO% and IS% of total revenues. No other single customer represented more 
than 10% of total revenues. At December 31,2013, accounts receivable from one customer accounted for 86% oftotal 
accounts receivable. 

Suppliers 
The Company has a number of components and sub-assemblies produced by outside suppliers, some ofwhich are sourced 

from a single supplier, which can magnify the risk of shortages and decrease the Company's ability to negotiate with suppliers 
on the basis of price. In particular, the Company depends on its HSS piezo-film supplier to provide expertise and materials 
used in the Company's proprietary HSS emitters. If supplier shortages occur, or quality problems arise, then production 
schedules could be significantly delayed or costs significantly increased, which could in tum have a material adverse effect on 
the Company's financial condition, results of operation and cash flows. 

At December 31, 2013, the Company was committed for approximately $260,000 for future inventory deliveries that are 
generally subject to modification or rescheduling in the normal course of business. At December 31, 2013 the Company had 
$112,000 of deposits wrth suppliers related to inventory purchases. 

12. Subsequent Events 

Merger with Turtle Beach 
On January 15,2014, the Company completed the merger(the "Merger") of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Paris 

Acquisition Corp., a D elaware corporation ("Merger Sub"), with and into VTB Holdings, Jnc., a Delaware corporation 
("Turtle Beach"), in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 5, 2013 
among the Company, Turtle Beach and Merger Sub (the "Merger Agreement"). As a result of the Merger, Turtle Beach, the 
surviving entity in the Merger, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 

ln connection with the Merger, the Company issued to the former holders of Turtle Beach common stock and Series A 
Preferred Stock an aggregate of30,227, 100 shares of Company common stock, par va.lue $0.00 I per share. The number of 
shares of common stock issued was computed in accordance with the formula specified in the Merger Agreement using a Per 
Share Number (as defined in the Merger Agreement) of0.3S997. [n addition, in accordance with the tenns ofthe Merger 
Agreement, all then outstanding options to purchase shares ofThrtle Beach common stock were converted into options to 
purchase 3,960,783 shares of Company common stock and were assumed by the Company (the "Converted Options"). These 
newly issued shares of common stock, together with the Converted Options, represented approximately 80% of the total issued 
and outstanding shares of Company common stock, on a fully-diluted basis at the Merger date (January IS, 2014). 

The Company experienced a change in control because the former Turtle Beach securityholders owned approximately 
80% ofthe outstanding common stock of the Company immediately after the completion of the Merger. In addition, the pre­
Merger executive officers of the Company resigned effective at the completion of the Merger and were replaced by the 
executive officers ofThrtle Beach, and individuals identified by Turtle Beach were appointed to fill :five of the seven 
vacancies on the Company's board of directors immediately following completion ofthe Merger. Therefore, Turtle Beach is 
deemed to be the acquiring company for accounting purposes and the Merger is treated as a "reverse acquisition" under the 
acquisition method of accounting in accordance with GAAP. Accordingly the total purchase consideration of approximately 
$10 I million will be allocated to the Company's pre-rnerger tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities based on 
their respective fair values at the date of completion of the merger with any excess purchase consideration being recorded as 
goodwill. Turtle Beach's historical results of operations will replace the Company's previous historical results of operations 
for all periods prior to the merger. After completion of the merger, the results of operations of both combined companies will 
be included in the Company's consolidated financial statements. 
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Effective January 15, 2014, the Company changed its fiscal year end from September 30 to December 31 to correspond 
with the fiscal year end ofThrtle Beach and its subsidiaries. 

Upon completion of the Merger the Company became obligated to pay a contingent investment banking fee of $1,700,000 
less $25,000 previously paid and included in business transaction expenses. The investment banking fee is a merger 
transaction cost that will be expensed in !he period incurred (first calendar quarter of2014). 

Incentive and Option PJans 
On October 30, 20 l3 the Company adopted, and on December 27, 2013 the stockholders approved, the Parametric Sound 

Corporation Annual incentive Bonus Plan (''Incentive Bonus Plan") but the [ncentive Bonus Plan did not become effective 
until consummation of the Merger on January 15, 2014. The Incentive Bonus Plan will pennit incentive compensation bonus 
awards to be structured to qualify as ''performance-based'' compensation under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Also on January 15, 2014, the Company assumed the Turtle Beach 20 II Equity Iocentive Plan (the "VTB Plan") and the 
options previously granted thereunder. The options previously granted pursuant to the VTB Plan will continue to be subject to 
the terms of the VTB Plan and the applicable award agreements, provided that outstanding options granted under the VTB 
Plan are at January 15,2014 exercisable for 3,960,783 shares of Parametric common stock. Following the consummation of 
the merger, there will be no further awards granted under the VTB Plan. 

Credit Agreement 
On January 15, 2014, in connection with the consununation of the Merger, the Company and its subsidiaries entered into a 

Joinder Agreement, dated as ofJanuary 15,2014, between the Company and PNC Bank, National Association ("PNC"), as 
administrative agent, and a Guaranty Agreement. dated as of January 15, 2014, among the Company's subsidiaries and PNC 
(collectively the "Joinder and Guarantee") and became an obligor and guarantor under the Credit Agreement, dated as of 
August 22, 2012, as amended (the "Credit Agreement"), among Turtle Beach, PNC, as administrative agent for the lenders, 
and the lenders party thereto. The Credit Agreement provides for term loans and a revolving line of credit (together, the 
"Credit Facility"). Tite amounts guaranteed under the Credit Agreement at January 15, 2014 were $7.5 million under the term 
loan and approximately $39.7 million under the revolving line of credit. 

HHJ Dissolution 
Following the Merger, on January 15,2014, HHI was dissolved and !he HHl Stock Plan terminated. Jn addition, the 

license the Company granted to HHI was terminated in connection with the dissolution of HHI on January 15, 2014, and no 
royalties were earned or paid during the license term. 

Employment Agreement 
Effective with the Merger on January 15, 2014, Mr. Potashner's Executive Chailman's position was terminated triggering 

a $350,000 salary continuation obligation, payable in twelve equal installments. Mr. Postashner continues to serve as a director 
of the Company post-merger. Mr. Potashner's employment agreement's change of control provision was also triggered by the 
Merger and accelerated the vesting of performance based options on 175,000 shares of common stock exercisable at $4.50 per 
share and acceleration of vesting oftime based options on 22,500 shares of common stock exercisable at $9.95 per share. 

The severance cost and the cost of option acceleration are merger transaction costs that will be expensed in the period 
incurred (first calendar quarter of2014). 

See Notes 7, 8 and 9 for additional subsequent event information. 
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Ucm l. Management's Discussion and Analysb ofFinnndal Condition and Results of Operations. 

On January 15,2014, as described elsewhere in this report, the Company merged wi.th a much larger company Turtle 
Beach, resulttug in a signit1canl change in the nature and scope of its operations. The financial statements and related 
discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations by management presented lll tlus report covers a three­
month period that ended prior to completion of the merger. Operating results for the three months ended Decembt r 31, 2013 
arc not indicative of results to be expected for the combined companies for any future interim period after the Merger. 

You should read the folluwing discussion and analysis in conjw1ction with the financial slatements and other financial 
information included elsewhere in this Qum·terly Report on Form 1 0-Q. The folluwing discussion may conlainfotward­
looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs. See "Cautionary Note Regarding F01ward-Looking Statement~ 
and Other lnformationH above. For additional context with which to understand our financial condition and results of 
operations, see the discussion and analysis included in Part 11, item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 1 O-K for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 201 3,filedwith the SEC on November 26, 2013, as well as the consolidated financial statement~ and 
related notes contained therein For .further context to understand the financial condition and results of operations of the 
combined companies post-merger, see the unaudited proforma combined consolidated financial iriformation and related 
discussion and analysis of Turtle Beach along with Turtle Beach historical financial and other information contained in the 
Definitive Proxy Statement (the "Proxy Statement") on Schedule 14A.for the special meeting of stockholders held on 
December27, 2013, a copy of which was filed with the SEC on December 3, 2013. 

Business Overview 

We are a technology company with a .substantial body of intellectual pJ·operty focused on delivering novel audio solutions. 
Our HSS technology pioneered the practical application of parametric acoustic technology for generating sound along a 
directional u ltrasonic column. After our September 2010 spin-off from LRAD Corporation, we completed development of a 
new product line (HSS-3000) anq in July 2011 commenced sales of our HSS-3000 audio systems. The HSS-3000 product line 
delivers directed audio solutions to customers primarily for commercial use including digital signage, kiosk and related 
appiications that benefit from focused sound taJgeted to specific locations. Our principal markets are North America, Europe 
and Asia. We are targeting our technology for new uses in consumer markets including computers, video gaming, televisions 
and home audio along with other commercial markets Including casino gaming and cinema. We are also researching and 
developing health applications for persons with hearing loss. 

We are seeking to el{pand into new markets through both product sales and licensing, Ow· licensing strategy is to identifY 
large or high-growth markets, develop needed technology solutions and feanu·es, and work with established industry 
participants and OEMs to make products incorporating ow· technologies widely available to consume1's. To date, we have not 
received any revenue from licensing activities. 

Met'ger With Tur tle Beach 

On January 15, 2014, we completed the merger (the "Merger") of our wholly-owned subsidiary, Paris Acquisition Corp., a 
Delaware corporation C'Merger Sub'>), with and into VTB Holdings, [nc., a Delaware corporation ("Turtle Beach"), in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated AugustS, 2013 among the Company, 
Turtle Beach and Merger Sub (the "Merger Agreement"). As a result of the Merger, Thrtle Beach, the surviving entity in the 
Merger, became our wholly-owned subsidiary. 

In connection with the Merger, we issued to tlle fnnner holders of Turtle Beach common stock and Series A Prcfen·ed 
Stock an aggregate o£30,227, 1 00 shares of our common stock, par value $0.001 per share ("Common Stock"). The nwnber of 
shares of Common Stock issued was computed in accordance with the fmmula specified in the Merger Agreement using a Per 
Share Number (as defined in the Merger Agreement) o£0.35997. In addition, in accordance with the tenus of the Merger 
Agreetnent, aU then outstanding options to purchase shares of Turtle Beach common stock were converted into options to 
purchase 3,960,783 shares of our Common Stock and were assumed by us (the "Converted Options"). These newly issued 
shares of Common Stock, together with the Conve11ed Options, represented approximately 80% ofthe total issued and 
outstanding shares of Common Stock, on a fu lly-diluted basis at January 15, 2014. 
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The information contained in this Quarterly Report on Fonn 1 0-Q is for the three months ended December 31, 2013 and 
describes oar operations prior to the Merger. Accordingly. the frrst report describing the combined operations of the Company 
and Turtle Beach wiiJ be our Quarterly Report on Form I 0-Q for the three months ended Marclt31, 2014. 

Additional Financing and Business Development Information 

In November 2013 we obtained $5.08 milljon of net proceeds from the registered direct sale of connnon stock pursuant to 
our "shelf" registration statement to meet a closing condition ofthe Merger. 

We believe there are significant commercial, consumer and health care market opportunities worldwide for our HSS 
technology. As a result of commercial pilot and other installations in 2013, during the quarter ended December 31, 2013 we 
activeJy transitioned to a channel distribution strategy. We began appointing leading audio visual commercial integrators to 
represent our HSS products and added experienced sales personnel to grow our commercial business in 2014. We expect 
increased product sales during calendar 20 t 4 as a result of expanded distribution channels and targeted direct sales. 

During 2012 we identified health care as an additional target market for HSS applications as a result of consumer 
preference surveys indicating that persons with normal and impaired bearing reported greater clarity of sound from HSS 
compared to standard speakers. We are developing product designs, continuing research in this area and in November 2013 
filed a pre-market notification with tbe FDA seeking clearance to sell our HSS product as an over-the-counter medical device 
for the bearing impaired. 

We are unable to predict tbe level offuture product sales in our current or new markets, the timing of future licensing 
revenues, if any, nor the timing or likelihood ofa.ny PDA clearance. We are also unable to predict the acceptance of our 
technology or resulting products by consumers as we target new commercial, consumer and healthcare markets through 
product sales or licensing. 

We face significant challenges in growing our HSS business in existing and targeted markets. We expect we will need to 
continue to innovate new applications for our sound technology, develop new products to meet customer requirements and 
identifY and develop new markets for our products and any licensing activities. 

Critical Accounting Policles and Estimates 

The discussion and analysis of our :financial condition and results of operations is based upon our financial statements 
located in ltem I ofParll, "Financial Statements," and in Management's Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and 
Results of Operations in our Annual Report ofFonn I 0-K for the year ended September 30, 2013 tiled with the SBC. The 
preparation of these fmancial statements, prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States, requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, 
including those related to valuation of accounts receivable and inventory, warranty liabilities, impairment of intangible assets, 
contingencies, the grant date fair value of stock options and warrants, share-based compensation expense, valuation of 
acquired intangible assets and valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets. We base our estimates on historical 
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. ' 

Some of our accounting policies require higher degrees of judgment than others in their application. These include 
revenue recognition, warranty liabilities, impairments, share-based compensation and valuation of acquired intangible assets. 
Historically, our assumptions, judgments and estimates relative to our critical accounting policies have not differed materially 
from actual results. There were no significant changes or modification of our critical accounting policies and estimates 
involving management valuation adjustments affecting our results for the three months ended December 31,2013. For further 
information on our critical accounting policies, refer to Note I to tbe financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. 
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Segment and Related Information 

We operate as a single reportable segment on an enterprise-wide basis. We ge11erate revenue by selling our teclulology­
bascd products. 

Results of Operations 

Comparison of Results ofOperatiol!s for the Three Month§ Ended December 31.2013 and 2012 

The following is a discussion ofthe results of our operations for the three months ended December3 I , 2013 and 2012. 

Revenues 
Revenues were $67,863 for the threemontbs ended December 31,201 3 compared to 1-evenues of$1 08,674 for the 

comparable three months of the prior year ended December 31, 2012. Revenues from two customers accounted for 22% and 
12% of total revenues. During the most recent quarter we were transitiouing to a chatUlel distributjon strategy and we arc 
appointing leading audio visual commercial integrators to represent our HSS commercial product line for digital signage, retail 
store, kiosk, and point-of-sale tenninal markets. We are also pursuing business development activities related to additional 
commercial and other consumer applications of our technology, including health care applications. We expect increased 
product sales during calendar 2014 as a result of this strategy and the addition of experienced sales personnel. 

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit 
Gross profit tor tbe three months ended December 31,2013 was $31,845 (47% of revenues) compared to $54,618 (50% of 

1'cvenucs) for the three months ended December 31,2012. We continue to develop our distribution, sales and pricing strategies 
and make product updates and changes that impact margins. With have limited warranty cost experience and estimated f·uture 
warranty costs can impact our gross margins. Due to our limited sales and history, we do not believe that historical gross profit 
margins for HSS products should be relied upon as an indicator of future gross profit margins. 

Selling, General and AdminislraUve Expense.v 
Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended December 3 I, 2013 were $838,257 excluding 

non-cash share based compensation expenses of $410,248. 1l1is compares to $725,369, excluding $191,228 of non-cash share 
based compensation expenses, during the comparable prior-year peliod ended December 31, 2012. We will continue to incur 
significant amounts of non-cash share based compensation expense in future periods from vesting of existing option grants and 
the possibility of new grants. 

Major cost categories for U1e three months ended December 31, 2013 included compensation and consulting-related costs 
of $406,000 (excluding non-cash share based compensation expenses), travel and related costs of $73,000, professional fees of 
$136,000, public company costs of$171,000, trade show and promotion expenses of$17,000 and occupancy co5ls of$25,000. 
Public company costs increased by $94,000 from the prior year's comparable quarter as a result of increased director fees for 
additional merger related meetings and additional filing and stockholder communication costs. Personnel and consulting costs 
increased $23,000 due to additional sales persmmel and professional fees increased $ 19,000 prinlarily as a result of increase 
audit and SOX compliance costs for fiscal20 13. Our travel related costs increased $11 ,000 primarily related to increased sales 
and business development activities. 

We are unable to estimate the level of future selling, general and administrative costs that we will contribute to the 
combh1ed company's total in future quarters as these costs are subject to the tinliog and C.'! tent of integration activ ities. 

Research and Development Expenses 
Research and development expenses for the three months ended December 3 J, 2013 were $420,125 excluding non-cash 

share based compensation expenses of $118,.971. This compares to $329,418, excluding $62,435 of non-cash sha1-e based 
compensation expenses, during the comparable prior-year period ended December 31, 2012. 

Major cost categories for the most recent quarter included personnel and consultancy costs of $229,000 (excluding non­
cash share based compensation expenses), $95,000 of prototype, development and testing costs, occupancy costs of$28,000 
and patent costs and patent, technology and fixed as~et amortization and depreciation costs of$58,000. 
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We added research and development personnel and as a result personnel and consultancy costs increased $20,000 during 
the most recent quarter compared to the quarter ended December 31, 2012. ·Prototype, development and testing costs increased 
by $51,000 due to FDA development and use of outside engineering firms to develop prototypes. 

The scope and magnitude of our future research and development expenses that we will contribute to the combined 
company' s total in future quarters are difficult to predict as the amounts required for future product development costs are 
difficult to estimate but could be substantial. 

Business Transaction Expenses 
During the three months ended December 3 J, 2013, we incurred $996,678 of business transaction costs preparing for the 

merger with Turtle Beach and related litigation consisting of legal, investment bank, accounting and related costs and 
expenses. These costs are net of$453,153 of litigation related legal fees and costs payable by the Company's 0&0 insurance 
carrier. No such costs were incurred in the prior year' s first quarter. 

Net Loss 
Net loss for the three months ended December 31,2013 and 2012 was $2,754,310 and $1,252,120, respectively. The most 

recent period loss included $529,219 of non-cash shan~-based compensation expenses compared to $253,663 for the prior 
year's first quarter. 

We expect that our operations will contribute additional net losses to the results of the combined company until we are 
able to grow revenues to generate sufficient margins to cover our operating costs. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Oven1iew 
At December 31, 2013 we had cash of $4.7 million and our current assets exceeded our current liabilities by $4.4 million. 

Other than cash, accounts receivable and inventory, we have no unused sources of liquidity at this time. 

Cash Flows 

Operating Activities 
Net cash used in operating activities was $2,032,636 and $856,136 for the three months ended December 31,2013 and 

2012, respectively. The overall increase of $1,176,500 between the two periods was primarily related to the increase of 
$1,502,190 in net loss between periods ($275,556 of which increase related to non-cash expenses and $996,678 due to 
business transaction expenses). The increase in cash used was also increased by an increase in prepaid expenses of$93,441 
and a reduction in accrued liabilities of$84,220 and reduced by a $248,271 increase in accounts payable. 

Investing Activities 
We used cash of $59,553 for property and equipment purchases and patent costs during the three months ended December 

3 1, 2013. We have no material commitments for future capital expenditures but e>Cpect to continue to incur patent costs in the 
future. 

Financing Activities 
During the three months ended December 31 , 2013 we obtained $5,079,336 from the sale of common stock and $91,350 

from the exercise of stock options. During the most recent three months, we made payments reducing our capital lease 
obligation of $9,207. 

Capital Requirements 
Our future capital requirements, cash flows and results of operations as a combined company following the Merger could 

be affected by and will depend on many factors some of which are currently unknown to us, including: 

• market acceptance of our products and our ability to grow revenues; 
• the costs and timing of production and supply of our products; 
• the costs of innovating, developing and protecting new products; 
• the costs and timing of sales and marketing efforts; and 
• the costs, timing and outcome of any future warranty claims or litigation against us associated with any of our 

products. 
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As a combined company, post-merger, we beUeve that our combined cash and cash equivalents and amounts available 
under our credit facilities and our cash flows derived from operations will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for 
business operations, contractual obligations and other liquidity requirements associated with our operations for at least the niD:t 
twelve months. We may explore additional financing sources to fund expansion, to respond to competitive pressures, to 
acquire or to invest in complementary products, businesses or technologies, or to lower our cost of capital, which could 
include equity and debt financings. We cannot guarantee that any additional fmancing will be available on acceptable tenns, if 
at all. If we raise additional funds through the issuance of equity or convertible debt our existing stockholders could suffer 
significant dilution, and if we raise additional funds through the issuance of debt securities or other borrowings, these 
securities or borrowings would have rights senior to common stock and could contain covenants that could restrict operations. 

Contractual Obligations 
Other than aggregate facility and office lease payments of approximately $10,500 per month, the equipment capital lease 

of $3,574 per month and our employment agreement with our then Executive Chainnan, we had no matedal contractual 
obligations at December 3 1, 2013. The nature and scope of our operations and our contractual obligations changed 
significantly with the Merger and will be reported on a combined basis in future reports. 

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions 
We do not have off-balance sheet arrangements, financings, or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other 

persons, also known as "special purpose entities" (SPEs). 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
The.re have been no recent accounting pronouncements or changes in accounting pronouncements during the three-month 

period ended December 31 , 2013, or subsequenUy thereto, that we believe are of potential signi1icance to our financial 
statements. 

Item 3. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk. 

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while concurrently maximizing the income we 
receive from our investments without significantly increasing risk. Some of the securities that we invest in may be subject to 
interest rate risk. This means that a change in prevailing interest rates, with respect to interest rate risk, may cause tbe principal 
amount or market value ofthe investments to fluctuate. ln general, money market funds are not subject to market risk because 
the interest paid on such funds fluctuates with the prevailing interest rate. Accordingly, a 100 basis point increase in interest 
rates or a 10% decline in the value of the United States equity markets would not be expected to have a material impact on the 
value of such money market funds. 

At December 31, 2013, to minimize risks we maintained our portfolio of cash equivalents in bank cash or money market 
fund accounts. Due to the relatively short duration of our investment portfolio, an immediate 1 00/o change in interest rates 
would have no material impact on our rmancial condition, results of operations or cash flows. Declines in interest rates over 
time will, however, reduce our interest income. 

Item 4. Controls and Procedures. 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
Disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules l 3(a)-15(e) and 15(d)-15(e)) of the Exchange Act are designed to 

ensure that (1) infonnation required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, 
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and fonns; and (2) that such infonnation is 
accumulated and communicated to management. including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, to 
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. 

At the conclusion of the period ended December 31, 2013, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with 
the participation of our then Chief Executive Officer (our principal executive officer, or PEO) and our then Chief Financial 
Officer (our principal financial officer, or PFO), of tbe effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and 
procedures. Based upon that evaluation, our PEO and PFO concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined 
in Rule l3a-15(e) of the Exchange Act, were effective at the reasonable assurance level as of December 31, 2013. 
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Changes iu lnternal Coutrol over Financial Reporting 
l11ere have been no changes in our internal control over fi nancial reportmg during our fiScal quarter ended December 3 I, 

2013 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 
Our process for evaluating controls and procedures is continuous and encompasses constant improvement of the design and 
effectiveness of established controls ond procedures and the remediation of any deficiencies, which may be identified during 
this process. 

Because of the inherent l imitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the p ossibility of conus ion or 
improper management oven· ide of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a 
timely basis. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of 
achieving U1eir control objectives. AJso, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the intemal control over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with tbe policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

PART ll. OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings. 

Please refer to Note 9, Commihnents and Contingencies, in tl1e notes to d1e unaudited condensed consolidated ftnancial 
statements inc luded in Part l, !tem 1 oft.i-Jis Fonn 10-Q quarterly report, which is incoJ:l)or!!ted into this item by reference. 

Item 1A. Risk Factors. 

We are affected by risks specific to us as well as factors that affect all businesses. In addition to the other information set 
fbrth in this repon, careful consideration should be taken of the risk factors discussed in Part I, "Item lA. Risk Factors" in our 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for tl:le year ended September 30, 2013 that could materially and adversely affect our business, 
financial position, results of operations, cash flows and stock price. As a result of the Merger careful consideration should also 
be taken of the risk factors related to Tm11e Beach's Business listed under the caption "Risks Related to Turtle Beach's 
!Jusincss" in the Definitive Proxy Statement (the "Proxy Statement") on Schedule J 4A filed with the SEC on December 3, 
2013 and that could also materially adversely affect the business, financial position, results of operations, cash flows and stock 
price of the post-merger combined companies. 

There have been no material changes or additions to those enumerated risk factors, except as described below: 

Tllis rejlnrt contains only pre-merger financial information on tile financial positio11 and results of operations of 
Pammetric and, due to tlte timi11g of merger closi11g fmd reporting periods, does 1101 include corresp ondi11g financial 
infommtion 0 11 Turtle B eacll or the combi11ed compa11ies as of tile date of tllis report or any subsequent period. Tlte 
umrvailabllity of Clt"e"t combilletljimmd al itifomuttion could affect tile price and increase tile volatility and risk of 
trading our common stock. 

The merger ofParametric and Turtle Beach was completed on January IS, 2014 and Parametric's prior fiscal year ended 
on September 30, 2013. The fi nancial statements and related discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of 
operations by management presented in this report covers a three-month period for Parametric that ended prior to completion 
of the merger. Operating results for the three months ended December 3 1,2013 may not be indicative of results for the 
combined company for any future interim period after the Merger. 

As we elected to change our fiscal year end to that of T urtle Beach, in the future we will report on a calendar year basis. 
The Proxy Statement contains unaudited financial information for Turtle Beach and ltnaudited pro forma information through 
September 30,2013. As described in our current report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 16, 2014, the audited 
consolidated financial statements of Turtle Beach for the year ended December 31, 2013, required to be filed pursuant to 
Item 9.01 (a) of Form 8-K, will be filed with the SEC within 71 days of the date such Fonn 8-K was required to be filed. This 
report is expected to include related unaudited pro forma combined financial information. The first post-merger combined 
results are expected to be reported in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quatter ending March 31, 2014. 
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Since corresponding quruterly financial information for Turtle Beach or the combined company for the period covered by 
this report of Parametric is not currently available at tills time, the lack thereof could affect the price and increase the volatility 
and risk of trading our common stock as investors will have limited historical financial information Wltil future reports are 
filed. 

Future results of the com bined company may differ materially f rom historical unaudited pro formajinmlcial statements 
prestmted i ll the Proxy Stateme11J. 

The future results of the Company may be materially different from the combined and /or respective historical results of 
Parametric and 1\trtle Beach. Parametric and Turtle Beach expect to incur significant costs associated with completion ofthe 
merger and combining the operations of tl1e two companies. The exact magnitude of these costs is not yet known. These costs 
may decrease the capital available for use for continued development of our business in the future or may cause us to seek to 
raise new capital sooner than expected. 

Our ability to utilize Parametric's net operah'ng loss and tllX credit carryforwards in the future is subjed to substantial 
limitations. 

Under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), if a corporation undergoes an 
"ownership change" (generally defined as a greater than 50 percent change (by value) in its equity ownership over a three-year 
period), the corporation's ability to use its pre-change net operating loss carryforwards and other pre-change tax attributes to 
offset its post-change income may be limited. Further, if the historic business of Parametric is not treated as being continued 
by the combined entity for the two-year period beginning on the date of the Merger (referred to as the ' 'continuity of business 
requirement"), the pre-traJlSaction net operating loss carryforward deductions become substaJltially reduced or unavailable for 
use by the surviving corporation in the transaction. lt is expected that the merger with Turtle Beach resulted in an "ownership 
change" of Parametric. Accordingly, our abil ity to utilize Parametric's net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards may be 
substantially limited. 

Under Section 384 of the Code, available net operating loss carryovers of Parametric or Turtle Beach may not be available 
to offset certain gains arising after the merger from assets held by the other corporation at the effective time of the merger. 
This limitation wiiJ apply to the extent that the gain is attributable to an unrealized built-in-gain in the assets of Parametric or 
Turtle Beach existing at the effective time of the merger. To the extent that any such gains are recognized in the five-year 
period after the merger upon the disposition of any such assets, the net operating loss carryovers of the other corporation will 
not be available to offset such gains (but the net operating loss carryovers of the corporation that owned such assets will not be 
limited by Section 384 although they may be subject to other limitations under Section 382 as described above). 

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of.Proceed.s. 

On November 14,2013, we issued an aggregate of 16,793 shares of common stock to one investor upon the conversion of 
a warrant to purchase an aggregate of26,47l shares of common stock at an exercise price of$5.625 per share. The fair market 
value of the common stock determined in accordance with the warrant on the date of conversion was $15.38 per share. 

On November 27, 2013, we issued an aggregate of22,722 shares of common stock to one investor upon the conversion of 
a warrant to purchase an aggregate of 40,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of$5.625 per share. The fair market 
value of the common stock deteiJllined in accordance with the warrant on the date of conversion was $13.02 per share. 

Pursuant to the cashless net exercise feature of the above three warrant transactions, tlle warrants could be converted, in 
lieu of cash exercise, into a number of shares of common stock determined by multiplying the number of shares purchasable 
under the warrant by the difference between the fair market value of the common stock computed on the date of conversion 
aJld the warraJlt exercise price, and dividing such product by the fair market value of the common stock computed on the date 
of conversion. The shares were issued in reliance upon the exemption provided by Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act. 
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13. Adjust:ments upon Changes in Capitalization 

13.! . In order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the rights of Participants under the Plan as a result of any stock 
dividend, recapitalization, forward stock split or reverse stock split, reorganization, division, merger, consolidation, spin-off, 
combination, repurchase or share exchange, extraordinary or unusual cash distribution or other similar corporate transaction or 
event that affects the Common Stock, the Committee shall adjust (i) the number and kind of shares of Common Stock which 
may thereafter be issued in connection with Awards or Prior Plan Awards, (ii) the number and kind of shares of Common 
Stock issuable in respect of outstanding Awards or Prior Plan Awards, (iii) the aggregate number and kind of shares of 
Common Stock available under the Plan, and (iv) the exercise or grant price relating to any Award or Prior Plan Award. Any 
such adjustment shall be made in an equitable manner which reflects the effect of such transaction or event. It is provided, 
however, that in the case of any such transaction or event, the Committee may make any additional adjusonents to the items in 
(i) through (iv) above which it deems appropriate in the circumstances, or make provision for a cash payment with respect to 
any outstanding Award or Prior Plan Award; and it is provided, further, that no adjustment shall be made under this Section 
that would cause the Plan to violate Section 422 ofthe Code with respect to Incentive Stock Options or that would adversely 
affect the status of any A ward or Prior' Plan Award that is "performance-based compensation" under Section l62(m) of the 
Code. 

13.2. !n addition, the Committee is authorized to make adjustments in the terms and conditions of, and the criteria 
included in, Awards, including any Performance Goals, in recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events (including, without 
limitation, events described in Section 13.1) affecting the Company, any Subsidiary or Affiliate, or in response to changes in 
applicable laws, regulations, or accounting principles. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no adjustment shall be made in any 
outstanding Awards to the extent that such adjustment would adversely affect the intended status of the Award as 
"performance-based compensation'' under Section 162(m) of the Code. 

14. Termination and Amendment 

14 .I , The Board may amend, alter, suspend, discontinue, or terminate the Plan without the consent of the 
Company's stockholders or Participants, except that any such amendment, alteration, suspension, discontinuation, or 
termination shall be subject to the approval of the Company's stockholders if(i) such action would increase the number of 
shares subject to the Plan, (ii) such action results in the repricing, replacement or repurchase of any Option or SAR, or 
(iii) such stockholder approval is required by any federal or state law or regulation or the rules of any stock exchange or 
automated quotation system on which the Common Stock may then be listed or quoted, in each case, except as provided in 
Section 13.1; provided, however, that without the consent of an affected Participant, no amendment, alteration, suspension, 
discontinuation, or termination of the Plan may materially and adversely affect the rights of such Participant under any Award 
theretofore granted and any Award Agreement relating thereto, except as the Committee determines in its sole discretion to be 
necessary or advisable to ensure a deduction under Section 162(m) of the Code or to comply with Section 409A of the Code or 
an exemption therefrom. Tite Committee may waive any conditions or rights under, or amend, alter, suspend, discontinue, or 
terminate, any Award theretofore granted and any Award Agreement relating thereto; provided, however, that without the 
consent of an affected Participant, no such amendment, alteration, suspension, discontinuation, or termination of any Award 
may materially and adversely affect the rights of such Participant under such Award, except as the Committee determines in its 
sole discretion to be necessary or advisable to ensure a deduction under Section 162(m) of the Code or to comply with 
Section 409A oftbe Code or an exemption therefrom . 

14.2. The foregoing notwithstanding, any Performance Goal or other performance condition specified in connection 
with an Award shall not be deemed a fixed contractual term, but shall remain subject to adjustment by the Committee, in its 
discretion at any time in view of the Committee's assessment of the Company's strategy, performance of comparable 
companies, and other circumstances, except to the extent that any such adjustment to a performance condition would adversely 
affect the intended status of a.n Award as "performance-based compensation" under Section 162(m) of the Code. · 
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15. No Rieht to Award. Employment or Service 

Neither the Plan nor any action taken hereunder shall be constiUed as giving any Employee, Consul!ant or Non-Employee 
Director any right to be retained in the employ or service of the Company, any Subsidiary or Affiliate. For purposes of the 
Plan, transfer of employment or service between the Company and ·its Subsidiaries and Aftiliates shall not be deemed a 
te1mination of employment or service. 

16. Taxes 

The Company, any SuiJsidiary or Affiliate is authorized to withhold fi·om ;,1.ny payment relating to an Award under the 
Plan, including from a distribution of Common Stock or any payroll or other payment to a Participant amounts ofwithbolding 
and other taxes due in connection with any transaction involving an A ward, and to take such other action as the Committee 
may deem advisable to enable the Company, the S\1bsidia1y ot Affiliate and Participants to satisfY obligations for the payment 
of withholding taxes and other tax obligations relating to any Award. This authority shall include authority to withhold or 
receive Common Stock or other property alld to make cash payments in respect thereof in satisfaction of a Participant's fi!X 
obligations. Withholding of taxes in the form of shares of Common Stock shall not occur at a rate that exceeds the minimum 
required statutory federal and state withholding rates. Participants who are subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16 
of the 1934 Act may elect to pay all or a portion of any withholding or other taxes due in connection with an Award by 
directing the Company to withhold shares of Common Stock that would otherwise be received in connection with such Award. 

J 7. Limits on Transferability; Beneficinr.ies 

No Award or other right or interest of a Participant under the Plan shall be pledged, encumbered, or hypothecated to, or in 
favor of, or subject to a11y lien, obligation, or liability of such Participant to, any party, other than the Company, any 
Subsidiary or Affiliate, or assigned or transferred by such Participant otl1erwise than by will or the laws of descent and 
distribution. and such Awards and rights shall be exercisable during the lifetime of the Participant only by the Participant or 
.his or her guardian or legal representative. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may, in its discretion, provide that 
Awards or other rights or interests of a Participant granted pursuant to the Plan (other than an Incentive Stock Option) be 
transferable, without consideration, to immediate frunily members (i.e., children, grandchildren or spouse), to trusts for the 
benefit of such immediate family members and to partnerships in which such family members are the only partners. Tite 
Committee may attach to such transferability feature such terms and conditions as it deems advisable. ln addition, a Participant 
may, in the manner established by the Committee, designate a beneficiary (which may be a person or a trust) to exercise the 
rights of the Participant, a11d to t•eceive any distribution, with respect to allY Award upon the death of the Participant. A 
beneficiary, guardian, legal representative o.r othe.r person claiming any rights under the P lan from or through any Pat1icipant 
shall be subject to all temJS and conditions of the Plan and any Award Agreement applicable to such Participant, except as 
otherwise determined by the Committee, and to any additional restrictions deemed necessary or appropriate by the Committee. 

J 8. No Rights to Awards; No Stockholder· Rights 

No Participant shall have any claim to be granted any Award under the Plan, and there is no obligation for uniformity of 
treatment ofPatticipants. No Award shall confer on any Participant any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company unless 
and until Common Stock is duly issued or transferred to the Participant in accordance with the terms of the Award. 

19. Foreign Nationals. 

Without amending the Plm, Awards may be granted to Employees, Consultants and N on-Employee Directors who are 
foreign nationals or are employed or providing services outside the United States or both, 011 such terms and conditions 
different fi·om those specified in the Plan as may, in the judgment of the Committee, be necessary or desirable to further the 
pw·pose of the Plan. Moreover, the Commi.ttee rnay approve such supplements to, or amendments, restatements or alternative 
versions of, the Plan as it may consider necessary or 
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appropriate for such purposes without thereby affecting the tenns of the Plan as in effect for any other purpose, provided that 
no such supplements, amendments, restatements or alternative versions shall include any provisions that are inconsistent with 
the terms of the Plan, as then in effect, unless the Plan could have been amended to eliminate such inconsistency without 
further approval by the stockholders of the Company. 

20. Securities Law Requirements 

20.1. No Award or Prior P lan Award shall be exercisable if the Company shall at any time determine that (a) the 
listing upon any securities exchange, registration or qualification under any state or federal law of any Common Stock 
otherwise deliverable upon such exercise, or (b) the consent or approval of any regulatory body or the satisfaction of 
withholding tax or other withholding liabilities, is necessary or appropriate in connection with such exercise. In any of the 
events referred to in clause (a) or clause (b) above, the exercisability of such Awards or Prior Plan Awards shall be suspended 
and shall not be effective unless and until such withholding, listing, registratioJl, qualifications or approval shall have been 
effected or obtained free of any conditions not acceptable to the Company in its sole discretion, notwithstanding any 
termination of any Award or Prior Plan Award or any portion ofany Award or Prior Plan Award during the period when 
exercisability has been suspended. 

20.2. The Committee may require, as a condition to the right to exercise any Award or Prior Plan Award that the 
Company receive from the Participant, at the time any such Award or Prior Plan Award is exercised, vests or any applicable 
restrictions lapse, representations, warranties and agreements to the effect that the shares are being purchased or acquired by 
the Participant for investment only and without any present intention to seU or otherwise distribute such shares and that the 
Participant will not dispose of such shares in transactions which, in the opinion of counsel to the Company, would violate the 
registration provisions ofthe Securities Act of 1933, as then amended, and the .rules and regulations thereunder. The 
certificates issued to evidence such shares shall bear appropriate legends summarizing such restrictions on the disposition 
thereof. 

21. Recoupment 

Any Award granted pursuant to the Plan shall be subject to mandatory repayment by the Participant to the Company 
pursuant to the tenus of any Company "claw back" or recoupment policy directly applicable to the Plan and (i) set forth in the 
Participant's Award Agreement or (ii) required by law to be applicable to the Participant. 

21. Termination 

Unless the Plan previously shall have been tenninated by action of the Board, the Plan shall terminate on the I 0-year 
anniversary of the Effective Date, and no Awards under the Plan shall thereafter be granted. 

23. Fractional Shares 

The Company will not be required to issue any fractional shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Plan. The Committee 
may provide for the elimination of fractions and for the settlement of fractions in cash. 

24. Governing Law 

To the extent tllat Federal laws do not otherwise control, the validity and construction ofthe Plan and any Award 
Agreement entered into thereunder shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State ofCalifomja, but 
without giving effect to the choice of law principles thereof. 

25. Effeetive Date 

The Plan shall be effective as of the date when. and only when, {i) the Company's stockholders have approved the Plan, 
(ii) the Company's stockholders have approved the proposal to approve the issuance of Common Stock in connection with the 
merger {"Merger") contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of August 5, 2013, among Parametric, VTB 
Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Paris Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation, and the corresponding change of 
control of the Company, and (iii) the Merger bas been consummated. 
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I. Statement and Purpose of Plan 

ANNEXF 
PARAMETRIC SOUND CORPORATION 

ANNUAL INCENTIVE BOM.JS PLAN 

Page 339 of 348 

The Parametric Sound Corporation Annual Incentive Bonus Plan provides additional compensation opportunities for 
selected employees based on the achievement of pre-determined performance goals. 

IJ. Definitions 

A. "Affiliate" means, with respect to any specified Person, a Person that directly, or indirectly through one or more 
intermediaries, Controls, is Controlled by or is under common Control with, the specified Person. 

B. "~" means the Board ofDirectors of the Company. 

C. "Change in Control" means a "change in control event" within the meaning of Treasury regulation 1.409A-3(i)(5). 

D. "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

E. "Committee" means the Compensation Committee of the Board or, if appointed by the Board, a subcommittee thereof 
which shall be comprised exclusively of two or more members of the Board who are non-employee "outside directors" within 
the meaning of section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code and Treasury regulation l. l 62-27(e)(3). 

F. "Company" means Parametric Sound Corporation, a Nevada corporation. 

G. "Company Stock" means tbe common stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share. 

H. "Qm!rQI" (including tbe terms "Controlling," "Controlled by" and "under common Control with") means the 
possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether 
through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise. 

1. "Determination Date" means the date upon which the Committee determines Performance Goals and Incentive Bonus 
opportunities for Participants. With respect to any Incentive Bonus that is intended to be a Qualified Incentive Bonus, the 
Determination Date must be no later than the earlier of (1) 90 days after the commencement of the Perfom1ance Period and 
(2) the date upon which 25% of the Performance Period has elapsed. 

J. "Disability" means, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, that a Participant ( I) is unable to engage in 
any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment that can be expected to 
result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than l2 months or (2) is, by reason of any 
medically determinable physical or mental impairment that can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a 
continuous period of not less than 12 months, receiving income replacement benefits for a period of not less than 3 months 
under an accident and health plan covering employees of the Company, its Subsidiaries or Affiliates. 

K. "Fair Market Yalye" means, on any given date, the closing price of a share of Company Stock on the principal 
national securities exchange on which Company Stock is listed on such date, or, if Company Stock was not publicly traded on 
such date, on the last preceding date on which Company Stock was publicly traded. 

-F-1-
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L. " Incentive Bonus" means a bonus that is payable hereunder to a Participant based on the achievement of specified pre­
determined Performance Goals. An Incentive Bonus may be a Qualified Incentive Bonus or a Non-Qualified Incentive Bonus. 

M. "Non-0Llalificd Incentive Bonus" means an Incentive Bonus that is not intended to be a Quali'fied Incentive Bonus. 

N. " Participanf' means any employee of the Company or one of its Subsidiaries who has been designated by the 
Committee to participate in the Plan for an applicable Performance Period. 

0. "Performance Goal" means a measure of performance, the achievement of which is substantially 1mcettain at the time 
such goal is established, which is used to detennine a Participant's Incentive Bonus and is established by the Committee uot 
later than the applicable Determination Date. Performance Goals may be measured on an absolute or relative basis. Relative 
performance may be measured against an ex'temal index, such as, by way of example and not limitation, a group of peer 
companies, industry groups or a financial market index. Perfonnance Goals with respect to Incentive Bonuses that are inlendcd 
to be Qualified Incentive Bonuses must be based upon any one or more of the following measures as they relate to tl1e 
Company, its Subsidiaries or Affiliates (or any business unit or department thereof): (i) stock price, (ii) market share, 
(iii) sales, (iv) earnings per share, (v) diluted earnings per share, (vi) diluted net income per share, (vii) return on stockholder 
equity, (viii) costs, (ix) cash flow, (x) return on total assets, (xi) return on capital or invested capital, (x.ii) return on net assets, 
(xiii) operating income, (xiv) net income, (xv) earnings (or net income) before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, 
(xvi) improvements in capital structure, (xvii) gross, operating or other margins, (xviii) budget and e~pense management, 
(xix) productivity ratios, (xx) working capital targets, (xxi) enterprise value, (xxii) safety record, (xxiii) completion of 
acquisitions or business expansion ofthe company, our subsidiaries or affiliates (or any business unit or department thereof) 
(xxiv) economic value added or other value added measurements, (xxv) expenses targets, (xxvi) operating efficiency, 
(xxvii) regulatory body approvals for commercialization of products, (xxviii) implementation or completion of critical projects 
or related milestones, (xxix) quality control, (xxx) supply chain achievements and (xxxi) marketing and distribution of 
products. Performance Goals with respect to Incentive Bonuses that are not intended to be Qualified Incentive Bonuses may be 
based on one or more of the preceding measures or any other measure that the Committee may determine in its sole discretion. 

I'. "Performance Period" means a period of one or more consecutive fiscal years, or portions thereof, of the Company as 
established by the Committee during which the performance of the Company, its Subsidiaries or Affiliates m· any business unit 
or department thereof, or any individual is measured for the purpose of determining the extent to which a Performance Goal is 
achieved. Nothing in this Plan shall prevent the Committee from establishing a Performance Period that commences prior to 
the termination of one or more other Performance Periods. 

Q. "Person" means any individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, trust, joint stock company, 
business trust, unincorporated association, joint venture, governmental authority or other legal entity of any nature whatsoever. 

R. "R!rul" means the Parametric Sound Corporation Annuallncentive Bonus Plan herein set forth, as amended from time 
to time. 

S. "Qualified Incentive Bonus" means an Incentive Bonus that is intended to be "qualified performance-based 
compensation" WJder section 162(m) of the Code and Treasury regulation 1.162-27( e), including any successor provision. 

T. "Subsidjarv" means, at any relevant time, any co'l)oration or other entity of which 50% or more of the total combined 
voting power of all classes of stock (or other equity interests in the case of an entity other than a corporation) entitled to vote is 
owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company. 
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m. Eligibility 

All employees of the Company, its Subsidiaries and Affiliates shall be eligible to be selected by the Committee to 
participate in the Plan. 

IV. Administration 

A.~. The Committee shall have the authority, subject to the provisions herein, (A) to select employees to 
participate in the Plan; (B) to establish and administer the Performance Goals and the Incentive Bonus opportunities applicable 
to each Participant and certify whether the Performance Goals have been attained; (C) to construe and interpret the Plan and 
any agreement or instrument entered into under or in connection with the Plan; (D) to establish, amend, and waive rules and 
regulations for the Plan' s administration; and (E) to make all other determinations that may be necessary or advisable for the 
administration of the Plan. Any determination by the Committee w ith respect to the Plan shall be fmal, binding and conclusive 
on all employees and Participants and anyone claiming under or through any of them. Neither the Committee, nor any member 
of the Committee, shall be liable for any act, omission, interpretation, construction or determination made in good faith in 
connection with the Plan, and the members of the Commjttee shall be entitled in all cases to indemnification and 
reimbursement by the Company in respect of any claim, loss, damage or expense (including, without limitation, attorneys' 
fees) arising or resulting therefrom to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

B. Adjustments. ln the event of any corporate transaction involving the Company (including, without limitation, any 
subdivision or combination or exchange of the outstanding shares of common stock, stock dividend, stock split, spin-off, split­
off, recapitalization, capital reorganization, liquidation, reclassification of shares of common stock, merger, consolidation, 
extraordinary cash distribution or sale, lease or transfer of substantially all ofthe assets of the Company, in each case, as 
determined by the Commjttee in its sole discretion), the Committee may make or provide for such adjustments in any 
Performance Goals applicable to an Incentive Bonus as the Committee may determine to be appropriate in order to prevent 
dilution or enlargement of the benefits ofParticipants bereunder (provided that with respect to Qualified Incentive Bonuses, 
any such adjustment shall be made in accordance with Code section 162(m) and the regulations thereunder). 

V. Establishment of Performance Goals and Incentive Bonus Opportunities 

No later than the Detem1ination Date for each Perfom1ance Period. the Committee shall establish in writing (i) the 
employees of the Company, its Subsidiaries and Affiliates who shall be Participants in the Plan with respect to such 
Performance Period, (ii) the Performance Goals applicable to each such Participant (including, as the Committee deems 
advisable, threshold. target and ma.ximum levels of performance), (iii) each Participant's target and, if applicable, threshold 
and maximum Incentive Bonus opportunities for such Performance Period, (iv) the method for computing the amount of 
Incentive Bonuses that may be payable under the Plan to each Participant for such Performance Period if the Performance 
Goals established by the Committee for such Performance Period are attained in whole or in part and (v) whether such 
Incentive Bonuses are intended to be Qualified Incentive Bonuses or Non-Qualified Incentive Bonuses. 

VI. Termination of Emp loyment 

Except as otherwise provided in Sections VLA and VT.B below, payment of an Incentive Bonus shaLl be contingent upon 
(i) attainment ofthe applicable Performance Goals within the applicable Performance Period and (ii) the Participant's 
continuing employment with the Company, a Subsidiary or Affiliate on the date such Incentive Bonus is paid. 

A. Termination due to Death or Disability. lf a Participant's employment with the Company, a Subsidiary or Affiliate is 
terminated due to the Participant•s death or Disability prior to payment of an Incentive Bonus, the Committee may, in its sole 
discretion. permit all or any part of such Incentive Bopus to be paid without regard to 
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the attainment of the applicable Performance Goals. Any Incentive Bonus to be paid pursuant to this Section VI.A shall be 
paid to the Participant or the Participant's estate, as applicable, at the time the Company pays lnce)'Itive Bonuses to its 
employees generally in accordance with Section IX. 

B. Other Terminations. lfa Participant's employment with the Company, a Subsidiary or Affiliate terminates for any 
reason other than the Participant's death or Disability prior to the payment of an Incentive Bonus, then (i) in the case of a 
Qualified Incentive Bonus, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, pem1it the payment of all or any part of such Qualified 
Incentive Bonus, if any, that would have been paid to the Participant absent such termination based on the actual outcome of 
the applicable Performance Goals during the applicable Performance Period, liS certified pw·suant to Section VIT.F, and (ii) in 
the case of a Non-Qualified Incentive Bonus, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, pennit all or any part of such Non­
Qualified Incentive Bonus to be paid without regard to the attainment of the applicable Performance Goals. Any Incentive 
Bonus to be paid pursuant to this Section Vl.B shall be paid to the Participant at the time the Company pays Incentive Bonuses 
to its employees generally in accordance with Section IX. 

VII. Additional Rules Applicable to Qualified Incentive Bonuses 

A. Unless otherwise specifically determined by the Committee, any Incentive Bonus granted to a "covered employee" 
whose "applicable employee remuneration" (each within the meaning of Code Section 162(m)) is expected to exceed 
$ 1,000,000 for the year in which such Incentive Bonus may be paid is intended to be a Qualifiecl wcenti've Bonu~. 

B. Qualified Incentive Bonuses must be based solely on the attaimnent of one or more objective Performance Goals and 
may not be based on subjective criteria. In addition, no later than the Determination Date, the Committee shall designate in 
writing how the relevant Performance Goals with respect to the Performance Period will be calculated. 

C. Neither the grant nor the payment of any Non-Qualified Incentive Bonus shall be made contingent on the failure to 
earn any Qualified Incentive Bonus. 

D. The maximum aggregate Qualified Incentive Bonus that may be payable to any Participant under the Plan with respect 
to any fiscal year of the Company shall not exceed $1,000,000. 

E. The Committee shall have no discretion to increase the amount of Qualified Incentive Bonuses that would otherwise 
be due upon attainmeut of the relevant Performance Goals; provided, however, that the Committee may exercise negative 
discretion within the meaning of Treasury regulation 1.162-27(c)(2)(iii)(A) with respect to any Qualified Incentive Bonus 
hereunder to reduce any amount that would otherwise be payable hereunder. 

F. Payment of any Qualified Incentive Bonus pursuant to the P lan shall be contingent upon the Committee's certifying in 
writing that the Perf01mance Goals and any other material tenns applicable to such Qualified Incentive Bonus were in fact 
saHsfied, in accordance with applicable reguJations under Code section 162(m). Unless and until the Committee so certifies, 
such Qualified incentive Bonus shall not be paid. 

VIII. Change in Control 

[n connection with the consummation of a Change in Control of the Company, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, 
permit all or any part of a Participant's target [ncentive Bonus for the Performance Period in which such Change in Control 
occurs to be paid without regard to the attainment of the applicable Performance Goals. Any Incentive Bonus to be paid 
pursuant to this Section VITI shall be paid to the Participant on or as soon as administratively practicable following the 
consummation of such Change in Control, but in no event later than March I 5 of the year following the year in which such 
Change in Control occurs. 
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IX. Payment of Incentive Bonuses; Tu: Withboldiogs 

A. Earned Incentive Bonuses shaJI be paid no later than March 15th of the calendar year following the calendar year that 
includes the last day of the Performance Period with respect to which such Incentive Bonuses are earned. 

B. The Company shall have the right to deduct from aU Incentive Bonuses payable hereunder any federal, state, local or 
foreign taxes required by law to be withheld with respect to such payments and no Incentive Bonuses will be paid until the 
Participant has made arrangements with the Compauy to satisfy any such withholding taxes. 

X. Non-exclusivity of Plan 

Nothing in the Plan shall be construed in any way as limiting the authority of the Committee, the Board, the Company or 
any Subsidiary or Affiliate to establish any other annual or incentive compensation plan or as limiting the authority of any of 
the foregoing to pay cash bonuses or other supplemental or additional incentive compensation to any persons employed by the 
Company, its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, whether or not such person is a Participant in this Plan and regardless of how the 
amount of such bonus or compensation is determined. 

XI. Amendment, Termination and Term of Plan 

The Board, without the consent of any Participant, may at any time terminate or from time to time amend the Plan in 
whole or in part; provided, however, that no amendment with respect to, or affecting, Qualified J ncentive Bonuses that would 
require the consent of the stockholders of the Company pursuant to section 162(m) of the Code shall be effective without such 
consent. 

X1L Interpretation and Construction 

A. No provision of the Plan, nor the status of any employee as a Participant, shall constitute an employment agreement or 
in any way affect U1e duration of any Participant's employment, or the rights of the Company or the Participant to terminate 
such employment. Both the Participant and the applicable employer shall have the same abiHty to terminate employment as if 
the Plan had not been adopted. 

B. Any provision of the Plan that could be construed to prevent Qualified Incentive Bonuses under the Plan from 
qualifying for deductibility under section l62(m) oftbe Code or Treasury regulation 1.162-27(e) shall, to such extent, be 
disregarded. 

XIII. Adjustment; Repayment of Incentive Bonuses 

AU Incentive Bonuses paid or to be paid under the Plan are subject to rescission, cancellation or recoupment, in whole or 
in part, under any current or future "clawback" or similar policy of the Company. 

XIV. Effective Date 

The Plan shall be effective as of the date when, and only when, (i) the Company' s stockholders have approved the Plan, 
(ij) the Company's stockholders have approved the proposal to approve the issuance of Common Stock in connection with the 
merger ("Merger") contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of August 5, 2013, among Parametric, V'IB 
Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Paris Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation, and the corresponding change of 
control of the Company, and (iii) the Merger has been consummated. 
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XV. Governing Law 

The terms of the Plan shall be govemed by the laws oftbe State of California, without reference to the conflicts of laws 
principles thereof. 

* • • * * 

-F-6-
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IN WlTNESS wtffiREOF, the Company has caused the Plan to be effective as of the date set fortfr below, 

PARAMETRIC SOUND CORPORATION 

By: 

Name: ________________________ __ 

Title: 

Daw: --------------------------

F-7 
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ANNEXG 
CONSENT OF SQUAR, MILNER, PETERSON, MIRANDA & WILLIAMSON, LLP 

CONSENT OF 
lNOEl'l<.:NOENT llliGiSTI£REO PUHUC ACCOlfNTING FIRM 

We agree to the incorporation by reference in tbis Proxy Statement of our report dated November 26,2013, relating to our 
audits of the consolidated financial statements of Parametric Sound Corporation as ofaod for the years ended September 30, 
2013 and 2012 included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2013 ftled with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission on Nove1uber 26, 2013. 

Is/ SQUAR, MILNER, PETERSON, MlRANDA & WILLIAMSON, LLP 

San Diego, California 
December 2, 2013 
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ANNEXH 
CONSENT OF FREED MAXICK CPAS, P.C. 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REG ISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We consent to the inclusion in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (File No. 333-188389 and File No. 333-173017), the 
Registration Statements on Form S-8 (File No. 333-171838, File No. 333-181653 and File No. 333-188390) and the proxy 
statement on Schedule 14A filed on or about the date hereof (the " proxy statement") of Parametric Sound Corporation of our 
report dated November 4, 2013, relating to the consolidated financial statements ofVTB Holdings, Inc. as of end for tlte year 
ended December 31, 2012, which is contained in the proxy statement. 

lsi FREED MAXlCK CPAs, P.C. 

Buffalo, New York 
December 2, 2013 

-H-1-
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VTB Holdings, Ino. 
Valhalla, New York 

ANNEX I 
CONSENT OF BOO USA, LLP 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Film 

Page 348 of 348 

We hereby consent to the usc in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (File No. 333-188389 and File No. 333-173017), the 
Registration Statements on Form S-8 (File No. 333-171838, File No. 333- 181653 and File No. 333- 188390) and the proxy 
statement on Schedule 14A (the "proxy statement") of Parametric Sound Corporation of our report dated November 4, 2013, 
relating to the consolidated financial statements ofVfB Holdings, Inc., which is contained in the proxy statement. 

/s/BDO USA, LLP 
New York, New York 

December 2, 2013 
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To: Jim BarnesUimbarnes@cox.net] 
Cc: 
From: 

Seth Putterman[puherman@ritva.physics.ucla.edu]; Kaplan Robert(bobkaplan007@gmail.com] 
Elwood Norris 

Sent 
Subject: 

Guys, 

Sat 3/30/2013 10:08:37 AM 
FW: Monday's meeting 

We need a meeting asap. 
Is this blackmail or what/ 

Woody 

From: <ken.potashner@gmail.com> 
Date: Friday, March 29,2013 9:40PM 
To: Elwood Norris <enorris@parametricsound.com> 
Subject: Fwd: Monday's meeting 

rhe Independent directors with 2 sets of lawyers are reneging on the 
agreements we made at previous bod meetings stripping hhi of key ip. 

Given this is up in the air and we need to waste time and lawyer$ to 
reassess this it means I can't advance the turtle beach discussions 

I hate losing the momentum in that it violates everything I know about 
getting deals done. The deal just went from?0-30 likelihood to 50-50 at best 

If the bod costs us this deal I will loot< for them all to resign or I will 
resign 

The Bod is on the verge of losing you at least $10m personally 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

> From: Juergen Stark <juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com> 
>Date: March 29, 2013, 10:09:53 AM PDT 
>To: Ken Potashner <kpotashner@parametricsound.com> 
> Cc: Ron Doomink <rdoornink@aol.com>, Ken Fox <ken@stripesgroup,com>, Karen 
>Kenworthy <karen@stripesgroup.com>, Bruce Murphy 
> <Bruce.Murphy@turtlebeach.com> 
>Subject: Monday's meeting 
> 
>Ken. 
>In preparation for Monday it would be useful to get some context and 
> perspective from you. There are probably 3 types of deals we are 
> contemplating, each with pros/cons/challenges. Can you comment on your level 
>of interest and any additional pros/cons/challenges you see. I can also call 
>you this afternoon or Saturday if that's easier 
> 
> 1) Purchase exclusive, perpetual. transferable rights to use the IP for 
> consumer electronics (CE). Cash payment and potential ongoing royalty stream 
>back to PAMT for those rights. We could reduce this option to gaming only if 
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> license for all CE was not possible but preference is for all CE. 
>-Good fit forCE and gaming with Turtle Beach and keeps these segments 
>together 
> -Leaves commercial and health for PAMT 
>-Fencing off from commercial and health could be based on marketing and 
> retailing forCE and gaming only (fairly clean and easy) 
> - PAMT would have responsibility for defending and continuing to build the IP 
> portfolio? 
> - Need to determine how to value this portion of PAMT 
> - If only gaming segment, need to determine how to fence this off from CE 
> {which could be challenging) 
> 
> 2) Purchase portion of the PAMT along with above rights to CE market 
> (w/gaming). Cash in exchange for these rights and equity in PAMT going 
>forward. 
>- Creates strong relationship between the companies and ability for VTB to 
> participate in upside from other segments 
> -Equity easier to value and may make defending of value calculations easier 
> given the equity stake 
> - Rest of pros/cons similar to #1 above. 
> 
> 3) Purchase PAMT outright and license back rights to use IP for health segment 
>-Overheated stock market and PAMT valuation driven largely by anticipation of 
>future economics makes valuation challenging 
> -Would require VTB to launch commercial division, unrelated to current CE 
> activities, to gain value from digital signage/etc. 
>- Option could be "reduced" to purchase majority stake only (?) 
> - Perpetuation, expansion, and defense of IP would then move to VTB as part of 
> buying the company 
>-Assuming some team members would be needed to pursue health? 
> 
> 4) Purchase PAMT outright including rights to health 
> - Same valuation challenges as #3 and add requirement to fund pursuit of 
> health segment 
> - Is this of interest to PAMT? 
> 
> Let us know your thoughts please. Looking forward to Monday. 
> 
>Best, 
> Juergen 
> 
> 
>­
> 
> Juergen Stark 
>CEO 
> <http://www .turtlebeach.com> 
> 
>Turtle Beach, Inc. 
> juergen.stark@turtlebeach ,com 
> 100 Summit Lake Drive, Suite 100 
> Valhalla, NY 1 0595 
> +1 914-358-8807 
> www.turtlebeach.com <http://www.turtlebeach.com> 
> 
> <http://www.facebook.com/turtlebeach> Fan Us on Facebook 
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> <http://www. facebook.com/turtlebeach> 1 <http://Www .twitter.com/turtlebeach> 
>Follow Us on Twitter <http://www.twitter.com/turtlebeach> 1 

> <http://www.youtube.com/turtlebeachvideos> Watch Us on YouTube 
> <http://www.youtube.com/turtlebeachvideos> 
>This E-mail is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18, S.C. 
> §§ 2510-2521. The information contained in this email is confidential and Is 
> intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the 
> reader of tnis message IS not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified 
>that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication Is 
>strictly prohibited. Please advise the sender by reply email and immediately 
>delete the message and any attachments without copying or disclosing the 
> contents. Thanl< you. 
> 
> 
> 
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To: 
Cc: 
From: 
Sent: 
Subject 

Dufilho, Mark[mdufilho@hl.com) 
john toddUohn1228@earthllnk.net]; Jim BarnesOimbarnes@cox.net] 
Ken 
Fri 4/12/201312:16:25 PM 
Re: Brief call 

He said they are familiar with our technology and believe it will be highly relevant to future products 
amat:on plans on launching 

Sent from my iPad 

On Apr 12,2013, at12:01 PM, "Dufllho, Mark" <MDufill1o@HLcom> wrote: 

>On it. 
> 
> Mark Dufilho 
>Director 
> Consumer, Food & Retail Group 
> 
> HOULIHAN LOKEY 
> 214.220.8477 Direct 
> 214.682.2522 Mobile 
> MDufilho@HL.com 
> 
> From: Ken lmallto:ken.potashner@gmail.com] 
>Sent: Friday, April12, 2013 1:59PM 
>To: john todd; Dufilho, Mark; Jim Sames 
> Subject: Fwd: Brief call 
> 
>Just had a quick chat with him. He declared Amazon is interested in buying the company. 
> 
> Mark pis call him ASAP to figure out where this fits in our process 
> 
> Sent from my iPad 
> 
> Begin forwarded message: 
> 
>From: "Ceballos Encarnacion, Alex" <aceba@amazon.com> 
> Date: April 12, 2013, 11 :16:12 AM PDT 
> To: Ken <ken.potashner@gmail.com> 
> Subject: RE: Brief call 
> 
>Ken, 
> Thanks for the prompt response. 
>We understand that the company is evaluating strategic alternatives (per recent press release) and I 
would like to initiate a discussion to see if there is a way in which Amazon & Parametric can work 
together. 
> 
>Thanks, 
>Alex 
> 
> Alex Ceballos 
> Director, Worldwide Corporate Development 
> Amazon.com Inc 
> 535 Terry Ave North, 
>Seattle. WA 98109 
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> 0 : 206 266 7584 
> M: 206 902 6656 
> aceba@amazon.com 
> 
> 
> 
> From: Ken (mailto:ken.potashner@gmail.comj 
>Sent: Friday, April12, 2013 10:58 AM 
>To: Ceballos Encarnacion, Alex 
> Subject: Re: Brief call 
> 
>Please let me know what the topic regards. I am Chairman of the company. 
> 
> Sent from my iPad 
> 
>On Apr 12, 2013, at 10:39 AM, "Ceballos Encarnacion, Alex" <aceba@amazon.com> wrote: 
> 
>Ken, 
>Thanks for accepting my Linked In invite. Let me know if you have a few minutes to connect over the 
phone and the best way to reach you. It is related to Parametric Sound where I understand you serve on 
the board. 
> 
>Regards, 
>Alex 
> 
>Alex Ceballos 
> Director, Worldwide Corporate Development 
> Amazon.com Inc 
> 535 Terry Ave North, 
>Seattle, WA 98109 
> 0 : 206 266 7584 
> M: 206 902 6656 
> aceba@amazon.com 
> 
> 
>Please consider the environment before printing. 
> 
> This e-mail message and any attachments are for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may 
contain confidential information. If you are not an intended recipient, or an intended recipient's authorized 
agent, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail message or 
any attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender 
by reply e-mail and delete this e-mail message and any attachments from your computer system. 
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To: 
From: 
Sent: 
Subject 

ken potashner[ken.potashner@gmail.com] 
James Barnes 
Sun 6/2/2013 9:47:16 AM 
Re: update 

With that info I don't understand what they are doing? Waiting on Ken's okay 
or waiting on debt tender to commit? 
If 80-90% they should launch attorneys on definitive - - this deal is really 
strange. 

Have you shared health data/ size opportunity with Amazon? 

From: Ken Potashner <ken.potashner@gmail.com> 
Date: Sunday, June 2, 2013 9:42AM 
To: James Barnes <jbarnes@parametricsound.com> 
Subject Re: update 

This is fine with McD in. 

Just spoke to Juergen and his preference (and Kens ) is that we dont defend 
the stock in that premium on deal will look better. I told himno 
renegotiation of deal and he agrees. 

With that said I wont allow freefall on stock. 

Lets see how the stock performs tomorrow morning and then we will make the 
decision real time whether to hit the send button. We can have it cued up. 

On Sun, Jun 2, 2013 at 9:03AM, James Barnes <jbarnes@parametricsound.com> 
wrote: 
>Suggest not make rncdonalds a quote. Just reporting that we did what we said we 
> would do In the conf call. 
> 
> Whether to use Mcdonalds name or not is something I have no knowledge of the 
> rules. You have the general allowance of talking about it and and 8k is 
> different than a PR but I don't know the etiquette etc of PR. May want to 
> discuss with mossberg or tracy-- I don't know when you can use a name or not 
> and whether just mentioning as a description is something to consider. 
> 
> 
> 
> From: Ken Potashner <ken.potashner@gmail.com> 
>Date: Sunday, June 2, 2013 7:46AM 
>To: James Barnes <jimbarnes@cox.net> 
> Subject: update 
> 
>send me your latest rev based on our exchanges. I have a call with Jueregn 
> this afternoon to discuss 
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To: Ken Potashner[kpotashner@parametricsound.coml 
From: Juergen Stark 
Sent: Sat 8/3/2013 8:48:56 AM 
Subject: Fwd: Project Surround Investor Presentation 
Paris Press Release DRAFT 8.3.2013.doc 

Here are David's edits ... 

------- Forwarded message ------
From: David Lowey <david.lowey@turtlebeach.com> 
Date: Sat, Aug 3, 2013 at 5:37 PM 
Subject: Re: Project Surround Investor Presentation 
To: Juergen Stark <juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com> 

Juergen, 

I was already halfway through the document so I kept going and finished the edits. 

I cut back a lot of the repetitive statements but kept the additional points that Ken 
wanted to add by weaving them into existing paragraphs. I did remove the go-shop 
paragraph entirely. 

There is one note in the attached re: the hearing impaired technology, that I have 
retained with different language. 

We can send it to Ken or hold it back and wait to see what he produces. 

On Sat, Aug 3, 2013 at 10:41 AM, Juergen Stark <juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com> 
wrote: 

Wait for now. Ken wants to take a whack at it. Thanks 

On Sat, Aug 3, 2013 at 4:22PM, David Lowey <david.lowey@turtlebeach.com> 
wrote: 

Thank you for weighing in. My apologies for not responding more quickly this 
morning. I'll edit the release per your instructions. Do you want to review it once 
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more before I send it to PAMT? 

On Sat, Aug 3, 2013 at 8:57AM, Juergen Stark 
<juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com> wrote: 

FYI below on the press release ... 

·---- Forwarded message -----
From: Juergen Stark <juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com> 
Date: Sat, Aug 3, 2013 at 2:55PM 
Subject: Re: Project Surround Investor Presentation 
To: ken potashner <ken.potashner@gmail.com> 

Ok, David is an actual PR person ... SVP from Fleishman ... he's a pro and he 
can take ownership He gave some comments back on the last draft: 

Adjust language to "approximately $205m in 2012 revenues" to match 
presentation. 

Your quote cites "impressive operating margins" ... we said we were not going 
to do that. Latter part of quote repeats items already in the release about us. 

He has a concern related to CA on the hearing impaired citation (getting more 
info on this). 

Separately: 
1) On the ment1on of you on the board. That's fine although it make the 
situation with Carmine and Fred more difficult for us ... we were trying to avoid 
specifics at this point. Also, you guys will need to vote or declare that you are 
the designee on the PAMT side obviously. Andy could be the independent 
designee if your board so determined. We'd be good with that. 

2) Let's get rid of the "go shop" paragraph. You're not looking for an alternate 
and neither are we. Including it along with the sentences about evaluating 
multiple options makes it sound like you guys were desperate, we were the 
last resort, but you are eagerly searching for alternative bidders. It's not 
required as indicated by the other sample merger releases (like the one Dan 
circulated). 
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On Sat, Aug 3, 2013 at 2:21 PM, ken potashner <ken.potashner@gmail.com> 
wrote: 

after the call at 8 then i am going to finalize the release, it is a release 
designed by committee. Everyones input and especially GC will be 
factored in. Once we get thru this week we will define a more efficient 
process, 

On Sat, Aug 3, 2013 at 2:10AM, Juergen Stark 
<juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com> wrote: 

Couple things: 
1. Yes, you're correct on the cover .. .fine as is. 

2. I've attached some graphics from the Parametric side .. .let's see tf we 
can use these in right spots 

3. I think we should lean more towards using the "HyperSound" term 
vs. Paramatric Audio, etc. Since we are much more likely to keep that 
term going forward. 

4. I've attached a drawing of a more visual page for the vision point. 
Can we create something like that with a nice graphic. Note, it should 
not look too much like a precise growth curve that anybody tries to 
convert into numbers ... it should be more conceptual. We do not want 
to set expectations on time or scale with it. This chart is important to 
Ken's point on vision so worth making it really look good. The chart 
should show audio technology patents as a foundation and then show 
how e become a diverse audio technology company over time with 
VTB and PAMT products layering on. 

Thanks 

On Fri, Aug 2, 2013 at 11:44 PM, Hariharan, Siddharth X 
<siddharth.hariharan@jpmorgan.com> wrote: 

As noted, the last page is a placeholder until Dechert confirms. You 
are right in that it will provide a range, not a specific date. 
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I believe the cover reflects what you and David L suggested we 
use. Let us know 1f otherwise. 

We will amend page 18 

We will try and change the color palette, but will not be able to 
circulate a version that reflects that change till some point 
tomorrow. 

Siddharth Hariharan I Vice President I Consumer Retail 
Investment Banking 1 J.P. Morgan 

2029 Century Park East, 38th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90067 
T: 310 860 7253 1 F: 312 212 5931 I M: 812 39•1 35221 
siddharth.hariharan@jpmorgan.com 

Alternate contact: Redetha Deason 1 T: 310 860 7216 1 F: 310 
220 65441 redetha.d.deason@jpmorgan.com 

From: Juergen Stark [mailto:juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com] 
Sent: Friday, August 02, 2013 2:30PM 
To: Hariharan, Siddharth X 
Cc: Stroud, Ryan L; kpotashner@parametricsound.com; 
karen@stripesgroup.com; david.lowey@turtlebeach.com; 
Bob.Picunko@turtlebeach.com; dmossberg@threepa.com; 
JBames@parametricsound.com; Price, Katie; Kotte, Sanjay K 
Subject: Re: Project Surround Investor Presentation 

timing needs to be much more ranged on the last page. we 
shouldn't have a close date that is specific to a day right? 
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i think we had a new cover graphic. 

page 18 is fine from a content standpoint but extremely boring .. .! 
was hoping for something more graphic/visual. 

On Fri, Aug 2, 2013 at 11:24 PM, Hariharan, Siddharth X 
<siddharth.hariharan@jpmorgan.com> wrote: 

Juergen/Ken - please review page 18 and let us know if this helps 
address the vision point you wanted to come across. 

Siddharth Hariharan I Vice President 1 Consumer Retail 
Investment Banking I J.P. Morgan 

2029 Century Park East, 38th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90067 
T: 310 860 72531 F: 312 212 5931 I M: 812 391 35221 
siddharth.hariharan@jpmorgan.com 

Alternate contact: Redetha Deason 1 T: 31 0 860 72161 F: 31 0 
220 65441 redetha.d.deason@jpmorgan.com 

From: Stroud, Ryan L 
Sent: Friday, August 02, 2013 2:23 PM 
To: juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com; 
kpotashner@parametricsound.com; karen@stripesgroup.com; 
david. lowey@tu rtlebeach. com; Bob. P icunko@turtlebeach.com; 
dmossberq@threepa.com; JBarnes@parametricsound.com; Price, 
Katie 
Cc: Hariharan, Siddharth X; Kotte, Sanjay K; Price, Katie 
Subject: Project Surround Investor Presentation 

Exhibit Page Number 379 

CONFIDENT!AL- SUBJECT TO COURT APPROVED PROTECTIVE ORDER PAMT0056833 



 
PA463

Juergen Stark 

CEO 

All - please find attached a draft of the latest investor presentation_ 
Please note tllat pg. 19 is outstanding as we are awaiting 
comments from legal. 

Regards, 

Ryan 

Ryan Stroud 1 Associate 1 Consumer & Retail Investment Banking 1 
J.P. Morgan 1383 Madison Avenue, 38th Floor, New York, NY 
10179 

T: 212 622 62581 F: 917 464 64631 C: 254 855 4174 f 
ryan.l.stroud@jpmorgan.com 1 jpmorgan.com 

Alternate Contact: Rosemarie Cialini IT: 212 272 35921 F: 917 
937 57731 Rosemarie.Cialini@jpmorgan.com 

This email is confidential and subject to important disclaimers and 
conditions including on offers for the purchase or sale of securities, 
accuracy and completeness of information, v iruses, confidentiality, 
legal privilege, and legal entity disclaimers, available at 
http://www.jpmorgan.com/pages/disclosures/email. 
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Turtle Beach Logo 

Turtle Beach1 Inc. 

j uerqen .stark@tu rtlebeach. com 

100 Summit Lake Drive, Suite 100 
Valhalla, NY 10595 

+1 914-358-8807 

www.turtlebeach.com 

Facebook Icon Fan Us on Facebook 1 Twitter Icon Follow Us on Twitter I YouTube 
Icon Watch Us on YouTube 

Juergen Stark 

This E-mail is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy 
Act, 18, S.C.§§ 2510-2521. The information contained in this email 
is confidential and is intended only for the use of the individual or 
entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the 
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, 
distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. 
Please advise the sender by reply email and immediately delete the 
message and any attachments without copying or disclosing the 
contents. Thank you. 

This email is confidential and subject to important disclaimers and 
conditions including on offers for the purchase or sale of securities, 
accuracy and completeness of information, viruses, confidentiality, 
legal privilege, and legal entity disclaimers, available at 
http://www.jpmorgan.com/paqes/disclosures/email. 
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CEO 
Turtle Beach Logo 

Turtie Beach, Inc. 
juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com 
100 Summit Lake Drive, Suite 100 
Valhalla, NY 10595 
+1 914-358-8807 
www.turtlebeach.com 

Facebook leon Fan Us on Facebook 1 Twitter Icon Follow Us on Twitter 1 YouTube 
Icon Watch Us on YouTube 

This E-mail is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 
18, S.C.§§ 2510-2521. The information contained in this email is 
confidential and is intended only for the use of the individual or entity 
named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended 
recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or 
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. Please advise the 
sender by reply email and immediately delete the message and any 
attachments without copying or disclosing the contents. Thank you. 

Juergen Stark 
CEO 
Turtle Beach Logo 

Turtle Beach, Inc. 
juergen.stark@turilebeach.com 
100 Summit Lake Drive, Suite 100 
Valhalla, NY 10595 
+1 914-358-8807 
www .turtlebeach.com 

Facebook Icon Fan Us on Facebook 1 Twitter leon Follow Us on Twitter I You Tube 
Icon Watch Us on YouTube 

This E-mail is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18, 
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S.C. §§ 2510-2521 . The information contained in this email is confidential and 
is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the 
reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified 
that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly 
prohibited. Please advise the sender by reply email and immediately delete 
the message and any attachments without copying or disclosing the contents. 
Thank you. 

Juergen Stark 
CEO 
Turtle Beach Logo 

Turtle Beach, Inc. 
juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com 
100 Summit Lake Drive, Suite 100 
Valhalla, NY 10595 
+1 914-358-8807 
www. tu rtlebeach. com 

Facebook leon Fan Us on Facebook 1 Twitter Icon Follow Us on Twitter 1 YouTube 
Icon Watch Us on YouTube 

This E-mail is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18, 
S.C. §§ 2510-2521. The information contained in this email is confidential and 
is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the 
reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified 
that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly 
prohibited. Please advise the sender by reply email and immediately delete 
the message and any attachments without copying or disclosing the contents. 
Thank you. 
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David Lowey 
Public Relations 
Turtle Beach Logo 

Turtle Beach, Inc. 
david.lowev@turtlebeach.com 
100 Summit Lake Drive, Suite 100 
Valhalla, NY 10595 
www.turtlebeach.com 

Facebook Icon Fan Us on Facebook 1 Twitter Icon Follow Us on Twitter I YouTube 
Icon Watch Us on YouTube 

This E-mail is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18, S.C. 
§§ 2510-2521. The information contained in this email is confidential and is 
intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of 
this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any 
dissemination, distribution or copying of this communicatron is strictly prohibited. 
Please advise the sender by reply email and immediately delete the message 
and any attachments without copying or disclosing the contents. Thank you. 

Juergen Stark 
CEO 
Turtle Beach Logo 

Turtle Beach, Inc. 
juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com 
100 Summit Lake Drive, Suite 100 
Valhalla, NY 10595 
+1 914-358-8807 
www.turtlebeach.com 

Facebook Icon Fan Us on Facebook 1 Twitter Icon Follow Us on Twitter 1 YouTube 
Icon Watch Us on YouTube 

This E-mail is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18, S.C.§§ 
2510-2521. The information contained in this email is confidential and is intended 
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only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message 
is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination; 
distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. Please advise the 
sender by reply email and immediately delete the message and any attachments 
without copying or disclosing the contents. Thank you. 

David Lowey 
Public Relations 
Turtle Beach Logo 

Turtle Beach, Inc. 
david .lowey@tu rtlebeach. com 
100 Summit Lake Drive, Suite 100 
Valhalla, NY 10595 
www .turtlebeach. com 

Facebook Icon Fan Us on Facebook I Twitter Icon Follow Us on Twitter 1 YouTube 
Icon Watch Us on YouTube 
This E-mail is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18, S.C.§§ 2510-
2521 . The information contained in this email is confidential and is intended only for the 
use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the 
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or 
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. Please advise the sender by reply 
email and immediately delete the message and any attachments without copying or 
disclosing the contents. Thank you. 

Juergen Stark 
CEO 
Turtle Beach Logo 
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Turtle Beach, Inc. 
juergen.stark@turtlebeach.com 
100 Summit Lake Drive, Suite 100 
Valhalla, NY 1 0595 
+1 914-358-8807 
www.turtlebeach.com 

Facebook Icon Fan Us on Facebook I Twitter Icon Follow Us on Twitter I YouTube 
Icon Watch Us on Youlube 
This E-mail is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18, S.C. §§ 2510-
2521 . The information contained in this email is confidential and is intended only for the 
use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the 
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or 
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. Please advise the sender by reply 
email and immediately delete the message and any attachments without copying or 
d isclosing the contents. Thank you. 

Exhibit Page Number 386 

CONFIDENTIAL- SUBJECT TO COURT APPROVED PROTECTIVE ORDER PAMT0056840 



 
PA470

EXHIBIT I 

EXHIBIT I 
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10-Q I paramelric_10q-123113.btm QUARTERLY REPORT 

(Mark one) 

UNlTED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-Q 

Page I of32 

liD QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECfiON 13 OR l5(d) OF THE SECURlTffiS EXCHANGE ACT OF 
1934 

For the qmuterly period ended December 31, 201 3 

Commission File Number: 000-54020 

....---..... 
PAR~/VIETRIC.JSOUND' 
~ C ORPORATION 

PARAMETRIC SOUND CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cbat·ter) 

Nevada 
(State or other jurisdiction of 

incOt'POt'atiou or m•gauizatiou) 

27-2767540 
(I.R.S. Employer 

Tdentification Number) 

13771 Danielson Street, Suite L 
Poway, Califoruia 

(Address of principal executive office..~) 

(888) 477-2150 

92064 
(Zip Code) 

(Registrant's telepbone number, including a rea code) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (I) bas filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to 
file such reports), and (2) has been subjectto such filing requirements for the past 90 days. liD Yes 0 No 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, 
every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pw·suant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this 
chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period t11at the registraol was required to submit and post such~ 
tiles). liD Yes 0 No 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is n large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a 
smaUer reporting company. Seethe definitions of"large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting 
company" in Rule 12b-2 of I he Exchange Act. 

Large accelerated filer 0 Accelerated filer IBJ Non-accelerated filer 0 
(Do not check if a smaller 
reporting company) 

Smaller reporting company 0 

Indicate by checl< mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange 
Act). 0 Yes IBJ No 
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Page 2 of32 

The number of shares of Common Stock, $0.00 I par value, outstandin~-t on February 7, 2014 was 37,558,414. 
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PAR.AM:ETRIC SOUND CORPORATION 
iNDEX 

MRT I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Page 3 of32 

Item 1. Financial Statements (reflecting periods prior to the Merger with Turtle Beach -see Note 12 on Page 17): 

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 (unaudited) and September 30, 2013 4 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for 1he three months ended December 31, '2013 and 
2012 {Lmaudited) 5 

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the tnree months ended December 31, 20 13 and 
2012 (unaudited) 6 
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
AND OTHER INFORMATION 

This Quarterly Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27 A of the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended, or the "Securities Act,'' and Section 2 1 E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the 
"Exchange Act." AJI statements other than statements of historical facts cont:rined in this report are forward-looking 
statements. In some cases, you can identifY forward-looking statements by terminology such as "may," "could," "will," 
"would," "should," "expect," "plan," "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "intend," "predict," "seek." "contemplate," 
"potential" or "continue" or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements 
include, but are not limited to, statements about: 

Risks related to our merger with VTB Holdings, lnc. ("Turtle Beach") and related transactions, as described in more 
detail in this report; 
Our history of losses; 
The limited number of suppliers for some of our components; 
Our market being characterized by rapidly advancing technology; 
The impact of competitive products, technologies and pricing; 
Manufacturing capacity constraints and difficulties; 
Local, regional, national and international economic conditions and events and the impact they may have on us and 
our customers; 
Continued volatility in the credit and equity markets and the resulting effect on the general economy; 
Our success at managing the risks involved in the foregoing items; 
The commercialization of our proprietary technologies; 
The implementation of our business model within Turt.le Beach and strategic plans for our business and technology; 
The scope of protection we are able to establish and maintain for intellectual property rights covering our technology; 
Our belief that existing resources and those of Turtle Beach will provide sufficient liquidity to meet our funding 
requirements over the next year; 
Our belief that we have strong commercial, consumer and healthcare market opportunities worldwide; 
Our expectation of increased product sales for the balance of calendar 20 14; 
Estimates of our expenses, future revenues, capjtal requirements and our needs for additional financing; 
The timing or likelihood of regulatory filings and approvals including with respect to HSS products as medical 
devices; 
Our financial performance; and 
Developments relating to our competitors and our industry. 

Forward-looking statements relate to future events or to our future .fmancial perfonnance and involve known and 
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially 
different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed. or implied by these forward-looking statements. 
Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations include, among other things, those listed 
under "Risk Factors" in Part I, "Item lA. Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2013, those listed under "Risks Related to Turtle Beach's Business" in the Defmitive Proxy Statement {the 
"Proxy Statement") on Schedule 14A filed with the SEC on December 3, 2013 and in Part IT, "Item lA. Risk Factors" of this 
report. 

AJI forward- looking statements in this report reflect our views as of the date of this report based on information with 
respect to future events and are subject to the above referenced and other risks, uncertainties and assumptions relating to our 
operations, results of operations, industry and future growth. Given these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, we caution you 
not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Except as required by law, we assume no obligation to update 
or revise these forward-looking statements for any reason, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 

As described in Note 12 - "Subsequent Events" in the notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated fmancial statements 
included in Part I, Item 1 of this Porro 10-Q quarterly report, and as previously disclosed in the Company's current report on 
Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") on January 16,2014, on January 15, 2014, the 
Company completed the merger (the ''Merger") of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Paris Acquisition Corp., with and into Turtle 
Beach resulting in a significant change in the nature and scope of the Company's operations. The financial statements and 
related discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations by management presented in this report covers a 
three-month period that ended prior to the completion of the Merger. Operating results for the three months ended December 
31, 2013 may not be indicative of results for any future interim period after the Merger. 
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Parametric Sound Cot-poration 
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets 

(reflecting periods prior to the Merger witb Turtle Beach - see Note 12) 

December 31, 
2013 September 30, 

{unaudited} 2013 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,667,169 $ 1,597,879 
Accounts receivable 117,518 177,453 
lnventories, net 723,742 723,420 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 172,504 95 932 

Total currenl assets 5,680,933 2,594,684 
Property and equipment, net 211 ,609 219,369 
lntangible assets, net 1,453,993 12451,298 

Total assets $ 72346!535 $ 4,265,351 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 1,110,793 $ 862,522 
Accrued liabilities 97,110 183,716 
Capital lease obligation - current portion 37928 37 486 

Total current liabilities 1,245,831 1,083,724 

Capital lease obligation - long term 84,962 94,611 

Total liabilities 1,330,793 1, 178,335 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 9) 

Stockholders' equity: 
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, authorized 1,000,000 shares, none issued and 

outstanding 
Common stock. $0.001 par value, authorized 50,000,000 shares, 7,268,622 and 

6,835,321 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 7,269 6,835 
Additional paid-in capital 23,065,798 17,383,196 
Accumulated deficit {17,057,325) ~14!303,015) 

Total stockholders' equity 62015!742 3.087,016 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 71346,535 $ 42265,351 

See accompanying notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements 
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Parametric Sound Corporation 
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Opel'Btions 

(reflecting periods prior to the Merger with Turtle Beach- see Note 12) 
(unaudited) 

Page 7 of32 

'l'lnee Montlls Ended 

Revenues: 
Product saJes 
Other t•evenue 

Total revenues 
Cost of revenues 
Gross profit 

Operating expenses: 
Selling, general and administrative 
Research and development 
Business b·ansaction 

Total operating expenses 

Loss from operations 

Olher (expense) income: 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Other 

Net loss 

Net loss per basic and diluted common share 
Weighted average common shares used to compute net loss per basic and diluted 

common share 

$ 

$ 

$ 

December 31, 
2013 2012 

50,160 $ 94,368 
17,703 14,306 
67,863 108,674 
36!018 54,056 
31,845 54,618 

1,248,505 916,597 
539,096 391,853 
996,678 

2,784.279 1,308,450 

(2,752,434) (1 ,253,832) 

1,231 3,075 
(1,514) 
{1,593) { 1,363) 
(1,876) I 712 

{2,754!310) $ (1,2521120) 

{0.39) $ (0.20) 

7,037,195 6,409,231 

See accompanying notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements 
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Parametric Sound Corporation 
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash F lows 

(reflecting periods prior to the Merger with Turtle Beach - see .Note 12) 
(unaudited) 

Page 8 of32 

Tbree Months Ended 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Net loss 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operatiiig activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Warranty provision 
Non-cash inventory reserve 
Share-based compensation 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Inventories 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Warranty settlements 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 
Capital expenditures for property and equipment 
Patent costs paid 
Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash Plows From Financing Activities: 
Proceeds rrom sale of common stock 
Offering costs paid 
Proceeds rrom exercise of stock options 
Payments on capital lease obligation 
Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Information: 
Interest paid 

$ 

$ 

$ 

December 31, 
2013 2012 

(2,754,3 I 0) $ ( 1,252.120) 

64,618 58,020 
(96) 3,794 

(5,046) ( 13,604) 
529,219 253,663 

59,935 24,038 
(93,441) 22,836 

4,724 26,414 
248,271 8,670 
(84,220) 14,769 

{21290) {21616) 
(2,032,636) (856,136) 

(23,930) (4,474) 
{35,623) {181347) 
(59,553) {22,821) 

5, 100,004 
(20,668) 
91,350 1,874 
(9,207) 

5,161,479 I 874 

3,069,290 (877,083) 
1,597,879 5,527,647 
4,667,169 $ 4,650,564 

1,514 $ 

See accompanying notes to Interim condensed consolidated financial statements 
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Parametric Sound Corporation 
Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

(unaudited) 
December 31, 2013 (prior to the Merger with Turtle Beach) 

Note l - Ucscription of Business and Basis of Accoundng/Presentation 

Organization 

Page 9 of32 

Parametric Sound Corporation ("Parametric" or the "Company") is a teclmology company focused on delivering novel 
audio solutions through its HyperSound® or "HSS®" technology platform, that pioueered the practical application of 
parametric acoustic technology for generating audible sound along a directional \J itrasonic column. The creation of sound 
using the Company's technology also creates a unique sound image distinct from traditional audio systems. In addit ion to its 
comrnercjal product business, the Company is targeting its tec!Ulology for new uses in consumer markets including computers, 
video gaming, televisions and home audio along with other commercial markets including casino gaming and cinema. The 
Company is also researching and developing health applications for persons with hearing loss. 

The Company was incorporated in Nevada on June 2, 2010 as a new, wholly owned subsidiary ofLRAD Corporation in 
order to effect the 100% separation and spin-off of the HSS business (the "Spin-Ofl"). On September 27, 20 I 0, the Spin-Off 
was completed and the Company became a sta11d-alone, independent, publicly traded company. In June 2012, the Company 
formed PSC Licensing Corp. ("PSC"), in October 2012 formed HyperSound Health, Inc. ("HHI") and in July 2013 formed 
Paris Acquisition Corp., all as wholly owned subsidiaries. The Company's corporate headquarters are located in Poway, 
California. Principal markets for the Company's products are North America, Europe and Asia. 

Meq:er with Turtle Beach 
On January 15, 2014, the Company completed a merger (the "Merger") of its wholly-oWited subsidiary, Paris Acquis1tion 

Corp., a Delaware corporation C'Merger Sub"), with and into VTB Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Turtle Beach"), in 
accordance with the terms and conditions ofthe Agreement and Plan ofMerger dated August 5, 2013 among the Company, 
Turtle Beach and Merger Sub (the "Merger Agreement''). As a result of the Merger, Turtle Beach, the surviving entity in the 
Merger, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Compnny. As the Merger was not completed until after December 31, 
2013, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have not been prepared to include the balance sheet or 
results of operations ofTw1le Beach, and thus reflect only the Company and its subsidiaries prior to the Merger. See Note 12 
- "Subsequent Events" for more infonnation on the Merger. 

Basis of Accounting 
The accompanying unaudited interim financial statements have bew prepared by the Company in accordance with U.S. 

generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for interim financial information and pursuant to the applicable rules and 
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). In the opinion of management, the accompanying financial 
statements contain all adjusbnents necessary in order make the financial statements not misleading. The condensed 
consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2013 was derived rrom the Company's most recent audited fmancial 
statements, but does not include all disclosures required by GAAP for complete annual financial statements. TI1e financial 
statements herein should be read in conjunction with the Company's audited financial statements and notes thereto for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 
30, 2013. Operating results for the three months ended December 3 1, 2013 are not indicative ofresults to be expected for the 
Company, now a part of the merged entity, for any other future interim period after the Merger. 1l1e financial statements 
should also be read in conjtmction with the financial statements and information included in the Company's Definitive Proxy 
Statement {the "Proxy Statement") on Schedule 14A for the special meeting of stockholders held on December 27, 2013 (the 
.. Special Meeting''), a copy of which was :filed with the SEC on December 3, 2013. 

Basjs ofPresentatjon 
The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts ofthc Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. 

All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. Where necessary, the prior year's 
information has been reclassified to confonn to current period statement presentation. These reclassifications bad no etrect on 
previously reported results of operations or accumulated deficit. 
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Use of Estimates 

Parametric Sound Corporation 
Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Fi11ancial Statements 

(unaudited) 
December 31, 2013 (prior to the Merger with T urtle Beach) 

Page 10 of32 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the fmancial statements, as weU as th.e reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. These estimates and assumptions include, but are not limited to, assessing the 
following: valuation of inventory, valuation of intangible assets, grant date fak value of stock options and warrants, share· 
based compensation expense, valuation of acquired intangible assets and valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets. 

Financial Instruments 
At December 31, 2013, there was no difference between the carrying values ofthe Company's cash equivalents and fair 

market value. For certain financial instruments, including accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, the 
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to their relatively short maturities. 

The Company does not have any financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 

Loss Per Common Share 
Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss for the period by the weighted-average number of shares of 

common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per common share reflects the potential dilution of securities 
that could share in the earnings of the Company. Potential common shares relating to outstanding stock options and warrants 
to acquire a total of I ,394,728 and 1,692,464 shares of common stock were outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. These securities are not included in the computation of diluted net Joss per common share for all periods 
presented as their inclusion would be antidilutive due to losses incurred by the Company in such periods. 

Business Transaction 
For the three months ended December 31, 2013, the Company incurred $996,678 of business transaction costs related to 

preparing for the merger with Thrtle Beach and related litigation consisting of legal, investment bank, accounting and related 
costs and expenses. TI1ese costs are net of$453, 153 of litigation related legal fees and costs payable by the Company's D&O 
insurance carrier (see Note 9). 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
The Company reviews new accounting standards as issued. Although some of these accounting standards issued or 

effective after the end of the Company's previous fiscal year may be applicable to the Company, management has not 
identified any new standards that bad, or are expected to have, a significant impact on the Company's financial statements. 

Sybseguent Events 
Management has evaluated events subsequent to December 3 1, 2013 through the date that the accompanying interim 

condensed consolidated fmancial statements were filed with the SEC for transactions and other events which may require 
adjustment of and/or disclosure in such financial statements. 
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Parametric Sound Corporation 
Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

(unaudited) 
Oecember 3t, 2013 (prior to tbe Merger with Turtle Beach) 

2. Inventories, net 

Inventory is recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of substantially all of the Company's 
inventory is determined by the weighted average cost method. Inventories consisted of the fo!Jowing: 

December 31, September 30, 
2013 2013 

Finished goods $ 277,209 $ 260,646 
Work in process 75,664 43,494 
Raw materials 426,506 479,963 

779,379 784,103 
Reserve for obsolescence {55!637) {60,683) 

$ 723,742 $ 723!420 

The Company relies on one supplier for film for its HSS products. The Company's ability to manufaclurtl its HSS 
products could be adversely affected if it were to lose its sole source supplier and was unable to fi nd an alternative supplier. 

The reserve for obsolescence was reduced by a $5,046 non-cash inventory reserve reduction in the three months ended 
December 31,2013 through the use of previously reserved legacy HSS inventory in the production ofHSS products and 
prototypes. The Company expects to continue to realize non-cash invemory reserve reductions through the use of such 
previously reserved parts. 

3. Propnty and Equipment, net 

Property and equipment consisted of the following: 

Equipment 
Research equipment under capital lease 
Tooling 
Furniture and office equipment 
Leasehold improvements 

Ac.cumulated depreciation 

December 31, 
2613 

$ 198,1 17 
139,967 
125,433 
88,002 
27,133 

578,652 
(367,043) 

$ 2 11,609 

September 30, 
2013 

$ 195,438 
139,967 
125,433 

75,950 
17,934 

554,722 
{335,353) 

$ 219,369 

Depreciation expense was $31,690 and $25,884 for the three months ended December 3 1, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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Paramebi c. Sound Corporation 
Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated J?inancial Statements 

(unaudited) 
December 31, 2013 (prior to the Merger with Turtle Beach) 

4. Intangible Assets, net 

Intangible assets consist of the following: 

December 31, September 30, 
2013 2013 

Purchased technology $ 1,225,000 $ 1,225,000 
Patents 486,766 452,040 
Defensive patents 190,213 190,213 
Licenses and trademarks 19,445 18,548 

1,92 1,424 1,885,80 1 
Accumulated amortization (467,431) (434,503) 

$ 1,4532993 $ 1,451!298 

Aggregate amortization expense for the Company's intangible assets was $32,928 and $32,136 during the three months 
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

As of December 3 1, 2013 estimated intangible assets amortization expense for each of the next five :fiscal years and 
thereafter are as follows: 

Fiscal Years Ending September 30, 
2014 (9 months remaining) 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
Thereafter 

5. Accrued Liabilities 

Accrued liabilities consists of the following· 

Payroll and related 
Warranty reserve 
Customer deposits 
Accrued patent and research costs 
Deferred rent 
Other 

10 

Estimated 
Amortization 

Expense 
$ 98,024 

December 31, 
2013 

$ 68,320 
7,754 
2,202 

14,876 
3,958 

$ 97,110 

124,390 
116,7 19 
108,915 
107,703 
898,242 

September 30, 
2013 

$ 68,292 
10,140 

682 
83,088 
17,661 
3,853 

$ 183,71 6 
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Parametric Sound Corporation 
Notes to Interim Condensed Co.nsoJidated Financial Statements 

(unaudited) 
December 31,2013 (prior to tbe Merger with Turtle Beach) 

Details of the estimated wananzy liability ru'e as follows: 

Begilming balance 
Warranty provision 
Warranty settlements 
Ending balance 

6. Capital Lease Obligation 

$ 

Three Months Ended 
December 31, 

2013 2012 
10,140 $ 4,242 

(96) 3,794 
-.------.!(..:;l2,~29:.,::..0) (2,616) 
~$===7~, 7~5;,;4 $ 5,420 

The capital lease obligation is for research equipment (see Note 3). Ammtization ofthe asset under the capital lease is 
included in depreciation and amortization expense and the accumulated amortization was $43,333 at December 31, 2013. 

Future minimum lease payments for each year of the capital lease are as follows: 

2014 (9 months remaining) 
2015 
2016 
2017 
Total payments 
Less amount representing interest 
Present value of minimum payments 
Less current portion 

7. Share-Based Compensation 

$ 

$ 

32,166 
42,888 
42,888 
14,296 

132,238 
(9,348) 

122,890 
(37,928) 
84,962 

The Company's 2012 Stock Option Plan, as amended (the "2012 Plan") authorized the gl'ailt of options to purchase up to 
ru1 aggregate of 1,700,000 shares ofthe Company's common stock to directors, officers, employees and consultants. At 
December 31, 2013, a total of 190,500 shares were available for grant under the 2012 Plan. At December 31,2013, the 
Company also had outstanding options to purchase up to 25,500 shares of the Company's common stock 1hat were granted 
outside of the 2012 Plan as an inducement grant in accordance with NASDAQ rules. 

On October 30, 2013, the Board of Directors adopted, and on December 27, 2013 the stockholders approved, the 2013 
Stock-Based Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2013 Plan''), but the 2013 Plan did not become effective until consummation 
of the Merger on January 15, 2014. The total number of shares of common stock authorized for grant under the 2013 Plan is 
2,250,000 shares plus the shares authorized to be granted but not issued under the 2012 Plan, as amended (115,500 shares as of 
January 15, 2014) plus any shares that may become available through forfeitures or otherwise terminate. 

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to. determine the estimated fair value .of each option as of its 
grant date or any revaluation date, and the grant date fair value is recognized as non-cash based compensation expense over the 
expected vesting teon of options. The inputs to the Black-Scholes option-pricing model are subjective and generally require 
significant analysis and judgment to develop. No options were granted during the three months ended December 31, 2012. TI1e 
following table sets fmth the significant weighted-average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model and tbe calculation of 
stock-based compensation cost (rumualized percentages): 
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Parametric Sound Corporation 
Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

(unaudited) 
December 31, 2013 (prior to the Merger witb Turtle Beach) 

Volatility 
Risk-free interest rate 
Forfeiture rate 
Dividend yield 
Expected life in years 
Weighted average fair value of options granted 

Three Mootbs Eoded 
December 31, 

2013 2012 
88% 

0.73% 
10.00% 
0.00% 
3.31 

$6.84 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

Expected volatility is based on the h istorical volatility of the Company's common stock over the period commensurate 
with the expected life of the options. The d sk-free interest rate is based on rates published by the Federal Reserve Board. The 
dividend yield of zero is based on the fact tbat the Company has never paid cash dividends and has no present intention to pay 
cash dividends. The Company has a smaU number of option grants and limited exercise history. Accordingly, for all new 
option grants tbe Company bas applied the simplified method prescribed by SEC Staff Accounting BuUetin I I 0, Share-Based 
Payment: Certain Assumptions Used in Valuation Methods- Expected Term, to estimate expected life (computed as vesting 
term plus contractual term divided by two). The estimated forfeiture rate was estimated by class of employee. Forfeitures are 
estimated at the time of the grant and revised in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates, or if the 
Company updates its estimated forfeiture rate. Such amounts, if any, wi II be recorded as a cumulative adjustment in the period 
in which the estimate is changed. 

The Company recorded share-based compensation in its interim condensed consolidated statements of operations for the 
relevant periods as follows: 

Selling, general and administrative 
Research and development 

$ 

Three Mootbs Ended 
December 31, 

2013 2012 
410,248 $ 191,228 

..,....--___;1..:..18.:;,!,9;;_;7~1 62,435 
,;,$==,;,5,;..29~,2;.,1.;,.9 $ 253,663 

As ofDecember 31,2013 total estimated compensation cost relating to stock options granted but not yet vested was 
approximately $}.26 million. This cost can vary with respect to non-employee options based on changes in stock price and 
other valuation inputs. The remaining estimated cost is expected to be recognized over the weighted average period of J .25 
years. 

The following table summarizes stock option activity for the period: 

Outstanding October I, 2013 
Granted 
Canceled/expired 
Exercised 

Outstanding December 31, 2013 
(1) 

Exercisable December 31,2013 

Number 
of Shares 

1,348,354 
5,000 

(29,500) 

1,323,854 
933,644 

Weighted 
Average 
E xercise 

Price 
$5.51 

$11:76 

$3.10 

$5.58 

$4.34 

Aggregate 
Intrinsic 
Value (2) 

$ 11,217,232 
$ 8,957,129 

(1) Options outstanding are exercisable at prices ranging from $1.50 to $16.92 per share and expire in 2015 to 2018. 
(2) Aggregate intrinsic value is based on the closing price of the Company' s common stock on December 31, 2013 of 
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$13.85. 

Subsequent to December 31, 2013, a total of $211,333 was received from the exercise of options and the issuance of 
50,967 shares of common stock. For additLonal information with respect to the 2013 Plan, see Note 12-"Subsequent Events". 
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that it is more likely than not that the Company will be able to generate sufficient future taxable income in the respective tax 
jurisdictions. Judgment's regarding future profitability may change due to future market conditions, changes in U.S. or 
international tax laws and other factors. The Company did not record a valuation allowance in any periods presented as 
management believes that it is more likely than not that deferred income tax assets will be utilized against future taxabie 
income based upon its expected financial performance in the future. The Company will assess the realjzation of deferred 
income tax assets on an ongoing basis. 

The Company accounts for uncertain tax posit ions by reporting a liability for unrecognjzed tax benefits resulting from 
uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax 
benefits are recognized in the income tax provision in the ac-companying consolidated statements of operations. 

Foreign Currency 

The functional currency of the Company' s subsidiary is the local currency. Tite assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, 
therefore, translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect at each balance sheet date. Revenues and expense accounts are 
translated at weighted-average monthly exchange rates during the period. Translation adjustments are accumulated as a 
separate component of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income within stockholders' (deficit) equity. Cumulative 
foreign currency translation adjustments constitute the sole component of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income. 
Poreign currency transaction gains and losses resulting from or expected to result from transactions denominated in a currency 
other than the functional currency are recognized in other expense, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations. There were no foreign currency transaction gains and losses for the periods prior to the acquisition of Lygo. 
floreign currency transaction losses for the period ended September 28, 2013 was $0.3 million, net of derivative. Foreign 
currency transaction gains and losses for the YClll' ended December 3 t, 2012 was insignificant. 

Segment Information 

Operating segments are components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is available and is evaluated 
regularly by the Company's chief operating decision maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing 
performance. The CODM is the ChiefExecutive Officer. 

The Company operates as one operating segment. The CODM manages the Company's operations on a consolidated basis for 
purposes of allocating resources.. The CODM reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis, accompanied by 
information about revenue by geographic regjon for purposes of allocating resources and evaluating financial performance. 

Net (Loss) lncome per Share of Common Stock 

Basic and diluted net (loss) income per share of common stock is presented in conformity with the two-class method required 
for participating securities. Holders of Series A convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive noncumulative dividends 
when and if declared by the board of directors and are payable prior and in preference to any dividends on shares of the 
Company's common stock. In the event a dividend is paid on common stock, the convertible preferred stockholders are 
entitled to a share of that dividend in proportion to the holders of common shares on an as-if conve.rted basis. The Series A 
convertible preferred stock is considered a participating security. Holders of participating securities do not have a contractual 
obligation to share in the 
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Company's losses. In accordance with the two-class method, earnings allocated to these participating securities and the related 
number of outstanding shares of the participating securities, which include contractual participation rights in und]stributed 
earnings, have been excluded from the computation of basic and diluted net (loss) income per share of common stock. 

Under the two-class method, net (loss) income attt'ibutable to common stockholders is determined by allocating undistributed 
earnings, calculated as net (loss) income less current period Series A convertible preferred stock non-cumulative dividends. 
among the common stock and participating securities. In computing diluted net (loss) income attributable to common 
stockholders, undistributed earnings are re-allocated to reflect the potential impact of dilutive securities. Basic net (loss) 
income per share of common share is computed by dividing th.e net (loss) income attributable to common stockholders by the 
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net (loss) income per share of common 
stock is computed by dividing the net income attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-avemge number of 
common shares outstanding, including potential dilutive common shares assuming the dilutive effect of outstanding stock 
options using the treasury stock method. For purposes ofthis ca.lculation, participating securities and stock optiortS to purcJ1ase 
common stock are considered to be common stock equivalents and are excluded from the calculation of diluted net (loss) 
income per share of common stock iftheir effect is antidilutive. 

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Standards 

In January 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 20 I 0·06, 
Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820)-Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, to add 
additional disclosures about tl1e different classes of assets and liabilities measured at frur value, the valuation techniques and 
inputs used, and the activity in Level Ill fair value measurements. The Company adopted ASU No. 2010-06 on January 1, 
20 II, and the adoption did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements, but did have a significant 
impact on the consolidated financial statement presentation. 

In May 20 11, the FASB issued ASUNo. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve Common 
Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS. This update results in common principles and 
requirements for measuring frur value and for disclosing infonnation about fair value measurements in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP and IFRS. The Company adopted ASU 2011-04 on January J, 2012, and the adoption did not have a material impact on 
the consolidated financial statements. 

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive 
Income. Thjs statement requires companies to present the components of other comprehensive income either in a single 
continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements of net income and other 
comprehensive income. The Compauy adopted ASU 201 1-04 on January 1, 2012, and the adoption did not have a material 
tmpact ou the disclosures. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted 

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income. This update requires entities to disclose items reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive 
income and into net income in a single location within the financial statements. This new 
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guidance is effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2014, with early adoption permitted. The adoption of ASU 2013-
02 will not have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial position or .results of operations. 

3. Restatements of Previously Issued Financial Statements 

The Company has restated its VTB financial statements as of December 31, 2010, to correct for the following errors: 

The Company determined that the reserve for sales returns and the allowance for doubtful accounts as of 
December 3 J, 2010, were overstated by $1.4 million and $0.6 million due to errors in the calculation ofthese 
estimates. The correction of these errors increased revenue by $1.4 m iII ion and decreased operating expenses by 
$0.6 million. 

The Company has recorded additional adjustments in the 20 I 0 VTB financial statements in order to correct other 
errors which were determined not to be material individually or in the aggregate. The most significant of such 
adjustments was to increase income tax expense for reserves associated with uncertain ta.x positions, decrease 
business transactions expenses for amounts that should have been recorded to additional paid in capital and to 
increase interest expense.related to the Company's Series B redeemable preferred stock. 

The following table presents the impact of the restatement adjustments on the Company's statement of operations for the 
period ended December 31, 20 I 0 (in thousands): 

Net revenue 
Cost of revenue 
Operating expenses 
Operating income 
Other expense, net 
Income before provision tor income tax 
Provision for income tax 
Net income 

Year Ended December 31, 2010 
As 

Previously 
~epOI'ted 

$90,470 
49,387 
25,217 
15,865 

340 
15,525 
6,255 
9,270 

Effect of 
Restatement 

$ 1,400 
1,169 

(2,190) 
2,422 

241 
2,181 
1,329 

852 

As 
Res toted 

$91,870 
50,556 
23,027 
18,287 

581 
17,706 
7,584 

10,122 

Tn addition, the Company also recorded ce1tain audit adjustments to VTBH's operating company, VTB, in 2011 to correct the 
following: 

The Company determined that the stock based compensation expense was understated by $2.7 million because the 
Company, on a retrospective basis determined the fair value of the options granted during 201 I exceeded the 
exercise price. 

The Company detenninedmventory was understated by $1.0 million d'ue to a$0,6 million error in tbe oalcul'ation of 
excess inventory reserves and to a $0.4 million error in the calculation of capitalized freight. 

The Company has recorded additional adjustments in the 2011 VTB financial statements in order to correct other 
errors which were determined not to be material individually or in the aggregate. 
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The impact ofthese adjustments on the Company's consolidated financial statements was a $1.7 million increase in total 
assets, $0.2 mHlion increase in stockholders' equity and $3.3 million decrease in net income. 

4. Fair Value Measurement 

The following table sets fortll the fair value of financial assets and liabilities by level within the fair value hierarchy: 

Financial Liabilities: 
Other current liabilities- derivative liabilities 

Total financial liabilities 

Financial Assets and Liabilities: 
Cash and cash equivalents - money market funds 

Total financial assets 

Other current liabilities- derivative liabilities 
Total financial liabilities 

Financial Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents -money market firods 

Total financial assets 

S. Consolidated Balance Sheet Components 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist ofthe following: 

Cash 
Money market accounts 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

D-21 

uvell 

$-
$-

Level I 

$ 50 
$ 50 
= 
$-
$-

L Cl'cl ( 

$3,016 

~ 

i\s of 
September 28, 

2013 
(Unaudited) 

$ 

$ 

5,052 
10 

5,062 

AllufS~I!tember 281 2013 
Level JJ Level III Total 

(In tbousnnds und Unaudited) 

$ (613) L=_ $(613) 
$ (613) $ - $(6 13) 

As of December 31,2012 
Level II Le'·et m Total 
----cr.l tbonsa~ 

$- $ - $ 50 
$- $ - $ 50 
~ = = 
$ (194) $ - $(194) 
$ (194) $ - $(194) 

= 

As of December 311 2011 
Lcvelll Level lll Total 
----cr.l thousa~ 

$- L=_ $3,016 
$ - $ - $3,016 
= = 

As of Occember 31, 
2012 2011 

(In tbous:tndJ;) 

$5,169 
50 

$5,219 

$12,926 

~ 
$15,942 
~ 

Exhibit Page Number 320 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/149376 l/000119312513459818/d621612ddefinl ... 12/11/2013 



 
PA404

DEFM14A Page 305 of 348 

Table of Contt!nts 

VTB HOLDINGS, INC. 

Not es to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Nine Montbs Ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012 (Unaudited) a nd tbe 
Years Ended December 31,2012, 2011 and 2010 

SaJes Return Reserves 

The sales return reserves consist of the following activity: 

Sales return reserves, beginning balance 
Reserve accrual 
Recoveries and deductions, net 

Sales return reserves, ending balance 

Inventories 

Inventories consist ofthe ronowing: 

Raw materials 
Finished goods 

Total inventories 

Property and Equipment, net 

Property and equipment, net consists of the following: 

Machinery and equipment 
Software and software development 
Furniture and fixtures 
Tooling 
Leasehold improvements 
Demonstration units and convention booth 

Total property and equipment, gross 
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortizatJon 

Total property and equipment, net 

D-22 

As of 
Sep tembu 28, 

2013 
(Unaudlt~d) 

$ 7,748 
9,554 

(15,3 I 0) 
$ 1,992 

As of 
September 28, 

1013 
(Unaudited) 

$ 

$ 

3,783 
58,487 
62,270 

All of 
September 28, 

2013 
(Unaudited) 

$ 

$ 

150 
530 
155 

1,361 
67 

9 495 
11,758 
(4,960) 
6,798 

As o/ Deumbu 31. 
2012 2011 

(In thousands) 
$ 6,151 

19,659 
(18,062) 

$ 7,748 

.$ 4,105 
17,833 

(15,787) 
$ 6,151 

As ofDeumber 31, 

(In thousands) 
$ 2,809 

37,897 
$40,706 

$ 3,408 
27.Q72 

~ 

As of December 31, 
2012 20ll - -- -- -

(l n thousands) 
$ 136 

353 
13 1 

1,101 
67 

5,948 
7,736 

(2,004) 
$ 5.732 = 

$ 1. ,161 
490 
266 
760 

9 
1,862 
4,548 

(2,868) 

~ 
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Depreciation and amortiz.'ltion expense on propetty and equipment, for the nine months ended September 28, 2013 and 
September 29, 201 2 and for the years ended December31 , 2012, 20 II And 2010 was $3.1 million, $1.1 million, $ 1.9 million, 
$0.7 million and $0.2 million. 

Other Assets 

Other assets consist of the following: 

Defen·ed financing costs, net 
Deposits and other assets 

Total other assets 

As of 
September 28, 

2013 
(Unnudited} 

$ 

$ 

1,921 
104 

2,025 

As of December 31, 

(ln thouunds) 
$ 2,128 

2 1 
$ 2,149 

$ 572 
37 

~ 

Amortization of deferred financing costs is included in interest expense on the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations and for the nine montbs ended September 28,2013 and September 29,2012 and for the years ended December 31, 
2012, and 20 I 1, was $0.8 million, $0.6 million, $0.8 million and $0.2 million respectively. Amortization expense of deferred 
financing costs for the year ended December 31, 2010 was insignificant. Included in interest expense for the nine months 
ended September 28, 2013 and year ended December 31, 20 l2 were tbe write-offof$0.4 million and $0.3 million in deferred 
financing costs related to the partial extinguishment oftem1 notes. 

Accrued Liabilities 

Accrued liabilities consist ofU1e following: 

Accrued expenses 
Accmed compensation expenses 
Other 

Total accrued liabilities 

Warranty Accruals 

As of September 28, 
2013 

(Unaudited) 
$ 6,446 

1,555 
l 544 

$ 9,545 

As of December 3t, 
2012 2011 

--(-l n thousands)--
$ 9,723 $6,594 

2,189 2,495 
584 499 

$12,496 $9,588 

The warranty accruals are .included in accrued liabilities on the balance sheet and consist of the following: 

Warranty- beginning of period 
Warranty costs accrued 
Warranty claims 

Warranty - end of period 

As of September 28, 
2013 

$ 

$ 

(UPRUdilttJ) 

0-23 

165 
320 

(468) 
17 

As of December 31, 
2012 ~ 

(In thousands) 
$ 109 

618 
(562) 

$ 165 

$ -
625 

_Jlli) 
$ 109 = 
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tn October 2012, U1e Company's subsidiary, VTB, acquired all of the common stock ofLygo in order to gain access to the 
distribution channels in Europe. Lygo has historically been VTB's sole distributor in Europe. 

As a result ofilie acquisition of Lygo, the Company expects to increase its market share by expanding into new geographic 
areas overseas and new related products and leveraging distribution channels to reach new customers. 

The Lygo acquisition was accounted using the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations. The total fair 
value of consideration transferred amounted to $14.4 million, which includes $5.5 million of cash and the effective settlement 
of $8.9 million of accounts receivable from Lygo, was aUocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their 
respective fair values. The following table summarizes the estinlated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
(in thousands): 

Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Other current assets 
Property and equipment 
Intangible assets: 

Customer relationships 
Non-compete agreement 

Liabilities assumed: 
Accounts payables 
Other liabilities 
Derivative liability 
Total fair values of assets and liabilities 

Fair value of total consideration lransferred 
Gain on bargain purchase 

(ID thousa.ncls) 
$ 133 

4,046 
9,957 

321 
12 

5,526 
177 

(223) 
(1,889) 
( l,369) 
16,691 

(14,388) 
$ 2,303 

The excess of the net assets acquired over consideration transferred was assigned to a gain on bargain purchase in the amount 
of$2.3 miJJion, which is recorded as gain on bargain purchase from acquisition in the accompanying consolidated statements 
of operations. As a result of the bargain purchase, the Company reassessed the recognition and measurement of identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed and concluded that the valuation procedures and resulting measures were appropriate. 
The bargain purchase gain was primarily driven from the exclusive nature of the arrangement between the two companies 
prior to the acquisition whereby Lygo did not generate significant revenue from other vendors' products. As a result, the value 
ofthe customer relationships, the primary intangible asset acquired, was attributed to the difference between the cash flows 
associated with owning the asset versus building the asset. 

For tax purposes, the acquired intangible assets are not amortized. Accordingly, a deferred tax liability was recorded on the 
acquisition date for the difference between the book and cost basis related to the acquired intangible assets. In connection with 
the acquisition, the Company issued 398,010 phantom units under the 20 11 Phantom Equity Appreciation Plan, which l1ad an 
exercise price of $2.01 per share, to continuing employees ofLygos. The phantom units will vest upon the occurrence of a 
perfonnance condition and upon the satisfaction of 
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service conditions. The Company's phantom units are discussed further in Note 13 "2011 Phantom Equity Appreciation 
Plan". These equity awards wen') not inchtded in the Company's determination of the total purchase consideration as these 
equity awards have post-acquisition petfmmance and service conditions. 

Tho Company incun·cd $0.3 million in acquisition-related transaction costs for the year ended December 31, 2012, which is 
included as business transaction expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 

Unaudited Pro Forma lnformation 

Supplemental information on a pro fom1a basis is presented below for the years ended December 31, 20 12 and 2011: 

PI'O fonna revenues 
Pro fonna net income 

Venr E nded December 31, 
2012 2011 

(Una udited) 
(In lhousnnds) 

$205,341 $172,271 
18,303 22,998 

The unaudited pro forma financial information combines the Company's results of operations and Lygo's results of operations 
as if the acquisition of Lygo had occurred as of January I, 2011 . TI1e pro forma results include the business combination 
accounting effects resulting from the acquisition such as the amortization charges from the acquired intangible assets and the 
gain on bargain purchase. The pro forma information presented does not purport to present what the actual results would have 
been had the acquisition actually occuned on January I, 20 l l , nor is the infom1ation intended to project results for any future 
period. 

From the acquisition date through December 31, 20 12, the Company recognized revenues and net income for Lygo of$13.1 
million and $0.6 million in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. During the same period VTB recorded 
intercompany sales to Lygo in the amount of$5.9 million and elimination of intercompany profit of$1.4 million. 

7. Intangible Assets 

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of intangible assets is as follows: 

Customer relationships 
Non-compete agreements 

Total 

Amortization 
Period at Dnte 
of Acquisition 

13.0 years 
2.0 years 

D-25 

As ofSeptemher28, 2013 

Gross Carrying 
Value 

$ 5,526 
177 

$ 5,703 

Accumulated 
Amortization 

(Una udited) 
~In tbousands) 

$ 1,384 
76 

$ 1,460 

Net Book 
~ 

$ 4,142 
101 

$ 4,243 
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As ornecerober31, 20J2 

Customer relationships 
Non-compete agreements 

Total 

Amortization 
Period at Date 
of Acguisitioo 

13.0 years 
2.0 years 

Gro~s Carrying 
Value 

$ 5,526 
177 

$ 5,703 

Accu roulated Net Book 
Amortization Value 

(In tbousaods) 
$ 747 $ 4,779 

1 176 
$ 748 ~ 

Amortization expense of approximately $0.7 million and $0.7 million on the intangible assets was recognized in the 
accompanying consolidated statements in selling and marketing exlJenses for the periods ended September 28, 2013 and 
December 31,2012. 

As of December 31, 2012, estimated annual amortization expense related to identifiable acqu.isition-related intangible assets in 
future periods is as follows: 

Year Eodiog Decembu 31, 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
Thereafter 

Total 

8. Long-Term Debt 

The Company's long-term debt obligations are as follows: 

Revolving lines of credit 
Tenn loans 
Subordinated notes 

Total outstanding debt 
Less: current portion of revolving line of credit 
Less: current portion of term loan 

Total noncurrent portion of long-term debt 

As or September 28, 
2013 

$ 

$ 

(Unaudited) 

30,186 
23,750 
10,000 
63,936 

(30,186) 
(18,750) 
15,000 

Estimated 
Amortization 

Espeese 
(In thousands) 
$ 923 

782 
6 19 
519 
436 

1,676 
$ 4,955 

As of December 31, 
2012 2011 

(lo thousands) 
$ 33,000 

41 ,250 

74,250 
(33,000) 
(15,000) 

$ 26,250 

$ 12,000 
25,200 

37,200 
(12,000) 
(16,200) 

$ 9,000 

Total interest expense, inclusive of amortization of deferred financing costs, on long-term debt obligations was $3.8 million 
and $2.1 million for the nine months ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012 and $3.7 million, $1.9 million and 
$0.3 million for years ended December 3 1, 2012, 201 J and 2010. 
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Loan mtd Security Agreemeut 

Term Loan 

In October 20 I 0, pursuant to the recapitalization discussed in Note I, "Organization and Description of Business'', VTB 
entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with various financial institutions. TI1e Loan and Security Agreement provided 
for tenn loans aggt·cgating $28.0 million. Turtle Beach's obligations under its credit facility are secured by a first priority lien 
against substantially all of Turtle Beach's assets. Tile tem1 loans bear interest at the greater of (i) the minimum interest rate of 
5.50% or (ii) LIBOR (London interbank offered rate) pitts 4.0% per annum. Interest is due monthly. The term loans mature on 
October 12, 2015 and have combined scheduled quarterly principal repayments, due on the last day of each quarter, of $0.7 
million to $1.4 million, with the balance of$5.6 million due on maturity. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the 
Company paid $0.7 million of debt issuance costs that are being amortized into interest expense, net in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of operations over the contractual life of the tem1 loan. The term loans can be repaid at any time after 
the second anniversary of the Joan without penalty. 

In August 2012, the Loan and Security Ag1·eement was amended and restated to increase the prindpal amount on the term 
loans to $45.0 million and amend the maturity date to August 22, 2015. The Company drew down $45 million on the term 
loan. The term loans bear interest at the Company's option at (i) tl1e Adjusted Base Rate plus the applicable margin ranging 
from 2.50% to 3.25% as determined by the Company's total leverage ratio, or (ii) LffiOR rate, plus the applicable margin 
ranging from 3.50% to 4.25%. The Applicable Base Rate is equal to the highest of (I) the Prime Rate as determined by the 
syndication agent, (b) Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5% and (c) the LffiOR rate plus I%. As of December 31, 2012, t11e interest 
rate on the term lo~tns Wl\S 5.50%. Interest is due, at the Company's option, every 30, 60 or 90 days. The term loans have 
scheduled quarterly principal repayments of$3.8 million, due on the last day of each quarter, commencing on December 29, 
2012. In addition, the term loans shall be reduced, commencing in 2013, by an amount equal to 50% of the excess cash flows, 
as defined in the Loan and Secut•ity Agreement, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 and for each fiscal year 
thereafter; however, no such payment was required for the 20 12 fiscal year. Upon full repayment of the term loans, any excess 
cash flow will then be applied against the outstanding balance ofthe revolving loan. The tetm loans can be repaid at any time 
without penalty. 

ln conjunction with the August 2012 amendment, the Company incun·ed $1.1 million in debt issuance costs tbat are being 
amortized to interest expense, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations over the contractual I ife of the 
term loans using the effective interest method. As a result of the August 2012 amendment, the Company recognized $0.3 
million through interest expense, net of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the decrease in principal balance on the 
term loan to the existing lender that was treated as a patti a) debt extinguishment. The remaining rollover principal balance to 
the existing lender was treated as a debt modification. 

As of December 31, 2012 and 201 I , the unamortized debt issuance costs related to the term loans are $0.9 million and $0.5 
million. 

Revolving Line of Credit 

In August 2011, the Loan and Security Agreement was amended and restated with various financial instinttions to include a 
$15.0 million revolving line of credit, The revolving line of credit bears interest at the greater of 
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(i) the minimum interest rate of 4.50% or (ii) L1BOR plus 3 .0%. Interest is due monthly and at December 3 J, 2011 was at a 
rate of 4.5%. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company incurred $0.1 million in debt issuance costs related to 
the revolving Hne of credit that are being amortized over the contractual life of the revolving line of credit on a straight-line 
basis. The Company is also required to pay a quarterly commitment fee of up to 0.25% per annum on the unused portion of the 
revolving line of credit. The maturity date ofthe revolving line of credit was May 31, 2012. 

fn August 2012, the Loan and Security Agreement was amended and restated to increase the borrowing capacity on the 
revolving line of credit to $55.0 million to fund the acquisition ofLygo in October 2012 and to fund distributions to the 
Company's shareholders. During the year ended December 31, 2012, subsequent to the amendment, the Company drew down 
$38.0 million on the revolving line of credit. The additional borrowings were provided by new lenders while the outstanding 
balance from 2011 to an existing lender was reduced. The maturity date on the revolving line of credit was amended to 
August 22, 20!5. The revolving line of credit is subject to limitations based on specific percentages of eligible accounts 
receivables and inventory and bears interest at the Company's option at (i) the Adjusted Base Rate plus the applicable margin 
ranging from 2.50% to 3.25 %as determined by the Company's total leverage ratio, or (ii) LffiOR rate plus the applicable 
margin ranging from 3.50% to 4.25 %. The Applicable Base Rate is equal to the highest of (J) the Prime Rate as determined 
by the syndication agent, (b) Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5% and (c) the L1BOR rate plus I%. As of December 31, 2012, the 
interest rates on the revolving loans were 5.50% and 6.25%.lnterest is due, at the Company's option, eveJy 30, 60 or 90 days. 
The Company is also required to pay a quarterly commitment fee of up to 0.50% per annum on the unused portion of the 
revolving line of credit. The revolving line of credit is subject to an annual provision that requires that there be no amounts 
outstanding for a 30 day period during the fltst quarter of each fiscal year; however, it can otherwise be repaid at any time 
without penalty. 

Ln 20 .12, the Company incurred S 1.3 million in debt issuance costs related to the amendment, which are being amortized over 
the contractual life of the revolving line of credit facility on a straight-line basis. As of December 31,2012, the unamortized 
debt issuance costs related to the revolving line of credit was $1.1 million. 

Other Facilities 

Under the terms of the Loan and Security Agreement (as amended and restated), the Company can also draw down on a swing 
loan commitmentofup to $5.0 million. Any borrowings on the swing Joan mature in seven days ofthe borrowing date. In 
addition, the Company can arrange for certain letters of credit with a maximum amount of$5.0 million. Any boiTowings 
against these facilities reduce the amount available pursuant to the revolving line of credit. As of December 31, 2012, the 
Company had not drawn any amounts on the swing loan. At December 31, 2012 and 201 1, the Company had drawn $0.2 
million and $0.1 million under the Jetter of credit facility. 

Covenants 

Outstanding borrowings on the Loan and Security Agreement (as amended and restated) are secured by substantially all of the 
assets of the Company and pledges of certain shares in the Company's subsidiaries. The Loan and Security Agreement {as 
amended and restated) contains certain affirmative and negative covenants to which the Company must comply. The Company 
is also required to comply with the following fmancial covenants: 

Minimum total fiXed charge coverage ratio (defined as the ratio ofEBITDA minu.s capital expenditures to the sum 
of income taxes paid or payable, interest paid, scheduled payments of principal on indebtedness, as weU as Founder 
Earn-out payments made during the period); 
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Maximum total leverage ratio (defined as the ratio oftotal debt outstanding to EBITDA); and 

Maximum amount of capital expenditures that can be incurred during a fiscal year. 

1J1e Company was not in compliance with the fL'Ced charge coverage ratio as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 201 2 
However, in JuJy 2013 and August 2013, the Company entered into two amendments to the Loan and Security Agreement 
(collectively the "20 13 Amendments") that waived the default of the fixed charge coverage ratio for those periods. In addition, 
U1e 2013 Amendments provided for (i) a minimum EB11DA financial covenant which required that EBITDA for the 12 month 
period ended June 30, 2013 not be less than $37.0 million, (ii) modification of the total fixed charge coverage ratio for periods 
ending September 28, 2013 through maturity, (iii) modification of the maximum total leverage ratio for the periods ending 
September 28, 2013 through maturity, and (iv) modification of the annual clean-down requirements of the revolving line of 
credit and swing loan to provide for an increase in the eligible amount outstanding from $0 to $ 16.5 million. 

In addition, the 2013 Amendments amended the interest rate on the outstanding term loans to bear interest at the Company's 
option at (i) the Adjusted Base Rate plus the applicable margin of3.25%, or (ii) LillOR rate plus the applicable margin of 
4.25%. As of September 28,2013, the interest rates on the term loans were 5.75%. 'Inere were no amendments to the interest 
rate on the revolving line of credit facilities. As of September 28, 2013, the interest rates on the revolving loan were 5.75% and 
6.50%. The 2013 Amendments also required the Company to issue at least $10.0 million, but not more than $15.0 million, in 
Subordinated Notes on or before August 30, 2013 to reduce the outstanding borrowings on the term loan. Failure to do so 
required that the maximum borrowing capacity on the revolving line of credit be reduced to $28.0 million. On August 30, 
2013, the Company issued $10.0 million of Subordinated Notes to certain affiliated investors, including the Stripes Group and 
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the proceeds of wbicJJ were applied against the outstanding balance of the term 
loan. The Subordinated Notes bear interest at a rate of (i) I 0% per annum for the first year and (ii) 20% per annum for all 
periods thereafter. Interest accrues quarterly by increasing the principal on the notes. Accrued interest on the notes was 
approximately $0.1 million as of September 28, 2013 . Principal and interest on the Subordinated Notes is due at maturity. The 
Subordinated Notes mature on the one year anniversary of the later of (i) the term lonn maturity date of August 22, 20 15 or 
(ii) the revolving line of credit termination date of August 22, 2015. 

Jn conjunction with the 2013 Amendments, the Company incurred $0.4 milJjon in debt issuance costs related to the term notes 
that are being amortized to interest expense, net in tl1e accompanying consolidated statements of operations over tJ1e 
contractual life of the term loans using the effective interest method. As a result of the 2013 Amendments, the Company 
recognized $0.4 million through interest expense, net of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the decrease in principal 
balance on the term loans to the existing lenders that were treated as a partial debt extinguishment. The remaining rollover 
principal balances to the existing lenders were treated as a debt modification. As of September 28, 2013, the unamortized debt 
issuance costs related to the term loans were $0.6 million. 

fn conjunction with 2013 Amendments, the Company incurred $0.6 million in debt issuance costs !'elated to the revolving line 
of credit facilities, which are being amortized over the contractual life of the revolving line of credit facmties on a straight-line 
basis. As of September 28, 2013, the unamortized debt issuance costs related to the revolving line of credit were$) .3 million. 
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1n conjunction with 2013 Amendments, other than as previously disclosed, there were no other significant changes to the 
swing loan and letter of credit facility. As of September 28, 2013, the Company had not drawn any amounts on the swing loan. 
At September 28, 2013, the Company had drawn $0.2 million under the letter of credit faciHty. 

Scheduled principal payments on outstanding long-term debt borrowings as of December 31, 2012 are as follows (in 
thousands): 

Year l~ndln Oe~e.m.ber 31, 
2013 
2014 
2015 

Total 

9. Commitments and Contin encies 

Purchase Commitments 

$15,000 
15,000 
11,250 

$41,250 

As of September 28,2013, December 31,2012 and 2011, the Company has non-cancelable purchase commitments of$28.5 
million, $8.4 million and $ 1 0. 1. million to purchase finished goods from third-party vendors. These purchase commitments 
result from the vendors' contractual obligation to procure, assemble and manufacture the Company's products in advance of 
anticipated sales. 

Lease Commitments 

The Company leases office and warehouse spaces under operating leases that provide for future minimum rental lease 
payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31. 2012, are as follows: 

Yur End in December 31, 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
Thereafter 

Total minimum lease payments 

Futllre Minimum 
Reolal Lease 

Payments 
(In lbousauds) 

$ 731 

$ 

623 
607 
581 
538 
930 

4,010 

Rent expense for the nine months ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 20 l2 was $0.5 million and $0.5 million and 
for the years ended December 3 1,2012,2011 and 2010 was $0.6 miUion, $0.5 million and $0.3 million. 

Rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis. Total deferred rent as of September 28, 2013, December 3 1, 2012 and 
20 I I was $0.3 million, $0.3 million and $0.1 million and is included in other current liabilities in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheet. 
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Litigation 

TI1e Company is involved in certain legal proceedings from time to time in the normal course of its operations. The Company 
believes that the eventual outcome of such proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated 
financial position or its consolidated resu!ts of operations or cash flows. 

On AugustS, 2013, VTBH and Parametric announced that they had entered into a stock-for-stock merger agreement pursuant 
to which VTBH would have an approximately 80% ownership interest and Parametric shareholders would have an 
approximately 20% ownership interest in the combined company. Following the announcement, several ofParametric's 
shareholders filed class action lawsuits in Califomia and Nevada seeking to enjoin the merger. The plaintiffs in each case 
allege that members of Parametric's board of directors breached their fiduciary duties to the shareholders by agreeing to a 
proposed merger that allegedly undervalues Parametric. VTBH was named as a defendant in these lawsuits under the theory 
that VTDI l aided and abetted the Parametric board of directors in allegedly violating their fiduciary duties. At this time, the 
California cases have been consolidated in San Diego, the Nevada cases have been consolidated in Las Vegas, and lead 
counsel has been appointed for the plaintiffs in each consoUdated case. Following the Parametric's filing of a preliminary 
proxy statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") on November 4, 2013, amended consolidated 
complaints were filed on November 14,2013 in the consolidated action pending in Nevada and on November 19, 2013 in the 
consolidated action pending in Califomia. These amended complaints reiterate the same claims and seeks the same relief as 
asserted and sought in U1e original complaints. On November 20, 201 3, Shan a Vasek, a purported sJmreholder ofParametr·ic, 
filed a class action lawsuit in the United States District Court for the District ofNevada, under the caption Vasek v. Parametric 
Sound Corp., Case No. 2: 13-cv-02148-JAD-GWF, naming the same defendants, asserting substantially the same allegations 
and seeking substantially tbe same relief as asserted and sought in the above-referenced consolidated action pending in Nevada 
state cowt. In addition to asserting substantially the same claims for breach of fiduciary duty and aiding and abetting as 
asserted in the above-referenced consolidated action pending in Nevada slate court, the plaintiff in the federal court action 
asserts a claim for violations of Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Secul'ities Exchange Act of 1934 and SEC Rule 14a-9. VTBH 
believes that the plaintiffs' claims against it are without merit and intends to vigorously defend itself in litigation. As of 
September 28,2013, the Company is unable to estimate a possible loss or range of possible loss in regards to this matter; 
therefore, no litigation reserve has been recorded in the consolidated fmancial statements. 

10. Preferred Stock 

Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock 

In September 2010, the Company issued 1,000,000 shares of its Series B redeemable preferred stock with a fair value of$12.4 
million. The Series B redeemable preferred stock was recorded at fair value on the date of issuance. 

Tl1e Series 8 redeemable preferred stock is non-voting and does not contain any conversion rights. 

The Series 8 redeemable preferred stock must be redeemed on the earlier of September 28, 2030 or the occurrence of a 
liquidation event at its original issue price of$12.425371 per share plus any accrued but unpaid dividends. Dividends are 
cumulative and accrue at a rate of 8.0% per annum, compounded quarterly. Dividends are payable as and when declared by the 
board of directors ofthe Company. 
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The Company has recorded the Series B redeemable prefen·ed stock as a non-current liability due to its mandatory redemption 
provisions for all periods presented. The carrying value ofthe Series B redeemable preferred stock is increased. at each 
reporting date for accrued but unpaid dividends. When dividends are paid, the carrying value ofthe Series B redeemable 
preferred stock is decreased. Accrued dividends are recognized through interest expense in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of operations at each reporting period based on the stated dividend rate plus any additional declared dividends. 

As of September 28, 2013, December 31,2012 and 2011, 1,000,000 shares of Series B redeemable preferred stock are 
authorized, issued and outstanding. During the year ended December 31, 2012, $2.0 million in dividends were declared and 
paid on the Series B redeemable preferred stock. As of September 28 2013, December 31, 2012 and 2011, accrued and unpaid 
dividends are $1.0 million, $0.3 million and $1 .2 million. 

For the nine months ended September 28, 2013 and September29, 2012 and for the year ended December 31,20 12, 201 1 and 
2010, the Company recognized $0.8 million, $0.8 million, $1.0 million, $1.0 miJlion and $0.2 million of interest expense in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of operations on tl1e Series B redeemable preferred stock. 

Series A Com>ertible Preferred Stock 

In September 20 I 0, the Company issued 48,689,555 shares of its Series A convertible preferred stock for aggregate proceeds 
of $24.3 million. 

For the year ended December 31. 2012, $22.6 million of dividends were declared and paid on the Series A convertible 
preferred stock. There are no accrued but unpaid dividends on the Series A convertible preferred stock for any periods 
presented. 

The Series A convertible preferred stock was recorded at fair value on the date of issuance, net of issuance costs. Shares of the 
Series A convertible preferred stock are not currently redeemable. The Series A convertible preferred stock is classified 
outside of stockholders' (deficit) equity because, in the event of certain "liquidation events" that are not solely within the 
Company's control (including merger, acquisition, or sale of all or substantially all of the Company's assets), the shares would 
become redeemable at the option oftbe holders. The Company has not adjusted the carrying values of the Series A convertible 
preferred stock to its deemed liquidation values since a liquidation event was not probable as of any of the balance sheet dates. 
Subsequent adjustments to increase or decrease the carrying values to the ultimate liquidation values will be made only if and 
when it becomes probable that such a liquidation event will occur. 

The various rights, preferences, and privileges of the Series A convertible preferred stock are as follows: 

Liquidation Rights 

Upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or winding-up of the corporation, each holder of Series B 
redeemable preferred stock shall be entitled to payment of the Series B redemption price for such shares of Series B 
redeemable preferred stock before any distribution or payment is made on any shares of common stock or Series A 
convertible preferred stock. lftbe corporation does not have sufficient assets to 
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redeem the Series B redeemable preferred stock, then the entire assets available for distribution shall be distributed pro 
rata among the holders of the Series B redeemable prefen-ed shares. 

Once payment is made to the holders of the Series B redeemable preferred stock, the holders of the Series A conve1tible 
preferred stock are entitled to be paid an amount in cash equal to the higher of either (i) the aggregate liquidation 
preference of$0.50 per share plus all declared and unpaid djvidends on all shares of Series A convertible preferred stock 
held by such holder before any distribution or payment is made upon any shares of common stock or (ti) such holder' s 
pro rata amount of any assets of the corporation available for distribution assuming that immed1ately prior to such 
liquidation event each share of Series A convertible preferred stock l.hen outstauding had been converted into the number 
of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of shares of Series A convertible preferred stock. If upon any sucl1 
liquidation event, the corporation' s assets are insufficient to permit payment to such holders of the aggregate amount that 
they are entitled to be paid, then the entire assets available for distribution to the corporation's stockholders shall be 
distributed pro rata among the holders of the Series A convertible preferred stock based upon the aggregate liquidation 
preference plus all declared and unpaid dividends on the shares of Series A convertible preferred stock held by each such 
holder. 

A liquidation event is defined as any acquisition of the corporation by means ofmergcr or other fonn of corporate 
reorganization in which the outstanding sha1·es of the corporation are exchanged for securities or other consideration 
issued, or caused to be issued, by tl1e acquiring corporation m· its subsidiary (other than a reincorporation transaction) or a 
sale of all or substantially all of the assets oft he corporation. 

Conversion Rights 

At any time and from time to time (including upon or in connection with a liquidation event), any lwlder of shares of 
Series A convertible preferred stock may convert all or any portion of the Series A convertible preferred stock held by 
such holder into a number of shares of common stock computed by multiplying the number of shares of Series A 
convertible preferred stock to be converted by the liquidation value of $0.50 per share, p lus any declared but unpaid 
dividends) and dividing the result by the original conversion price of$0.50 per share. The conversion price per share for 
Series A convertible preferred stock shall be adjusted for certain recapitalizations, splits, combinations, common stock 
dividends, or similar events. At the current conversion prices, each share of Series A convertible preferred stock will 
convert on a one-for-one basis into common stock. 

Each share of convertible preferred stock shall automatically be converted into shares of common stock at the then­
effective conversion price upon the date and time, or the occurrence of an event, specified by vote or written consent of 
the holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding shares of Series A convertible preferred stock. 

Voting Rights 

Each share of Series A convertible preferred stock has a number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock 
into which it is convertible. Certain holders of the Series A convertible preferred stock. voting together as a single class 
on an as-if-converted basis, have the right to elect three directors. Certain holders of the common stock, voting together 
as a single class, have the right to elect two directors. 
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Dividend Rights 

No dividends or other distributions shall be declared by the board of directors at any time while any shares of Series B 
redeemable preferred stock are outstanding unless the 8.0% cumulative dividends on the Series B Original lssue Price of 
$12.425371 per share have been paid to the holders of the Series B redeemable preferred stock. 

As and when dividends are declared or paid with respect to the Series A convertible preferred stock, the holders of the 
Series A convertible preferred stock shall be entitled to participate in such dividends ratably on a per-share basis with 
respect to the shares of Series A convertible preferred stock. Dividends are payable only when and if declared by the 
board of directors. 

No dividends or other distributions shall be declared by the board of directors on any shares of common stock at any time 
any shares of series A convertible preferred stock are outstanding unless, a pro rata amount, on an as-converted basis, bas 
been paid or declared and set apart for payment on the shares of Series A convertible preferred stock. 

Redemption Rights 

The Series A convertible preferred stock is not mandatorily redeemable except in the event of certain liquidation events. 
If a deemed liquidation event were to become probable to occur, the Company would need to reassess the ASC 480 
definition of being a mandatorily redeemable financial instrument as redemption would become "an event certain to 
occur.'' 

11. Common Stock 

Shares Reserved for Issuance 

Shares of common stock reserved for future issuance, on an as-converted basis, are as follows: 

Shares reserved for future issuance under the equity incentive plan 
Outstanding stock options 
Conversion of Series A convertible preferred stock 

Dividends 

As of Septembtr28, 
2013 

(Unaudited) 

3,949,020 
11,050,980 
48,689,555 

63,689,555 

As of Decembtr 31, 
l OU lOll 

4,543,324 
10,456,676 
48,689,555 

63,689,555 

3,814,846 
3,241,611 

48,689,555 

55,746,012 

Drvldends on common stock declared and paid by the Company's board of directors were $16.4 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2012 on common stock. There were no other dividends declared or paid by the board of directors for any other 
periods. 

D-34 

Exhibit Page Number 333 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/ 1493761 /0001193 12513459818/d62 l612ddefml ... 12/11/2013 



 
PA417

DEPM14A Page 318 o£348 

Tnblc of Content:! 

VTB HOLDINGS, INC. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Nine Months Ended September 28, 2013 and Septemi.Jer Z9, 2012 (Unamli.ted) lltld t.be 
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 201 I and 2010 

12. Stock-Bnsed Compensation 

The Company recognized stock-based compensation for employees and non-employees in com1ection With the 2011 Equity 
Incentive Plan (the "20 11 Plan") in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as follows: 

Cost of revenue 
Selling and marketing 
Product development 
General and administrative 

Total stock-based compensation 

Deter·mination of Fair Value 

Nine Montbs Ended 
September 28, September 29, 

2013 2012 
(Unaudited) 

$ 56 $ 40 
251 207 
249 88 

1,363 67 
$ 1,919 $ 402 

Year E nded December· Jl, 

2012 2011 2010 

(lu thousands) 
$ 60 $ 19 $ 

281 132 
121 77 
523 3,521 

$ 985 $ 3,749 $ 

The estimated grant date fair value of the stock-based awards granted was calculated based on the assumptions discussed 
below: 

Expected term (in years) 
Risk-free interest rate 
Expected volatility 
Dividend rate 

Niue Months Ended 
September 28, September 29, 

2013 2012 
(Unnudlted) 

6.0 N/A 
1.0%-l.l% N/A 

50.4%-50.5% N/A 
0% N/A 

Year Ended DeCoJober 31, 

2012 

6.0 
0.8%-1.1% 

so .5%-51.1% 
0% 

2011 

6.0 
1.5%-2.4% 

51.2%-52.4% 
0% 

l11e fair value of each grant ofthe stock options was detennined by the Company's board of directors using the Black-Scholes 
option-pricing model and assumptions discussed below. Each of these ioputs is subjective and generally requires significant 
judgment to determine. 

Fair value of common stock- Because there has been no public market for the Company' s common stock, the board of 
directors has determined the fair value of the common stock at the time of grant of the option by considering a munber of 
objective and subjective factors, valuations of comparable companies, operating and financial performance, the lack of 
liquidity of capital stock and general and industry specific economic outlook. The fair value of the underlying common 
stock will be determined by the board of directors until such time as the Company's common stock is listed on an 
established stock exchange or national market system. 

Expected Term- The expected term represents the period that its stock-based awards are expected to be outstanding. The 
Company estiorates the expected term for its equity incentive grants based on a study of several unrelated public peer 
companies within the Company's industry that the Company considers to be 
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comparable to its business and the historical data on employee exercises and post-vesting employment te~mination 
behavioriak:ing into account the contractual life of the award. 

RiskrFree Interest Rate - The risk-free interest rate is based on t11e interest yield in effect at the date of grant for zero 
coupon U.S. Treasury notes with maturities approximately equal to the option's expected term. 

Expected Volatility- Since the Company does not have a trading history for its common stock, the expected volatility 
was derived from the historical stock volatilities of several unrelated public companies within the Company's industry 
that are considered to be comparable to the Company's business over a period equivalent to the expected term ofthe 
stock option grants. 

Dividend Rate- The expected dividend was assumed to be zero based on the fact that the Company's credit agreement 
prohibits the payment of dividends. Thus, a zero dividend yield is assumed in the stock option fair value computations. 

The Company estimates its forfeiture rate based on an analysis of actual forfeitures and will continue to evaluate the adequacy 
oftbe forfeiture rate based on actual forfeiture experience, analysis of employee turnover behavior, and other factors. The 
impact from any forfeiture rate adjustment would be recognized in full in the period of adjustment and if the actual number of 
future forfeitures differs from estimates, the Company might be required to record adjustments to stock-based compensation in 
future periods. 

2011 Plan 

ln January 2011, the Company adopted the 20 ll Plan that covers certain employees, consultants and directors of the Company 
who are entitled to stock options and restricted stock, as applicable, pursuant to the provisions of respective award agreements. 
The 20 11 Plan is shareholder-approved, which permits the granting ofnonqualified stock options and restricted stock to the 
Company's Participants of up to 15,000,000 shares, 15,000,000 shares and 7,056,457 shares of common stock for the nine 
months ended September 28, 2013 and for the years ended December 3 1,2012 and 2011. 

Stock options are time-based and exercisable within ten years of the date of grant, but only to the extent they have vested. The 
options generally vest as specified in the option agreements or upon a change in control of the Company, subject to continued 
employment with the Company. 

In the event participants in the 20 I. 1 Plan cease to be employed or engaged by the Company, then all of the options would be 
forfeited if they are not exercised within 90 days. 
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The following table summarizes stock option activity for the nine months ended September 28, 20 l3 and for the years ended 
December· 31,2012 and 201 1: 

Options Outstanding 
Number of Wc.ighted-

Shores Average 
Underlying Remaining Aggreg•te 

Shares Available Ouutanding Weighted-Average Contractual [ntriosic 
for Grant Oetious Exerdse Price Term Value 

(In years) 
Outstanding- December 31, 20 I 0 $ $ 

Authorized option pool under 
2011 Equity Incentive Plan 7,056,457 

Granted (5,975,982) 5,975,982 0.50 
Forfeited 2,734,371 (2,734,371) 0.50 

Outstanding- December 31, 2011 3,814,846 3,241 ,611 0.50 9.17 4,149,262 
Additional options authorized 7,943,543 
Granted (7,656,094) 7,656,094 2.03 
Forfeited 441,029 {441,029) 0.50 

Outstanding- December 31, 2012 4,543,324 10,456,676 1.62 9.29 5,842,409 
Granted (unaudited) (1,175,000) 1, 175,000 2.01 
Forfeited (unaudited) 580 .• 696 (5801696) 0.50 

Outstanding - September 28, 2013 
(unaudited) 3,949,020 I 1,0502980 1.68 8.63 447,661 

Vested and expected to vest-
December 31,2012 10,456,676 $ 1.62 9.29 $5,842,409 

Exercisable - December 31, 2012 1,320,169 $ 0.50 8.14 $2,214,695 

Vested and expected to vest -
September 28, 2013 (unaudited) 11,050,980 $ 1.68 8.63 $ 447,661 

Exercisable - September 28,2013 
(unaudited) 3,622,253 $ 1.34 8.03 $1,376,908 

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted to employees for the nine months ended September 28, 20 13 
and September 29,2012 was $1.16 and $1.03 per share, respectively. For the years ended December 31,2012 and 2011 the 
weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted was $1.02 and $0.46 per share. The aggregate fair value of stock 
options which vested for the nine months ended September 28,2013 and September 29,2012 was $2.3 million and 
$0.5 million and for the years ended December 31,2012 and 2011 was $0.5 mil.lion and $0.4 million. None of the Company' s 
stock options have been exercised. 

The income tax benefit related to share-based compensation expense was $0.5 million, $0.1 million, $0.4 million and 
$1.4 million for September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012 and December 3 1, 2012 and 2011. As of September 28, 2013 
and December 31, 2012, the Company has stock-based compensation of$7.3 million and $8.1 million related to unvested 
stock options, net of estimated forfeitures, that the Company expects to recogujze over a weighted-average petiod of2.6 yeat'S 
and 3.0 years. 
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The following table summarizes additional information regarding outstanding and exercisable options under the 201 1 Plan as 
of September 28, 2013 (unaudited): 

Ol!ffons Outstanding Ol!lions Exercisable 
Numb~r of 

Shares Weighted- Number or 
Underlying Average Weighted- Sburu Weighted-

Outstanding Remaialng Average Exerdse Underlying Average Exercise 
Exerrise Prkes Oetions Contractual life Price l!er Share Vuted O[!tions Price Per Share 

(In Years) 
$0.50 2,484,503 7.45 $ 0.50 1,637,535 $ 0.50 
$2.01 7,905,448 8.96 $ 2.01 1,682,612 $ 2.01 
$2.16 661,029 9.02 $ 2.16 302,106 $ 2.16 

11,050,980 3,622,253 

Restricted Stock 

During the year ended December 31,2011, the board of directors issued 2,822,582 shares of restricted common stock to one of 
the directors ofVTB, in the capacity of consultant director at a fair value of$1 .21 per share. R estricted stock was valued with 
a price equal to the estimated fair value of the Company's common stock at the date of grant. This restricted stock vested 
immediately upon its issuance and the Company recognized stock-based compensation of$3.4 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2011. 

13. 2011 Phantom Equity Appreciation Plan 

In November2011, the Company adopted a 2011 Phantom Equity Appreciation Plan that covers certain employees, 
consultants, and directors ("Participants") of the Company who are entitled to phantom units, as applicable, pursuantto the 
provisions of respective award agreements. This Phantom Equity Appreciation Plan is shareholder-approved, which permits 
the granting of phantom units to the Company's Pat1icipants of up to 1,500,000 units, 1,500,000 units and 991,692 units for 
the nine months ended September 28, 2013 and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 20 II. Under the plan, eligible 
participants are granted a plan unit at an exercise price which vests over a period oftime, generally four years. Upon a change 
in control, meaning any event that constitutes a qualirying liquidation event, the participant will earn and be paid a cash bonus 
for the vested plan units that is equal to the difference between the exercise price ofthe plan on the date of grant and the fair 
market value of the plan unit on tbe date oftl1e change in control event. The amount ofthe cash bonus payment may be 
reduced for the amount of required employee payroll withholding tax. 

If Participants incur a termination of service for any reason (excluding a termination for cause), (i) the Participants unvested 
phantom units shall immediately terminate and be cancelled for no consideration and (ii) the Participants' vested phantom 
units shall remain outstanding until a change of control. lfParticipants are terminated for cause, the Participants shall forfeit 
their entire award, including all vested and unvested phantom unlls. 

As of September 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012, 1,255,280, and 1,389,702 units of the Company at a weighted-average 
exercise price of$0.89 and $0.93 have been granted and are outstanding. No phantom units were granted during the year 
ended December 31, 20 ll. As of September 28, 2013 and December 31,2012, all 
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compensation expense related to the Phantom Equity Appreciation Plan units remained unrecognized because as ofthose dates 
the Company did not believe the change in control event was probable of occurring. If the change in control had occruTed on 
September 28, 2013 or December 31, 2012, the Company would have recognized $1 .0 million and $0.5 million of 
compensation expense for the vested phantom units based on the fair value of the Company's common stock as determined by 
the board of directors of $1.72 per share and $2. J 8 per share as of September 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012. 

14. Net (Loss) Income per Share of Common Stock 

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net (Joss) income per share of commo~1 stock attributable to 
common stockholders: 

Nine \\1on tbs Ended Ye11r End•d De£Cl!!ber J ! , 
September 28, September 29, 2010 

2013 2012 2012 2()11 As Restated 
(Unuudited) 

(In thousands, ucept per share aata) 
Numerator; 

Basic and di luted: 
Net (loss) income $ (7,044) $ 9,289 $ 26,460 $ 21,554 $ 10,122 
Noncumulative dividends on Series A 

convertible preferred stock (22,627) (22,627) 
Undistributed earnings allocated to 

Series A convertible preferred stock (2,222) {12,699) {783) 
Net (loss) income attributable to 

common stockholders, basic 
and diluted $ (7,044) $ (13,338) $ I ,61.1 $ 8,855 $ 9,339 

Basic: 
Weighted-average shares used in computing 

net (loss) income per share attributable to 
common stockholders, basic 35,282 35,282 35,282 33,952 127,356 

Diluted; 
Weighted-average shares used in 

computing net (loss) income per 
share attributable to common 
stockholders, basic 35,282 35,282 35,282 33,952 127,356 

Add weighted-average effect of 
dilutive securities 983 972 

Weighted-average shares used in computing 
net (loss) income per share attributable to 
common stockholders, di luted 35,282 35,282 36,265 34,924 127,356 

Net (loss) income per share attributable to 
common stockholders: 

Basic $ {0.20) $ (0.38) $ 0.05 $ 0.26 $ 0,07 

Diluted $ (0.20} $ (0.38) $ 0.04 $ 0.25 $ 0,07 

The net (loss) income per share attributable to common stockholders in 2010 reflects the 47.1: l stock split on convertible 
Series A convertible preferred stock. 
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The foiJowing weighted-average shares of common stock equivalents were excluded from the computation of diluted net (loss) 
income per share of common stock for the periods presented because including them would have been antidilutive (in 
thousands): 

Nine Moollts Eoded Yr.ar Ended December 31, 
Septembl!r28, September 29, 

2013 2012 2012 2011 2010 
(Unaudited) 

Stock options to purchase common stock 10,915 1,142 2,779 265 

15. Income Taxes 

The geographical breakdown of income before the provision for income taxes is as follows: 

Domestic 
Foreign 

Income before provision for income taxes 

The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows: 

Current: 
Federal 
State 
Foreign 

Total current 
Deferred: 

Federal 
State 
Foreign 

Total deferred 
Total provision for income taxes 

D-40 

2012 

$39,626 
842 

$40,468 

2012 

$13,660 
1,5 10 

436 
15,606 

(1, 148) 
(120) 

___ill9) 
.Jl2W 
~ 

Years Eoded December 31, 
2010 

'2011 AsR6tated 
(lo thousands) 
$35,336 $ 17,706 

~ $ 17,706 

Years Ended December 31, 
2010 

2011 AsRtstated 
(lo thousands) 

$13,752 $ 9,876 
1,418 1,152 

15,170 11,028 

(1,358) (3,261) 
(30) (I 83) 

~ !3.444) 
~ $ 7,584 
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The reconciliation of federal statutory income tax provision to the Company' s effective income tax provision is as follows: 

Years Ended December 311 
2010 

__lliL 2011 
(In lbou~aods) 

As Rutated 

U.S. federal taxes at statutory tax rate $14.024 $12,368 $ 6,197 
State taxes, net of federal benefit 904 902 511 
Foreign tax rate differential (49) 
Gain on bargain purchase (804) 
Petmanent and other _JE) 512 876 

Provision for income ta.'<es $14,008 $13,782 .$ 7!584 

The following table presents tbe breakdown between current and non-current deferred tax assets and liabilities: 

Deferred tax assets, current 
Deferred tax nssets, non-cun·ent 
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current 

Total net deferred tax assets 

As of December 31, 
l Oll l OU 

-----v.;-thousand~ 
$ 4,452 $2,672 

2,266 3,197 
_C!..ill) _{lli) 
~ $5,333 

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the defen-ed tax assets and liabilities are 
presented below: 

Deferred tax assels: 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 
Inventory 
Compensation accrual 
Accruals and other 

Net deferred tax assets 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Property and equipment 
lrnangible asset~ 

Net deferred tax liabilities 
Net deferred tax assets 

As of Decembrr Jl , 
lOJ:Z lOll 

--(1-o thousand~ 

$ 84 
1,093 
2,830 
3,204 
7,211 

(493) 

..i1..!W 

...Mm 
$ 5,544 
= 

$ 38 
548 

3,738 
1,552 
5,876 

(543) 

~ 
$5,333 
= 

As of December 31, 2012 and 20 I I, the Company did not have any net operating loss carryfo1wards from prior years. 
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Tne Company intends to indefinitely reinvest eamings from foreign subsidiaries and, accordingly, no related provision for 
U.S. federal and state income taxes has been provided on such earnings. Upon distribution of those earnings in the form of 
dividends or othen¥ise, the Company may be subject to both U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax 
credits) and withholding taxes in the various countries. At December 31, 2012, the undistributed earnings approximated 
$2.6 million. There were no undistributed earnings at December 31, 20 II. The determination of the future tax consequences of 
the remittance of these eamings is not practicable. 

Uncertain Tax Positions 

The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of total gtoss unrecognized tax benefit liabilities: 

Gross unrecognized tax benefit- beginning balance 
Increases related to tax positions taken during current year 

Gross unrecognized tax benefit- ending balance 

As ofD~ber 31, 
2012 2011 

----oil thousan~ 
$1,069 $ 521 
___222 548 

~ $ 1,069 
=""" 

2010 

$-
521 

$521 -
The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in the income tax provision. As of 
December 31,2012, the Company bad $1.5 mmion of uncertain tax positions of which $1.0 million represent the amount that, 
if recognized, would impact the effective income tax rate in future periods. While it is often difficult to predict the final 
outcome of any particular uncertain tax position, the Company does not believe that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits 
will change significantly in the next twelve months. Interest and penalty accrued for the periods presented were insignificant. 

The Company tiles income tax returns in the U.S. federal, various states and foreign tax jurisdictions. The Company is subject 
to U.S. federal income tax examination for the 2009 through 2012 tax years. Additionally, the Company is subject to various 
state income tax examinations for the 2008 through 2012 tax years. 

16. Defined Contribution Plans 

VTB maintains a defined contribution 40 I (k) profit sharing plan (the "Plan") for aU employees who are over the age of21 . 
Participants may make voluntary contributions up to the maximum amount alJowable by law. The Company may make 
contributions to the Plan on a discretionary basis that vest to the participants ratably over a six-year graded vesting schedule, 
beginning with the second year of participation. The Company made an employer match to the Plan which was insignificant 
for all periods presented. 

Lygo operates a defined contribution pension plan and the pension charge represents the amounts payable by the company to 
the fund in respect of the year. The assets of the plan are held separately from those ofLygo in an independently administered 
fund. Pension costs for the nine months ended September 28,2013 and for the year ended December 31. 2012 were 
insignificant. 

042 

Exhibit Page Number 341 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1493761/0001 193125 13459818/d621612ddefm 1... I 2/11/2013 



 
PA425

DEFMJ4A Page 326 of 348 

Table of Contents 

VTB HOLDINGS, INC. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Nine Month!! Ended Septemb!!!' 28; 2013 and September 29, 20!2 (IJmmdittld) anrl the 
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 

17. Gcogt·aphicallufonuatioo 

The following table represents total revenues based on where customers are physically located: 

Nine Mouths Ended Yem· Ended Decem be•· 311 

Septcmbc•· 28, September 19, 2010 
2013 2012 2012 2011 As Restated 

(UnAudited) 
(In thousands) 

United States $ 61,330 $ 65,876 $146,365 $131,115 $ 78,876 
Europe 25,682 24,362 50,874 27,900 12,135 
Other 5!340 6,861 9,897 7, 106 859 

Total revenues $ 92,352 $ 97,099 $207,136 $166,121 $ 9J ,870 

Revenues earned in the United Kingdom comprised $15.0 million and $27.1 million for the nine months ended September 28, 
2013 and for the year ended December 31, 2012. No other country outside of the United States comprised I 0% or greater of 
total revenues for the nit1e mouths ended September 28,2013 and September 29, 2012 and for the years ended December 31, 
2012,2011 and 2010. 

Property and equipment, net by location are summarized as follows: 

United States 
China 
United Kingdom 

Total property and equipment, net 

18. Related Party 

As of SeJ!Iember 28, 
2013 

(Uouudllcd) 

$ 6, 102 
596 
100 

$ 6,798 

As of December 31, 

(lo thousands) 
$5,006 $1,210 

657 470 
69 

$5,732 ~ 

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company incurred consulting fees of $0.3 million towards professional services 
provided by one of its shareholders. 
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The purpose of the Plan is to assist the Company, its Subsidiaries and Affiliates in attracting and retaining valued 
Employees, Consultants and Non-Employee Directors by offering them a greater stake in the Company's success and a closer 
identity with it, and to encourage ownershjp of the Company's stock by such Employees, Consultants and Non-Employee 
Directors. On and after the Effective Date, no further grants shall be made under the Prior Plans, wruch shall remain in effect 
solely as to outstanding Options thereunder. 

2. Oetinitjons 

As used herein, the following definitions shall apply: 

2.1. "Affiliate" means any entity other lhan the Subsidiaries in whlch the Company has a substantial direct or 
indirect equity interest, as detennmed by the Board. 

2.2. "Award" means a grant of Common Stock, Deferred Stock, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Options or 
SARs under the Plan. 

2.3. "Award Agreement" means the written agreement, instrument or document evidencing an Award or Prior Plan 
Award, including any such item in an electronic medium. 

2.4. "Board" means the Board ofDirectors of the Company. 

2.5. "Change in Control" means, after the Effective Date {and the consummation of the transactions described in the 
Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among the Company, Paris Acquisition Corp. and VTB Holdings, Inc., dated as of 
August 5, 2013, which shall not be treated as a Change in Control for purposes of the Plan), any of the following events: 

(a) a "person" (as such term in used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the 1934 Act), other than a trustee or other 
fiduciary holding securities under an employee benefit plan of the Company or a corporation owned, directly or indirectly, by 
the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of stock of the Company, is or 
becomes the "beneficial owner" (as defined in Rule 13D-3 under the 1934 Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the 
Company representing fifty percent (50%) or more of the combined voting power of the Company's then outstanding 
securities; or 

(b) during any period of two consecutive yeats, individuals who at the beginning of such. period constitute the 
Board and any new director (other tban a director designated by a person who bas entered into an agreement with the 
Company to effect a transaction described in Section 2.5(a), Section 2.5(c) or Section 2.S(d) hereof) whose election by the 
Board or nomination for election by the Company's stockholders was approved by a vote of at least two-thirds of the directors 
th.en still in office who either were directors at the beginning of the period or whose election or nomination for election was 
previously approved, cease for any reason to constitute a majority thereof; or 

(c) the Company merges or consolidates with any other corporation, oth.er than in a merger or consolidation 
that would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent (either 
by remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity) at least fifty percent (50%) of the 
combined voting power of the voting securities of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such 
merger or consolidation; or 
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(d) the complete liquidation of the Company or the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the 
Company's assets. 

(e) Notwithstanding anything in the Plan or an Award Agreement to the contrary, if an Award is subject to 
Section 409A of the Code, no event thai, but for ihis Section, would be a Ch1mgc iu Control as defwed iu the Plan or the 
Award Agreement, as applicable, shaU be a Change in Control unless such event is also a "change in control event" as defined 
in Section 409A oftlte Code. 

2.6. "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury regulations promulgated 
thereunder. A reference to any provision of the Code or the Treasury regulations promulgated therelmder shall ,include 
reference to any successor provision of the Code or the Treasury regulations. 

2.7. "Committee, means the committee designated by lhe Board to administer the Piau under Section4. 

2.8. "Common Stock" means the common stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share, or such other class or 
kind of shares or other securities resulting from the application of Section 13. 

2.9. "Company" means Parametric Sound Corporation, a Nevada corporation, or any successor corporation. 

2.10. "Consultant'' means an individual who renders services to the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate as a 
consultant, advisor or independent contractor. 

2.1 I . "Deferral Period" means the period during which the receipt of a Deferred Stock Award tmder Section 7 wiU 
be deferred. 

2.1 2. "Defened Stock'' means Common Stock to be delivered al the end of a Deferral Period and awarded by the 
Committee under Section 7. 

2.13. "Effective Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 25. 

2.14. "Employee" means an individual, including an officer or director, who is employed by tbe Company, a 
Subsidiary or an Affiliate. 

2.15. "Fair Market Value" means the fair market value of Common Stock determined by such methods or 
procedures as shall be established from time to time by the Committee in good faith and in accordance with applicable law. 
Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, the Fair Market Value of Common Stock shall mean, on any given date, the 
closing price of a share of Common Stock on the principal national securities exchange on which the Common Stock is listed 
on such date or, if Common Stock was not traded on such date, on the last preceding day on which the Common Stock was 
traded. 

2.16. ''Incentive Stock Option" means an Option or a portion thereof intended to meet the requirements of an 
incentive stock option as defrned in Section 422 of the Code and designated as an Incentive Stock Option in the applicable 
Award Agreement. 

2.17. " 1934 Acf' means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules promulgated thereunder. A 
reference to any provision of the 1934 Act or rule promulgated under the 1934 Act shall include reference to any successor 
provision or rule. 

2. J 8. "Non-Employee Director" means a member of the Board who meets the definition of a "non-employee 
director" under Rule 16b-3(b)(3) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 1934 Act. 
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2.19. "Non-Qualified Option" means an Option or a portion tl1ereofnot intended to be an Incentive Stock Option 
and designated as a Non-Qualified Option in the applicable Award Agreement. 

2.20. "Option" means a right to purchase a specified number of shares of Common Stock at a specified price 
awarded by the Committee under Section I 0 ofthe Plan. 

2.21. "Participant" means any Employee, Consultant or Non-Employee Director who receives an A ward. 

2.22. "Performance Cycle" means the period selected by the Committee during which the performance of the 
Company, any Subsidiary, any Affiliate or any business unit thereof, or any individual is measured for the purpose of 
detennining the exient to which a Performance Goal has been achieved. 

2.23. "Performance Goal" means a goal that must be met by tlle end of a period specified by the Committee (but tllat 
is substantially uncertain of being met before the grant ofthe Award) and that, in the case of Qualified Performance-Based 
Awards, must be based upon any one or more of the following as they relate to the Company, its Subsidiaries or Affiliates (or 
any business unit or department thereof): (i) stock price, (ii) market share, (iii) sales, (iv) earnings per share, (v) diluted 
earnings per share, (vi) diluted net income per share, (vii) retum on stockholder equity, (viii) costs, (ix) cash flow, (x) return 
on total assets, (xi) return on capital or invested capital, (xii) return on net assets, (xiii) operating income, (xiv) net income, 
(xv) earnings (or net income) before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, (xvi) improvements in capital structure, 
(xvii) gross, operating or otller margins, (xviii) budget and expense management, (xix) productivity ratios, (xx) working 
capital targets, {xxi) enterprise value, (xxii) safety record, (xxiii) completion of acquisitions or business expansion of the 
company, our subsidiaries or affiliates (or any business unit or department thereof) (xxiv) economic value added or other value 
added measurements, (xxv) expense targets, (x.xvi) operating efficiency, (xxvii) regulatory body approvals for 
commercialization of products (xxviii) implementation or completion of critical projects or related milestones, (xxix) quality 
control, (XXX) supply chain achievements and (xxx:i) marketing and distribution of products, in all cases, whether measured 
absolutely or relative to an index or peer group. 111e Committee shall have discretion to determine the specific targets with 
respect to each of these categories of Performance Goals. Performance Goals with respect to Awards that are not intended to 
be Qualified Performance-Based A wards may be based on one or more of the preceding measures or any other measure that 
the Committee may determine in its sole discretion. lfthe Committee determines tllat a change in tlle business, operations, 
corporate structure or capital structure oftbe Company, or the manner in which it conducts its business, or other events or 
circumstances render the Performance Goals unsuitable, the Committee may modify such Performance Goals or the related 
minimum acceptable level of achievement, in whole or in part, as the Committee deems appropriate and equitable. 

2.24. "Plan" means the Parametric Sound Corporation 2013 Stock-Based ·Incentive Compensation Plan herein set 
forth, as amended from time to time. 

2.25. "Prior Plans" means the2010 Stock Option Plan ofParametric Sound Corporation and the 2012 Stock Option 
Plan of Parametric Sound Corporation, in each case as amended. 

2.26. "Prior Plan Award" means an "Option" as defined in the applicable Prior Plan. 

2.27. "Qualified Performance-Based Award" means an Award or portion of an Award that is intended to satisfy the 
requirements for "qualified performance-based compensation" under Section 162(m) of the Code. 

2 .28. ''Restricted Stock" means Common Stock awarded by the Committee under Section 8 of the Plan. 

2.29. "Restricted Stock Unit" means the right to a payment in Common Stock or in cash, or in a combination 
thereof, awarded by the Committee under Section 9 of the Plan. 
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2.30. "Restriction Period" means the period during which Restricted Stock awarded under Section 8 of the Plan and 
Restricted Stock Units awarded under Section 9 of the Plan are subject to forfeiture. 

2.3 1. "SAR" means a stock appreciation right awarded by the Corrunittee under Section 11 of the Plan. 

2.32. "Subsidiary" means any corporation (other than the Company), partnership, joint venture or other business 
entity of which 50% or more of the outstanding voting power is beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company. 

2.33. "Ten Percent Stockholder" means a person who on any given date owns, either directly or indirectly (taking 
into account the attribution rules contained in Section 424(d) of the Code), stock possessing more than 10% of the total 
combined voting power ofpll classes of stock of the Company or a Subsidiary. 

3. Eli£ibility 

Any Employee, Consultaut or Non-Employee Director is eligible to receive an Award. 

4. Administration and Implementation of Plan 

4.1. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. Any action of the Committee in administering the Plan shall 
be final, conclusive and binding on all persons, including the Company, its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, their Employees, 
Consultants and directors, Participants, persons claiming rights from or through Participants and stockholders of the Company. 
No member of the Committee shall be personally liable for any action, determination, or interpretation taken or made in good 
faith by the Committee with respect to the Plan, any Awards granted hereunder or any Prior Plan Awards, and aU members of 
the Committee shall be fully indemnified and protected by the Company in respect of any such action, determination or 
interpretation. 

4.2. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have full and fmal authority in its discretion (a) to 
select the Employees, Consultants and Non-Employee Directors who will receive Awards pursuant to the Plan, (b) to 
determine lhe type or types of Awards to be granted to each Participant, (c) to deteonine the number of shares of Common 
Stock to which an Award will relate, the terms and conditions of any Award granted under the Plan (including, but not limited 
to, restrictions as to vesting, transferability or fo1feiture, exercisability or settlement of an Award and waivers or accelerations 
thereof, and waivers of or modifications to performance conditions relating to an Award, based in each case on such 
considerations as the Committee shall determine) and all other matters to be determined in connection with an Award; (d) to 
determine whether, to what extent, and under what circumstances an Award may be canceled, forfeited, or surrendered; (e) to 
determine whether, and to certify that, Performance Goals to which the settlement of an Award is subject are satisfied; (f) to 
correct any defect or supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan, and to adopt, amend and rescind such 
mles and regulations as, in its opinion, may be advisable in the administration of the Plan; and (g) to construe and interpret the 
Plan and to make all other determinations as it may deem necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan. 

4.3. The Committee's powers shall also include responsibility to determine the effect, if any, of a Change in Control 
of the Company upon outstanding Awards. Upon a Change in Control, the Committee may, at its discretion, (i) fully vest any 
or all A wards made under the Plan, (ii) determine whether all applicable Performance Goals have been achieved and the 
applicable level of performance, (iii) cancel any outstanding Awards in exchange for a cash payment of an amouni (including 
zero) equal to the difference between the then Fair Market Value of the Award less the option or base price of the Award, 
(iv) after having given the Participant a reasonable chance to exercise any vested outstanding Options or SARs, terminate any 
or all of the Participant's unexercised Options or SARs, (v) where the Company is not the surviving corporation, cause the 
surviving corporation to assume all outstanding Awards or replace all outstanding Awards with comparable awards or (vi) take 
such other action as the Committee shall determine to be appropriate. 
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4.4. The Committee may impose on any Award or the exercise thereof, at the date of grant or thereatler, such terms 
and conditions, not inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan, as the Committee shall determine, including terms requiring 
forfeiture of Awards in the event of the Participant's termination of employment or service with the Company or any 
Subsidiary or Affiliate; provided, however, that the Committee shall retain full power to accelerate or waive any such term or 
condition as it may have previously imposed, including, without limitation, any vesting period. All Awards shall be evidenced 
by an Award Agreement. The right of a Participant to exercise or receive a grant or settlement of any Award, and the timing 
thereof, may be subject to such Performance Goals as may be specified by the Committee. 

4.5. To the extent pennitted by applicable Jaw, the Committee may delegate some or all of its authority with respect 
to the Plan and Awards to any executive officer ofthe Company or any other person or persons designated by the Committee, 
in each case, acting individually or as a committee, provided that the Committee may not delegate its authority hereunder to 
make awards to Employees who are (i) "officers" as defined in Rule 16a-l(f) under the 1934 Act, (ii) "covered employees" 
within the meaning of Section l62(m) of the Code or (iii) officers or other Employees who are delegated authority by the 
Committee pursuant to this Section. Any delegation hereunder shall be subject to the restrictions and limits that the Committee 
specifies at the time of such delegation or thereafter. The Committee may at any time rescind the authority delegated to any 
person pursuant to this Section. Any action undertaken by any such person or persons in accordance with the Committee's 
delegation of authority pursuant to this Section shall have the same force and effect as if undertaken directly by the 
Committee. 

S. Shares of Stock Subject to the Plan 

5.1. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 13, the total number of shares of Common Stock available for 
Awards and Prior Plan Awards under the Plan shall be 2,250,000 plus the number of shares that were authorized but unissued 
under the Prior Plans. 

5.2. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 13, (i) the maximum number of shares of Common Stock available 
for Awards that are intended to be Incentive Stock Options shall not exceed 2,250,000 and (ii) the maximum number of shares 
of Common Stock available for Awards that may be granted to any individual Participant shall not exceed 450,000 during any 
calendar year. 

5.3. If any shares subject to an Award or Prior Plan Award are forfeited or such Award otherwise terminates, any 
shares counted against the number of shares available for issuance pursuant to the Plan with respect to such Award or Prior 
Plan Award shall, to the extent of any such forfeiture or termination, again be available for Awards under the Plan; provided, 
however, that the Committee may adopt procedures for the counting of shares relating to any Award to ensure appropriate 
counting, avoid double counting, and provide for adjustments in any case in which the number of shares actually distributed 
differs from the number of shares previously counted in connection with such Award. SARs or Restricted Stock Units to be 
settled i.n shares of Common Stock shall be counted in full against the number of shares available for award under the Plan, 
regardless of the number of shares of Common Stock issued upon settlement of the SAR or Restricted Stock Unit. lfany 
shares subject to an Award or Prior Plan Award are retained or reacquired by the Company in payment of an exercise price or 
satisfaction of a withholding or other tax obligation in connection with any Award, such shares shall not be made available for 
future Awards under the Plan. 

5.4. Any shares issued hereunder may consist, in whole or in part, of authorized and unissued shares or treasury 
shares. Any shares issued by the Company through the assumption or substitution of outstanding grants in connection with the 
acquisition of another entity sball not reduce the maximum number of shares available for delive.ry under the Plan. 

6. Common Stock 

An Award of Common Stock is a grant by the Company of a specified number of shares of Common Stock to the 
Participant, which shares are not subject to forfeiture except as set fot1h in Section 21. Upon the Award of 
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Common Stock, the Committee may direct the number of shares of Commorr Stock rubject to such Award be issued to the 
Participant, designating the Participant as the registered owner. The Participant shall have all oftbe customary rights of a 
stockholder with respect to the Award of Common Stock, including the right to vote shares of the Common Stock and receive 
dividends with respect to the Common Stock. 

7. Deferred Stocl' 

An Award ofDefeJTed Stock is an agreement by the Company to deliver to the Patticipant a specified number of shares 
of Common Stock at the end of a specified Deferral Period or Periods. Such an Award shall be subject to the following terms 
and conditions: 

7 .l. Upon the .A ward ofDeferred Stock, the Committee shall direct that the number of sbaces subject to such A ward 
be credited to the Participant's account on the books of the Company but that Issuance and delivery of the same shaH be 
deferred until the date or dates provided in the Award Agreement. Prior to issuance and delivery of the Deferred Stock, the 
Participant shall have no rights as a stockholder with respect to any shares of Deferred Stock credited to the Participant's 
account. 

7 .2. During the Deferral Period, no dividend shall be paid with respect to shares covered by a Defened Stock Award 
and the Participant shall have no future t ight to any dividend paid during the Deferral Period. 

7 3. The Deferral Period may consist of one or more installments. Provided that the Deferred Stock has not been 
previously forfeited, at the end of the Deferral Period or any installment thereof, the shares of Deferred Stock applicable to 
such installmeJJt, shall be issued and delivered to the Participant (or, where appropriate, the Participant's legal representative) 
ih accordance with the terms of the Award Agreement. 

8. Restricted Stock 

An Award of Restricted Stock is a grant by the Company of a specified number of shares of Cohlmon Stock to the 
Participant, which shares are subject to forfeiture upon the happening of specified events. Such an Award shall be subject to 
the following terms and conditions: 

8.1. Upon the Award ofRestricted Stock, the Committee may direct the number of shares of Common Stock subject 
to such Award be issued to the Participant or placed in a restricted stock account (including an electronic account) with the 
transfer agent and in either case designating the Participant as the registered owner. The certificate(s), if any, representing such 
shares shall be physically or electronically legended, as applicable, as to sale, transfer, assignment, pledge or other 
encumbrances during the Restriction Period and, if issued to the Participant, returned to the Company to be held in escrow 
during the Restriction Period. In all cases, the Participant shall sign a stock power endorsed in blank to the Company to be held 
in escrow during the Restriction Period. 

8.2. During the Restriction Period, the Participant shall have the right to vote shares of Restricted Stock. During the 
Restriction Period, no dividend shall be paid with respect to the number of shares covered by a Restricted Stock Award and tbe 
Participant shall have no future right to any dividend paid during the Restriction Period. 

8.3. Provided that the Restricted Stock has not been previously forfeited, at the end of the Restriction Period the 
restrictions imposed under the Award Agreement shall lapse with respect to the number of shares specified thereunder, and the 
legend, if any, imposed hereunder shall be removed and such number of shares delivered to the Participant (or, where 
appropriate, the Participant' s legal representative). 

9. Restricted Stock Units 

An Award ofRestricted Stock Units is a grant by the Company of the right to receive a payment in Common Stock or in 
cash, or in a combination thereof, that is equal to the Fair Market Value of a share of 
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Common Stock as of the date of vesting or payment, as set forth in the applicable Award Agreement, which right is subject to 
forfeiture upon the happening of specified events. Such an Award shall be subject to the following terms and conditions: 

9.1. Any amount payable upon the end of the Restriction Period with respect to a Restricted Stock Unit shall be paid 
by the Company in shares ofCommon Stock, in cash or in a combination of shares of Common Stock and cash, as dete.rmined 
by the Committee in its sole discretion or as set forth in the Award Agreement. 

9.2. P.-ovided that the Restricted Stock Units have not been previously forfeited, at the end of the Restriction Period 
the restrictions imposed under the Award Agreement shall lapse with respect to the number of Restricted Stock Units specified 
thereunder, and shares of Common Stock or cash with a value equal to the Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock 
underlying such Restricted Stock Units shall be delivered to the Participant (or, where appropriate, the Participant' s legal 
representative). 

10. Options 

Options give a Participant the right to purchase a specified number of shares of Common Stock from the Company for a 
specified time period at a fixed price. Options may be either Incentive Stock Options or Non-Qualified Stock Options. The 
grant of Options shall be subject to the following tenns and conditions: 

10.1. Option Price: The price per share at which Common Stock may be purchased upon exercise of an Option shall 
be dete1111ined by the Committee, but shall be not less than I 00% ofthe Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the 
date of grant (or 110% of such Fair Market Value in the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to a Ten Percent 
Stockholder), unless the Option was granted through the assumption of, or in substitution for, outstanding awards previously 
granted by an entity acquired by the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate or with which the Company or any Subsidiary or 
Affiliate combines. 

1 0.2. Term of Options: The term of an Option sbaiJ in no event be greater than ten years (five years in the case of an 
(ncentive Stock Option granted to a Ten Percent Stockholder). 

10.3. Incentive Stock Options: Each provision of the Plan and each Award Agreement relating to an Incentive Stock 
Option shall be construed so that each Incentive Stock Option shall be an incentive stock option as defmed in Section 422 of 
the Code, and any provisions of an A ward Agreement that cannot be so construed shall be disregarded. In no event may a 
Participant be granted an Incentive Stock Option which does not comply with the grant and vesting limitations prescribed by 
Section 422(b) of the Code. Incentive Stock Options may not be granted to Employees of Affiliates or to Consultants or Non­
Employee Directors. 

10.4. Payment of Option Price: The option price of the shares of Common Stock received upon the exercise of an 
Option shall be paid within three days of the date of exercise: (i) in cash, or (ii) with the proceeds received from a broker­
dealer whom the Participant has authorized to sell all or a portion of the Common Stock covered by the Option, or (ii i) with 
the consent of the Committee, in whole or in part in Common Stock held by the Participant and valued at Fair Market Value 
on the date of exercise. With the consent of the Committee, payment upon the exercise of a Non-Qualified Option may be 
made in whole or in part by Restricted Stock held by the Participant and valued at Fair Market Value on the date the Option is 
exercised. In such case, the Common Stock to which the Optio11 relates shall be subject to the same forfeiture restrictions 
originally imposed on the Restricted Stock exchanged therefor. An Option may be exercised only for a whole number of 
shares of Common Stock. 
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11. Stock Aoprcciation Rients 

SARs give the Participant the right to receive, upon exercise of tue SAR, the excess of (i) the Fair Market Value of one 
share of Common Stock on the date of exercise over (ii) the grant price of the SAR as determined by the Committee, but 
which may never be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date of grant. The grant of 
SARs shall be subject to the following terms and conditions: 

11 .1. The term of a SAR shall in no event be greater than ten years. 

11.2. The Committee shall determine the time or times at which a SAR may be exercised in whole or in part, the 
method of exercise, the method of settlement, fonn of consideration payable in settlement, method by which Common Stock 
will be delivered or deemed to be delivered to Pru.ticipaots, wbether or not a SAR shall be in tandem with auy other Award, 
and any other terms and conditions of any SAR. 

I 1.3. The Committee may provide that a SAR shall be deemed to be exercised at the close of business on the 
scheduled expiration date of such SAR. 

12. Qualified Pc•·fonnance-Based Awards, 

To the extent the Committee determines, in its sole discretion, tbat it is necessary or advisable in order to comply with the 
deductibility limitations of Section 162(m) of the Code applicable to Qualified Perfonnance·Based Awards, the following 
nales shall apply: 

12.1. Only an Employee who is a "covered employee" within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code shall be 
el.igible to receive Qualified Performance-Based Awards. The Committee shall designate in its sole discretion which covered 
employees will be Participants for a Performance Cycle within the earlier of (i) the first 90 days of a Perfonnance Cycle and 
(ii) the lapse of25% oftbe Performance Cycle. 

12.2. The Committee shall establish in writing within the earlier of (i) the first 90 days of a Perfon:nancc Cycle and 
(li) the lapse of25% of the Perfonnance Cycle, and in any event, while the outcome is substantially uncertain, 
(A) Performance Goals for the Performance Cycle, and (B) in respect of such Perfonnance Goals, a minimum acceptable level 
of achievement below which no payment will be made or no Award shall vest or become exercisable, and au objective formula 
or other method for determining the amount of any payment to be made or the extent to which an Award here1mder shall vest 
or become exercisable if perfonnance is at or above such minimum acceptable level but falls short of the maximum 
achievement of the specified Performance Goals. 

12.3. Following the completion of a Performance Cycle, the Committee shall review and certify in writing whether, 
and to what extent, the Performance Goals for the Performance Cycle have been achieved and, if so, to also calculate and 
certify in writing the amount of the Qualified Performance-Based Awards earned for the Performance Cycle based upon the 
Performance Goals and the related formulas or methods as determined pw·suant to Section 12.2. The Committee shall then 
determine the actual amount payable or the extent to which an Award is vested or exercisable as a result of attainment of such 
Perfonnance Goals under each Participant's Award for the Performance Cycle, and, in doing so, may reduce or eliminate, 
except as otherwise provided in the A ward Agreement, the amount of the A ward. l.u no event shall the Committee have the 
authority to increase Award amounts to any covered employee under a Qualified Performance-Based Award. 

12.4. A Qualified Performance-Based Award granted, vesting or becoming exercisable with respect to a 
Performance Cycle shall be paid (unless such Award is subject to the Participant's exercise, which exercise such Participant 
has not effectuated) as soon as prncticable following completion of the certification described in Section 12.3 but in no event 
later than December 31 of the year following the year in which the applicable Perfonnance Cycle ends. 
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shipping such Product. For the avoidance of doubt, the sale of a Producr between Licensee and any of its Affiliates shall not be 
a sale for purpose of this defutition and shaU not be subject to Royalties. 

(b) A Product shall be considered "sold" on the date payment is received for such Product. Licensee or its 
Affiliates, as applicable, shall invoice each Product sold and shall sell the Products only on a cash or credit basis (with credit 
being deemed the same as cash for purposes of defining and computing the Net Sales). 

5.1 .2 The Royalties shall be paid without offset or deduction, free and clear of any taxes, duties, levies, fees or 
charges of any kind (except that Licensee shaH make any applicable withholding payments due on behalf ofLicensor and shall 
provide Licensor upon request with such written documentation regarding any such payment as available to Licensee relating 
to an application by Licensor for a foreign tax credit for such payment with the United States 1ntemal Revenue Service), via 
wire transfer of immediately available funds in U.S. Dollars on or before thirty (30) days after the end of each calendar 
quarter. Licensee shall accompany each royalty payment with a reasonably detailed statement reflecting Net Sales of Products 
and the determination ofthe amount of the Royalties during the applicable reporting period. Such statements shall specify: the 
gross sales (if available) and Net Sales in each country's currency; the applicable royalty rate; the royalties payable in each 
country's currency, including accounting deductions taken in the calculation of Net Sales; the appHcable exchange rate of 
convert from each cmmtry's currency to U.S. Dollars; and the royalties payable in U.S. Dollars. Conversion of foreign 
currency shall be converted to U.S. Dollars at the conversion rate existing in the United States (as reported in The Wall Street 
Journal) on the last business day of the quarter immediately preceding the applicable calendar quarter. If The Wall Street 
Journal ceases to be pubHshed, then the rate of exchange to be used shall be that reported in such other business publication of 
national circulation in the United States as the Parties reasonably agree. 

5 .1 .3 Minimum. To maintain its exclusive license hereunder, during the Term Licensee shall pay to Licensor at least 
two million U.S. dollars ($2,000,000) in Royalties during the first five (5) years of the Term, and at least one million U.S. 
dollars ($1 ,000,000) in Royalties in each year of the Agreement thereafter (the "Minimum Royalty"). 1n the event Licensee has 
not paid at least two million U.S. dollars ($2,000,000) in Royalties by the fourth anniversary of the Effective Date and it does 
not appear in Licensor's reasonable judgment likely based on a reasonable projection ofLicensee's sales that Licensee will 
pay the full amount of the Minimum Royalty due to Licensor before the end of the fifth (5th) year of the Term, at Licensor's 
option upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to Licensee, Licensee's license to the Licensed Patents and Licensed 
Technology and Materials under Section 2.1.1 shall become non-exclusive until the termination or expiration of the 
Agreement, provided, however, Licensee shall have the option to pay the difference between the Royalties actually paid to 
Licensor as of such date and the Minimum Royalty within thirty (30) days of such notice from Licensor in order to retain its 
exclusive license to the Licensed Patents and Licensed Technology and Materials under Section 2. l.l through the end of the 
fifth (5th) year of the Agreement. At the end of each successive year of the Agreement, upon written notice to Licensee, 
Licensor shall have the right to convert the exclusive license under Section 2.1.1 to a non-exclusive license if Licensor has not 
paid at least one million U.S. dollars ($1 ,000,000) in Royalties in the prior year of the Agreement, but Licensee shall have the 
right to retain the exclusive license under Section 2.1 1 by paying any balance of the applicable Minimum Royalty for that 
year within thirty (30) days of Licensor' s notice. For the avoidance of doubt Licensor's right to convert the exclusive License 
under Section 2. I .1 to a non-exclusive Ucense is Licensor's sole remedy in the event that Licensee has not paid the Minimum 
Royalty as set forth in this Section 5.1.3. At any time during the Term, upon written notice to Licensor, Licensee can elect to 
convert the license granted under Section 2.1.1 to a non-exclusive license for the balance of the Term. 

5.2 Late Payments. Any amount not timely paid shall bear interest at the rate of 1.5% per month (or such lesser amount as 
may be the maximum permitted by law) for each month or portion thereof during which it shall remain unpaid. 

5.3 Audit of Royalty Payments. No more than once in any calendar year, and upon prior written notice, Licensor shall 
have the right request an audit of the books and records that form the basis of Licensee's Net Sales 
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and the calculation of the Royalties by an independent auditor designated by LiceJISor. Licensee agrees to give such 
independent auditor full and unfettered access to such books and records during normal business hours at a time mutually 
agreeable to the Parties. Licensee will have the right to require the independent auditor to sign appropriate non-disclosure 
agreements with Licensee prior to receiving any information, and the independent auditor may disclose only the final results of 
such audit to Licensor (i.e. , whether the royalties actually paJd were the correct amount). Licensor shail pay the entire costs 
and fees for such audit unless such audit l'eveals a discrepancy in the amount owed to Licensor greater than three percent (3%), 
in which case the reasonab.le costs of the audit shall be paid by Licensee. If it is determined during such audit that the amount 
of Royalties calculated and paid to Licensor was less than the correct amount of Royalties owed during the reviewed pel'iod, 
Licensee shall pay any outstanding Royalties due within five (5) days of such audit determination. If it is determined during 
such audit that the amount of Royalties calculated and paid to Licensor was greater than the amount owed, then Licensee rnay 
take a credit for the overpayment on the next Royalties payment, and shall reflect the credit in the statement accompanying the 
Royalties payment. 

ARTICLE6 
CONFIDENTIALITY 

6.1 Confidentiallnforrnation. For purposes of this Agreement, "Confidential Information" means any and all confidential 
and/or proprietary knowledge, data or information of a Party (the "Disclosing Patty"), its principals or Affiliates lltld any and 
all confidential and/or proprietary knowledge, data or information which the Disclosing Party has obtained or obtains from 
another party and which the Disclosing Party designates (whether or not in writing) as Confidentiallnfonnation, or· is 
reasonably understood to be treated a Coufidentiallnfonnation based upon the nature or disclosure of such infonnation or 
materials, including methods, techniques, processes, know-how, formulas, potential new or supplemental formulas, designs, 
drawings, specifications, models, data, source code, object code, documentation, diagrams, now charts, research, development, 
processes, procedures, business plans, budgets and unpublished financial statements, licenses, prices and costs, vendors, 
collaborators and customers, trademarks, copyrights, patents, trade secrets, copyrightable material, trademarkable material, 
patentable material, databases and any other informatiou or material considered proprietary by the Disclosing Party, not 
generally known by the public, or which derives independent economic value (actual or potential) from not being generally 
known to the public or persons unaffiliated with the Disclosing Party and which is subject of efforts by the Disclosing Party 
that are reasonable under the circumstances to maintain its secrecy, and any other information, know-how, techniques, material 
and data imparted or· made available by the Disclosing Party which is known by other Party (the "Receiving Party'') to be 
considered confidential by the Disclosi.ng Party, or by its nature is inherently or reasonably considered confidential. 
"Confidential Information" of Licensor includes tangible and intangible information relating to the Licensed Patents or 
Licensed Technology and Materials. 

6.2 Nondisclosure. During the term of this Agreement and thereafter, a Receiving Party, its mru1agers, officers, agents, 
employees and Affiliates shall hold in confidence and will not directly or indirectly disclose, use, make available, sell, transfer 
or otherwise use or exploit or permit the use or exploitation of the Confidential information of the Disclosing Party or its 
principals or Affiliates disclosed hereunder. The foregoing obligations shall not apply to Confidential Information that the 
Receiving Party can demonstrate by tangible evidence: (a) is or becomes generally available to the public through no fault of 
the Receiving Party; (b) can be demonstrated in writing to have been known by the Receiving Party or its Affiliates at the time 
of its disclosure without the application or use of the Confidentiallnfonnation; or (c) becomes known from a source other than 
the Disclosing Party without breach of this Agreement, provided that such other source has U1e right to disclose such 
Confidential Information. A Party may disclose the other Party's Confidentia.llnformation pw·suant to a final, binding non­
appealable order or requirement of a court, administrative agency or other government body only if sucb Party, if legally 
permitted, provides the other Party witb prompt written notice of such requirement sufficient to give the other Party the 
opportunity to seek a protective order, injunction or other measure to limit or prevent the disclosure of its Confidential 
Infonnation. Any such disclosure shall be limited to such portions of the Confidential information that the Party's legal 
counsel advises is required under the applicable law, subpoena 
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or order or process. Further, either Party may make such a disclosure to the extent required by securities laws or by the 
requirements of any nationally recognized securities exchange, quotation system or over-the-counter market on which such 
Party has its securities listed or traded. In the event that such disclosure is required as aforesaid, the Disclosing Party shall 
make reasonable efforts to provide the other Party with notice beforehand and to coordinate with the other Party with respect 
to the wording and timing of any such disclosure. 

6.3 Limitations on Use and Rights. A Party may directly and indirectly use the Confidential Information of the Disclosing 
Party only for the puo>oses set forth in this Agreement and for no other purpose. This Agreement does not grant the Receiving 
Party any ownership or other proprietary right in the Confidential Inf01mation of the Disclosing Party, or other rights, except 
those provided in this Agreement, and the Receiving Party shall not at any time do or allow any act or thing contesting or in 
any way impairing or tending to impair, any part of the Disclosing Party's ownership, right, title and interest in an to the 
Confidential Information. These rights are not transferable or subject to division or sublicense without Licensor' s prior written 
consent. In the event of any disclosure required to be made to either party's legal or financial advisors, the Receiving Party 
agrees to secure an agreement in writing from the recipient accepting obligations of confidentiality at least as stringent as those 
set forth herein, or ensuring that such party is legally bound to keep such information confidential. 

6.4 Protection of Confidential Information. Each Party shaJJ keep the Confidential Information of the other Party in the 
strictest of confidence and treat it with the utmost care and highest good faith, disclosing it only to such of its employees as 
necessary to carry out the transactions contemplated herein. Each Party shall advise each such employee ofthe confidential or 
proprietary nature of the Confidential Information and ofthe existence and importance ofthjs Agreement, and shall use its best 
efforts to ensure that each of its employees who are given access to Confidential Information will protect its secrecy. 

6.5 Return of All Confidential Information. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement under any of the provisions 
bereo±: each Party shaJI immediately cease any and all use of the other Party's Confidential Information or information derived 
from such Confidential Information, and any tangible records or memoriaUzations of such Confidential information shall 
thereupon be returned to the Disclosing Party or, if so requested in writing by I he Disclosing Party, be destroyed by the 
Receiving Party. Each Party agrees to make a thorough search of its business premises and to use commercially reasonable 
efforts to contact all its agents, employees, or independent contractors, past, present, or future, who had any access to any 
Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party to assure its return to the Disclosing Party. Should any such agent, employee, 
or independent contractor of the Receiving Party fail or refuse to return any Confidential Information ofthe other party, or any 
tangible records or memorialization thereof, the Receiving Party shall promptly notify the Disclosing Party of the same and 
shall assist the Disclosing Party in its recovery. 

6.6 In junctive Relief. Each Party understands and acknowledges that the Confidential Information, as weiJ as customer, 
employee and consultant relationships of the other Party, have been developed or obtained by such Party by the investment of 
significant time, effort and expense and provide such Party with a significant competitive advantage in its business. If a Party 
fails to comply with any obligations set forth in this Article 6, the other Party will suffer immediate, irreparable harm that 
could not be adequately remedied by an action at law. Accordingly, each Party agrees that the other Party shall be entitled to 
injunctive relief without the requirement of notice or a bond to enforce this Section 6, in addition to any other remedies at law 
or in equity. 

ARTICLE7 
WARRANTIES. REPRESENTATIONS. AND COVENANTS 

7.1 Mutual Representations. Each Party represents and warrants to the other Party as follows: (a) it is not a party to any 
restrictions, agreements or understandings which would prevent or make unlawful such Party's acceptance of the terms set 
forth in this Agreement or such Party's performance hereunder; (b) its acceptance of the terms of this Agreement and the 
performance of its obligations hereunder does not and wiJJ not (with or 
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without the passage oftimeJ conflict with or constitute a breach or defauiL of any comracl, agreement or anderstanding, oral or 
written, to which such Party is a party or by which such Party is bound; (c) it bas the right and authority to enter into this 
Agreement, to perform all of its respective obligations hereunder and to transfer and grant the rights transferred and granted 
herein; and (d) the persons executing this Agreement on behalf of such party have the authority from their respective 
governing bodies to enter into this Agreement and to bind their respective company to all the terms and conditions oftlus 
Agreement. 

7.2 Licensor's Warranties. 

7.2.1 Licensor represents and w!ln'ants that: (a) it has all rights necessary to grant the license rights granted under 
this Agreement, (b) to its actual knowledge witho1,1t investigation, the Licensed Patents and Licensed Technology and 
Materials do not infringe upon the Intellectual Property Rights of any person or entity and (c) no third party has been granted 
any rights under the Licensed Patents or Licensed Technology and Materials in tt1e Console Audio Products Field. 

7 .2.2 Except as specifically set forth in this Section 7, Licensor does not make any express, implied or statutory 
representation or warranty with respect to any part of the Licensed Patents or Licensed Technology and Materials, including 
any warranty of design, any implied warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose (or safety tor use) or any 
warranty arising from a course of dealing, trade usage or trade practice of any kind or nature. Except as specifically set forth in 
this Section 7, the Licensed Technology and Materials are being provided on an "as is, as available" basis. Licensor has not 
made and does not make any representation or guaranty as to the amount of revenues, profits or compensation of any type 
whatsoever that Licensee may realize in connection with the Licensee's commercial exploitation of the rights granted to it 
under this Agreement or relative to the Licensed Technology and Materials. Licensor is not responsible for manufacture of the 
Products and therefore makes no warranty or representation whatsoever, to any party, as to the quality, safety or effectiveness 
ofthe Products. 

7.3 Licensee's Covenants. Licensee covenants that (a) it will use commercially reasonable efforts to promote, market, 
distribute, honor wan·anties, provide customer service and coordinate servicing of the Products; (b) it will conduct business in 
a manner that does not reflect adversely on the Products and on Licensor's goodwill and reputation; and (c) it will not register 
nor apply to register, any Intellectual Property Rights in tJ1e Licensed Patents or Licensed Technology and Materials, without 
the written consent of Licensor. The Parties acknowledge and agree that any failure of Licensee to comply with the covenants 
set forth in this Section 7,3 shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Agreement and entitle Licensor to terminate this 
Agreement, in addition to other remedies. 

ARTICLES 
ALLOCATION OF RISKS 

8.1 Licensee's 1ndemnity. Licensee hereby indemnifies, defends and holds hannless Licensor, its directors, officers, 
employees, representatives, consultants, Afflliates, successors, assigns and agents (each a ''Licensor Indemnitee") against all 
damages, claims, liabilities, losses and other expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, whether Ol' not a lawsuit 
or other proceeding is fLied, that arise out of or relate to a third party claim ("~'')alleging or arising out of: (a) Licensee's 
use of the Licensed Patents and/or Licensed Technology and Materials; (b) claims relating to the Products developed by 
Licensee, including damages for personal injury, death or tangible property damage; (c) a breach or misrepresentation of any 
of Licensee's representations or warranties set forth in Section 7. I; (d) Licensee's transactions with third parties and/or the 
operation of its business; and/or (e) Licensee's fraudulent acts or willful misconduct, except that in each case Licensee shall 
have no obligations under this Section 8.1 for any Claim alleging or arising out of(i) any design defect that was present in any 
Licensed Technology and Materials or any Licensed Patent at the time it was provided by Licensor to Licensee hereunder or 
(ii) a claim that use of the Licensed Patents and/or Licensed 
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Technology and Materials in accordance with this Agreement Infringes upon or misappropriates the intellectual Property 
Rights of any person or entity, except to the extent a claim arises from (A) the use of any version of the Licensed Technology 
and Materials other than a current, unaltered release, if such infringement would have been avoided by the use of a current, 
unaltered release (provided that Licensor informed Licensee that the new version should be used to avoid infringement); (B) a 
modification made by Licensee that was not approved by Licensor or specified in the specifications, designs or instructions 
supplied by Licensor, if such infringement or design defect would have been avoided in the absence of such modification; 
(C) the combination, operation or use of the Licensed Patents or Licensed Technology and Materials with materials not 
provided or approved by Licensor, or specified in the specifications, designs or instructions supplied by Licensor, if such 
infringement or design defect would have been avoided in the absence of such combination, operation or use; or (D) the use of 
the Licensed Patents or Licensed Technology and Materials in breach of this Agreement. 

8.2 Licensor's lndemnitv. Ljcensor hereby indemnrfies and holds harmless Licensee, its directors, officers, employees, 
representatives, consultants, Affiliates, successors, assigns and agents (each a "Licensee Indemnitee") against all damages, 
claims, liabilities, losses and other expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, whether or not a lawsuit or other 
proceeding is filed, that arise out of or relate to a Claim alleging or arising out of (a) a breach or misrepresentation of any of 
Licensor' s representations or warranties set forth in Section 7.1 or 7.2, (b) Licensor's fraudulent acts or willful misconduct, or 
(c) any design defect that was present in any Licensed Technology and Materials or Licensed Patent at the time it was 
provided by Licensor to Licensee hereunder; or {d) a claim that use of the Licensed Patents and/or Licensed Technology and 
Materials in accordance with this Agreement infringes upon or misappropriates the Intellectual Property Rights of any person 
or entity. ln the defense or settlement of a Claim relative to the Licensed Patents or Licensed Technology and Materials, 
Licensor may at its option: (i) obtain for Licensee the right to continue to use the Licensed Patents or Licensed Technology 
and Materials, or (ii) replace or modify the Licensed Patents or Licensed Technology and Materials with substantially similar 
technology so that they avoid such claim while retaining the material usefulness to Licensee oftbe original Licensed Patents or 
Licensed Technology and Materials. Licensor shall have no obligations under this Section 8.2 to the extent a claim arises from 
(A) the use of any version of the Licensed Technology and Materials other than a current, unaltered release, if such 
infringement would have been avoided by the use of a current, unaltered release (provided that Licensor informed Licensee 
that the new version should be used to avoid infringement); {13) a modification made by Licensee that was not approved by 
Licensor or specified in the specifications, designs or instructions supplied by Licensor, if such infringement or design defect 
would have been avoided in the absence of such modification; (C) the combination, operation or use of the Licensed Patents or 
Licensed Technology and Materials with materials not provided or approved by Licensor, or specified in the specifications, 
designs or instructions supplied by Licensor, if such infringement or design defect would have been avoided in the absence of 
such combination, operation or use; or (D) the use of the Licensed Patents or Licensed Technology and Materials in breach of 
this Agreement. The foregoing and Sections 2.9. 2.10 and 7.2 state the entire obligation of Licensor with respect to the 
'infringement of intellectual property rights. 

8.3 Limitations on Indemnities. 

8.3.1 To the extent that any Claims falling within Licensor' s indemnification obligations under Section 8.2(d) arise 
out of patent infringement claims arising under non-U.S. Jaw, then Licensor's liability under Section 8.2(d) for such Claim(s) 
shall in no event exceed an amount equal to the greater of(a) one million U.S, dollars ($1 ,000,000) and (b) the total Royalties 
paid by Licensee to Licensor hereunder. To the extent that any Claims falling within Licensee' s indemnification obligations 
under Sections 8. lfa). (b) or Cdl arise out of patent infringement claims arising under non-U.S. law, then Licensor's liability 
under SectjQns 8 Ua). Cb) or (d) for such Claim(s) shall in no event exceed an amount equal to the greater of (i) one million 
U.S, dollars ($1 ,000,000) and (ii) the total Royalties paid by Licensee to Licensor hereunder. 

8.3.2 Licensor's liability for indemnification obligations under Section 8.2(c) shall in no event exceed an amount 
equal to the total Royalties paid by Licensee to Licensor hereunder. 
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8.4 Indemnification Procedures. In tlte evem a Party is entitled to indemnification under this Article 8 (the "Indemnified 
~'),written notice thereof shall be given lo the Party that is obliged to give the indemnification (the "fndemnifvjng. Party") 
as soon as reasonably possible. If, after such notice, the Indemnifying Party acknowledges without reservation that Section 8. I 
or 8.2, as applicable, applies with respect to such claim, the Indemnifying Party shall be entitled, if it so elects, in a written 
notice promptly delivered to the Indemnified Party, but in no event less than tlmty (30) days pnor to the date on which a 
response to such Claim is due, to immediately take control of the defense and investigation of such claim. The Indemnified 
Party shall cooperate, at the Indemnifying Party's cost, in all reasonable respects with the Indemnifying Party and its attorneys 
in the investigation, trial and defense of such claim and any appeal arising therefrom; provided, l1owever, that the Indemnified 
Patty may, at its own cost and expense, participate, through its attorneys or othe.twise, in such investigation, trial and defense 
of such claim and any appeal arising therefrom. No settlement of a Claim shall be entered into without the consent of the 
Indemnified Party (not to be um·easonably withheld or delayed), except where such settlement provides a full release of 
liability of the Indemnified Party and does not place auy restrictions or moneta1y obligations upon the Indemnified Party. Jf 
after investigation of the facts known at the time, the lndemn ifying Party disputes its obligation to indemnify the Indemnified 
Party: (a) the Parttes shall cooperate to ensure that timely and adequate defense of the claim is provided, (b) all defense costs 
shall initially be shared equally, and (c) the dispute between the Parties regarding the IndemnifYing Party's obligation to 
tndemnify shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions of Section 11. 7; provided that if such dispute between the 
Parties is finally resolved in favor of the Indemnifying Pm"ly, all such defense costs shall be borne by the Indemnified Party, 
and if the matter is finally resolved in favor of the Indemnified Party, all such defense costs shall be borne by the Indemnifying 
Party. 

8.5 Limitation ofLiabiJitv. 

8.5.1 EXCEPT FOR A BREACH OF THE CONFIDENTIALITY OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, OR FOR 
WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OR FRAUD, AND WITIIOUT LJMITING A PARTY'S INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS, 
NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITlVE, 
CONSEQUENTIAL OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, WHE1HER FORESEEABLE OR NOT, THAT ARE IN ANY WAY 
RELATED TO THfS AGREEMENT, THE BREACH HEREOF, LOSS OF GOODWILL OR PROFITS, LOST BUSINESS 
HOWEVER CHARACTERIZED AND/OR FROM ANY OTHER CAUSE WHATSOEVER. 

8.5.2 Each Party agrees tl.tat, notwithstanding any other term or condition of this Agreement, except with respect to a 
Patty's indemnity obligations, coufidel!tiality obligations, or obligations to pay Royalties, or a Party's willful misconduct, or 
fraud, a Party's maximum aggregate liability under this Agreement for any and all claims and causes whatsoever, regardless of 
the form of action, whether in contract or in tmt (including negligence), shaJinot exceed the aggregate of the total amount of 
Royalties paid to LiceJtSOr by Licensee hereunder during the six (6) month period immediately preceding the date of the cause 
of action giving rise to such claim. The existence of more than one claim shall not enlarge or extend said maximum limitation. 
Each Party hereby waives any and all rights, obligations, liability, claims or demattds related to the Licensed Technology and 
Materials and this Agreement in excess of said maximum limitation 

8.6lnsurance. During the Term, Licensee shall obtain and maintain at its sole expense commercial general liability, 
products liability, and other types of insurance in such amounts as Licensee deems appropriate in its reasonable business 
judgment. 

ARTICLE9 
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 

9.1 Employees. During the Tenn of this Agreement attd, for a period of two (2) years after termination or expiration of 
this Agreement, Licensee shall not. either directly or indirectly use atty Confidential Information to solicit or encourage any 
employee, independent contractor or consultant of Licensor to leave the employ, consultancy or services of Licensor. 
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ARTICLE 10 
TERM AND TERMINAIION 

10.1 Term 

LO.I. I The initial term of this Agreement shall be ten (10) years from the Effective Date. Attbe end of such initial 
term, this Agreement shall automatically renew for successive two (2) year renewal terms, unless one Party sends a written 
notice of non-renewal at least ninety (90) days prior to the end of the then-cuJ"rent term (such initial term and all renewal terms, 
the "~"). 

10.2 Termination. 

I 0.2.1 By either Paey. This Agreement may be terminated prior to expiration at any time by either Party upon 
written notice to the other: (a) in the event that a Party materially breaches any of its obligations hereunder and, except as set 
forth in subsection (b) below, fails to cure such breach within thirty (30) days after receiving written notice of such breach or 
any other applicable cure period set forth herein; or (b) immediately upon (i) the material breach by a Party of its 
confidentiality obligations hereunder, (ii) the insolvency or bankruptcy of a Party, or (iii) a Party's commission of an act of 
fraud, whether prior to or subsequent to the date hereof. 

10.2.2 By Licensee. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by Licensee upon written notice to L icensor. 

I 0.3 Effect of Termination. 

l 0.3. J Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement: (a) the license to the Licensed Patents and Licensed 
Technology and Materials shall terminate and Licensee shall cease to use, subject to Section 10.3.3, the Licensed Technology 
and Materials in any way; and (b) Licensee shall return to Licensor or destroy aU Licensor Confidential Information, the 
Licensed Technology and Materials delivered and all other written materials (whether tangible or intangible and whether or 
not in e lectronic form) that utilize or reference the Licensed Technology and Materials. All sublicenses granted by Licensee 
shall automatically terminate upon termination or expiration of this Agreement; provided, however, that any sublicenses of 
software to end users in accordance with this Agreement shall continue in accordance with the terms of the applicable end user 
license agreement. 

10.3.2 Termination or expiration of this Agreement will not terminate any obligations listed in this Agreement that 
are incurred prior to termination or expiration. Notwithstanding any termination or expiration, the provisions ofSectjons 2.3. 
2.6. 2. 12. 10.3 and Articles 5 (for payments accruing prior to termination or expjratjon and during any sell-off period pursuant 
to Section 10.3.3), 6, 7, 8, 9 and 11 shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

I 0.3.3 Existing Obligations and Inventory. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason, 
Licensee shall have the right to fulfill any outstanding agreements or orders for Products existing as of the date of termination 
or expiration. Subject to the foregoing, Licensor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase all inventory of 
finished Products, work-in-process and raw materials relative to the Products in Licensee' s possession or control. Jn the event 
that Licensor does not exercise its foregoing purchase right by issuing written notice to Licensee within five (5) days of 
expiration or termination of the Agreement, Licensee shall have a sell-off period of nine (9) months for all inventory of 
finished Products in existence on the date of termination or expiration. Any such items remaining in inventory and not 
purchased by Licensor at the end of such period shaH be destroyed at Licensee's expenses and Licensee shaU confirm such 
destruction in writing to Licensor. 

I 0.4 Cumulative Remedies. All rights and remedies conferred herein shall be cumulative and in addition to all of the 
rights and remedies available to each Party at law, equity or otherwise. 
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ARTICLE 1J 
GENERAL PROYISIONS 

I J , 1 Rules of Interpretation and Construction. 

Page 272 of 348 

11.1.1 The definitions ofthe terms herein shall apply equally to the singular and plw·al f01ms of the terms defined. 
Neutral pronouns and any variations thereof shall be deemed to include the feminine and masculine and all terms used in the 
singular shall be deemed to include the plural, and vice versa, as the context may require. The words "include", "includes" and 
"including" shall be deemed to be followed by the phrase "without limitation". The word "will" shall be construed to have tl1e 
same meaning and effect as the word "shall". The word ''any" shall mean "any and all" unless otherwise clearly indicated by 
context. Where either Party's consent is required hereunder, except as otherwise specified herein, such Party's consent may be 
granted or withheld in such Party's sole discretion. Derivative forms of any capitalized tenn defined herein shall have 
meanings correlative to the meaning specified herein. 

I 1.1.2 Unless the context requires otherwise: (a) any definition of or reference to any agreement, instrument or other 
document herein shall be construed as referring to such agreement, instrument or other document as from time to time 
amemled, supplemeuted or otherwise modified (subject to auy restrictions on such amendments, supplements or modifications 
set forth herein or therein), (b) any reference to any laws herein shall be construed as referring to such laws as from time to 
time enacted. repealed or amended, (c) any reference herein to any person shall be construed to include the person's successors 
and assigns, (d) the words "herein", "hereof" and "hereunder", and words of similar import, shall be construed to refer to this 
Agreement in its entirety and not to any particular provision hereof, and (e) all references herein to Articles, Sections, or 
Schedules, unless otherwise specifically provided, shall be construed to refer to Articles, Sections or S~,;hedules oftb.is 
Agreement. 

11.2 Costs. Each party shall pay its own respective fees and expenses incurred in connection with the negotiation, 
preparation, execution and delivery of this Agreement and any other documents or instruments contemplated by this 
Agreement including, fees and expenses of legal counsel, accountants, brokers or tinders, consultants or other representatives 
for the services used, hired or connected with the transactions contemplated hereby. 

I 1 .3 Publicity. Licensor and Licensee shall not issue any press release or otl1er announcement whether written or oral, 
with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby without first providing the other party a copy of such proposed release or 
announcement and an opportunity to comment thereo11. Any party hereto may make any annou11cements required by applicable 
law as long as the party making the disclosure or announcement notifies the other party promptly upon learning such 
requirement and in good faith attempts to comply with this section. 

11.4 Relationship of Parties. With respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, the relationship 
between the Parties is only that of a licensor and licensee. Neither Licensor nor Licensee is the agent, partner, joint venturer or 
legal representative of the other Party, and neither Party has the right or authority to bind the other Party in any way. 

11.5 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced according to the substantive laws of the State of 
California without application of its conflicts or choice oflaw rules. 

11.6 Dispute Resolution. In the event of a dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement either Party shall provide 
written notice of the dispute to the other, in which event the dispute shall be referred to the executive officers designated by 
each Party for attempted resolution by good faith negotiations within thirty {30) days after such notice is received. In the event 
the designated executive officers do not resolve such dispute within tl1e allotted thirty (30) days, either Party may, after the 
expiration of the thirty (30) day period, seek to resolve the dispute pursuant to Section 11.7. 
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11.7 Arbitration of Disputes. In the event of any dispute between, any claim or controversy between the Parties arising 
out of, relating to or concerning this Agreement, the breach ofthis Agreement, including any statutory claims (including, the 
arbitrability of any claim or controversy), shall be settled by fmal, confidential and binding arbitration conducted by the 
Judicial Arbitration Mediation Service ("JAMS") before a three person arbitration panel in Los Angeles County, California, in 
accordance with the JAMS expedited rules and procedures in effect at the time of such claim, which shall specifically include 
the right to discovery and the rules of evidence set forth in the California Evidence Code. Each Party shall select an 
independent neutral arbitrator and such arbitrators shall select a third arbitrator to complete the arbitration panel. The 
arbitration panel shall issue a written fmding offact and conclusions of law, which may be enforced in any court of competent 
jurisdiction. The arbitrator shall have the authority to grant all monetary or equitable relief, including, costs to the prevailing 
party where authorized by law. Adherence to this paragraph regarding arbitration shall not limit the rights of the parties hereto 
to obtain any provisional remedy including injunctive or similar relief, ·from a court of competent jurisdiction as may be 
necessary to protect their respective rights and interests pending arbitration, particularly if necessary to avoid irreparable hann. 
Any party also shall have the right to bring an action in a court of competent jurisdiction to compel arbitration hereunder or to 
otherwise enforce this arbitration provision. The Federal Arbitration Act shall govern the terms ofthis arbitration provision, 
and California Code of Civil Procedure section 1280 et seq. shall govern tbe terms of this arbitration provision to the extent 
not inconsistent with the Federal Arbitration Act. 

1 1.8 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the Schedules hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between the 
Parties regarding the subject matter hereof and as of the date hereof supersedes all prior oral or written agreements or 
understandings regarding this subject matter, including any letter of intent or confidentiality agreement. This Agreement and 
the schedules thereto can only be an1ended by a writing signed by both Parties. 

11.9 Assignment. Licensee shall not assign this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations hereunder, without the 
express prior written consent of Licensor, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; proyided that 
Licensee may assign this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations hereunder without prior written consent to a third party 
in connection with a merger of Licensee, a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the business ofLicensee that relate to 
the subject matter of this Agreement, or to an Affiliate in any internal reorganization that does not involve aey third party 
(whether such transaction is effected through one or a series oftransactious). Subject to the forgoing, thls Agreement shall be 
binding on and inure to the benefit ofthe parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns, transferees and 
delegates. 

11.10 Export Restrictions. The Parties acknowledge that the Products may be subject to export controls under the U.S. 
Export Administration Regulations. Licensor and Licensee shall (a) comply strictly with all legal requirements established 
under these regulations, (b) cooperate fully with the each other in any official or unofficial audit or inspection that relates to 
these controls and (c) not export, re-export, divert, transfer or disclose, directly or indirectly, any Pmducts to any of the 
following countries or to any national or resident of these countries, unless the other Party has obtained prior written 
authorization of the Party and the United States Commerce Department: Cuba, Iran, lraq, Libya, North Korea, Sudan or Syria. 
Upon notice by the U.S. Government, thls list of countries can be modified to conform to changes in tlte United States Export 
Administration Regulations. 

11.11 Severability.lf any provision of this Agreement is judicially determined to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the 
remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

I 1 .12 Notice. All notices, requests or other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be sent to 
the designated representatives of the Parties at the addresses set forth on Page 1 of this Agreement, and shall be deemed to 
have been duly give11 on the date of service if sent by facsimile (provided a hard copy is sent in one of the manners specified 
herein), or on the day following service if sent by overnight air courier service with next day delivery with written 
confirmation of delivery, or five {5) calendar days after 
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mailing if sent by prepaid first class, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. Each Party is required to notify the 
other Party in the above marmer of any change of address. 

11.13 Counterparts/Facsimile. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts and by facsimile or PDF attached 
to an email that together shall be originais and constitute one and the same instrument. E;~ch PaJty shall send oliginals to the 
other Patty foiJowing execution. 

I l.14 Waiver. The failure of any Party to enforce any of its rights hereunder or at Jaw or in equity shall not be deemed a 
waiver or a continuing waiver of any of its rights or remedies against another Party, unless such waiver is in writing and signed 
by t!Je Party to be charged. 

11.15 Further Assurances. Botl1 Parties agree to execute such additional documents and perform sttch acts as are 
reasonably necessary to effectuate the intent of this Agreement. 

11.16 Drafting Presumption. Advice of Counsel. No presumption shall be applied in any interpretation of this Agreement 
to the effect that the terms hereof shall be more strictly construed against one party by reason of any rule or construction tllat a 
document is to be construed more strictly against the party who prepared it. Each party has been advised ofits righlto seek 
independent legal counsel and has done so to the extent it deems necessaty. 

11.17 Captions. The captions ofthe Articles and Sections in this Agreement are fot· convenience only and shall not be 
used to interpret the provisions oftl1is Agreement. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this License Agreement as ofthe Effective Date. 

LICENSOR: LJCENSEE: 

PSC LICENSING CORP. VTB HOLDINGS, INC. 

B~ By: 
~N~am--e:~J-am_e_s~B~a-m-es----------------------- ~N~am--e:------------------------------

Title: President Title:. _________________________ ___ 
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August 2, 2013 

Personal and Confidential 

Board of Directors 
Parametric Sound Corporation 
13771 Danielson St, Suite I 
Poway, CA 92064 
Members ofthe Board of Directors: 

ANNEXB 
CRAIG-HALLUM FAIRNESS OPINION 

Page 276 of 348 

You have requested our opinion as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, to Parametric Sound Corporation (the 
"Company") of the Per Share Exchange Ratio (as defmed in the Agreement, defined below) set forth in the Agreement and 
Plan of Merger (the "Agreement"), to be entered into among the Company, Paris Acquisition Corp. (the "Merger Sub"), a 
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and VTB Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("VTB"). The Agreement 
provides for the merger (the ''Merger'') of the Merger Sub with and into VTB pursuant to which, among other things, each 
share of common stock and Series A Preferred Stock of VTB, will be converted into common stock of the Company based on 
the Per Share Exchange Ratio. The tenus and conditions of the Merger are more fully set forth in the Agreement. Capitalized 
terms not otherwise defined will have the same meaning as in the Agreement. 

We, as a customary part of our investment banking business, engage in the valuation of businesses and tl1eir securities in 
connection with mergers and acquisitions, lmderwriting and secondary distributions of securities, private placements and 
valuations for estate, corporate and other purposes. We have been engaged by the Company to render an opinion to its Board 
of Directors and we will receive a fee from the Company for t•endedng this opinion. This opinion fee is not contingent upon 
the consummation of the Merger or the conclusions re11ched in our opinion. Further the Company bas agreed to reimburse our 
expenses and indemnify us against certain liabilities that may arise in relation to our engagement. We have not been requested 
to, and did not, (i) participate in negotiations with respect to the Agreement, (ii) sol.icit any expressions of interest from any 
other parties with respect to any business combination with the Company or any otlter alternative transaction or (iii) advise the 
Board of Directors or any other party with respect to alternatives to the Merger. In addition, we were not requested to and did 
not provide advice regarding the structure, the Per Share Exchange Ratio, any other aspect of the Merger, or to provide 
services other than the delivery of this opinion. We have not otherwise acted as financial advisor to any party to the Merger. 

In the ordinary course of our business, we and our affiliates may actively trade securities of the Company for our own account 
or the account of our customers and, accordingly, we may at any time hold a long or sh01t positio11 in such securities. We have 
not received compensation in the past two years from the Company or VTB , but we may seek to be engaged for compensation 
in the future to perfonn investment banking services for the Company or VTB. 

ln connection with our review of the Merger, and in arriving nt our opinion, we have: (i) reviewed the financial terms ofthe 
draft of the Agreement dated August 2, 2013; (ii) reviewed certain business, financial and other information and data with 
respect to the Company and VTB publicly available or made available to us from internal records of the Company and VTB, 
respectively; (iii) reviewed certain internal fmancial projections for 
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the Company and VTB on a stand-alone basis prepared for fmaucial planning purposes and furnished to us by management of 
the Company and VTB, respectively, including but not limited to forecasts prepared by Company management of future 
utilization ofthe Company's net operating losses; (v) conducted discussions with members of the senior management of the 
Company and VTB with respect to the business and prospects of the Company and VTB, respectively, on a stand-alone basis 
and on a combined basis; (vi) reviewed the reported prices and trading activity of Company common stock and similar 
information for certain other companies deemed by us to be comparable to the Company; (vii) compared the fmancial 
performance of the Company and VTB with that of certain other publicly traded companies deemed by us to be comparable to 
the Company and VTB, respectively; (viii) reviewed the financial terms, to the extent publicly available, of certain comparable 
merger transactions; and (ix) performed a discounted cash flows analysis for the Company and VTB, each on a stand-alone 
basis. In addition, we have conducted such other analyses, examinations and inquiries and considered such other financial, 
economic and market criteria as we have deemed necessary and appropriate in arriving at our opinion. 

In conducting our review and in rendering our opinion, we have relied upon and assumed the accuracy, completeness and 
fairness of the financial, accounting and other information discussed with us, reviewed by us, provided to us or otherwise 
made available to us, and have not attempted to independently verify, and have not assumed responsibility for the independent 
verification, of such information. We have further relied upon the assurances of the Company's and VTB's management that 
the information provided has been prepared on a reasonable basis in accordance with industry practice, and that they are not 
aware of any information or facts that would make the information provided to us incomplete or misleading. We have assumed 
that there have been no material changes in either the Company's or VTB 's assets, financial condition, results of operations, 
business or prospects since the date of the last financial statements made available to us. Without limiting the generality ofthe 
foregoing, for the purpose of this opinion, we have assumed that neither the Company nor VTB is a party to any material 
pending transaction, including any external financing, recapitalization, acquisition or merger, other than the Merger. W itb 
respect to financial forecasts, estimates of net operating loss tax benefits and other estimates and forward-looking information 
relating to the Company, VTB and the Merger reviewed by us, we have assumed that such information reflects the best 
currently available estimates and judgments of the Company' s and VTB's management, respectively. We express no opinion 
as to any financial forecasts, net operating loss or other estimates or forward-looking information of the Company or VTI3 or 
the assumptions on which they were based. We have relied, with your consent, on advice of the outside counsel and the 
independent accountants to the Company and VTB, and on the assumptions of the management of the Company and VTB, as 
to all accounting, legal, tax and financial reporting matters with respect to the Company, VTB and the Agreement. 

We have assumed that tbe final form of the Agreement will be substantially similar to the draft, dated August I, 2013, 
reviewed by us, without modification of material terms or conditions. We have assumed that the representations and warranties 
contained in the Agreement are true and correct, that each party will perform all of the covenants and agreements required to 
be performed by it under the Agreement> and that the Merger will be consummated pursuant to the terms of tbe Agreement 
without amendments thereto and without waiver by any party of any conditions or obligations thereunder. In arriving at our 
opinion, we have assumed that all the necessary regulatory approvals and consents required for the Merger will be obtained in 
a manner that will not adversely affect the Company or VTI3 or alter the tenns of the Merger. In rendering our opinion, we 
assumed that there would be no Qualified Offering on or prior to the Closing Date. 

In arriving at our opinion, we have not performed any appraisals or valuations of any specific assets or liabilities (fixed, 
contingent or other) of the Company or VTB or concerning the solvency or appraised or fair value of the Company or VTB, 
and have not been furnished with any such appraisals or valuations, and we have made no physical inspection of the property 
or assets of the Company or VTB. We express no opinion regarding the liquidation value of any entity. The analyses we 
performed in connection with this opinion were going concern analyses of an entity. We were not requested to opine, and no 
opinion is hereby rendered, as to whether any analyses of an entity, other than as a going concern, is appropriate in the 
circumstances and, accordingly, we have performed no such analyses. 
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We have undertaken no independent analysis of any pending or threatened litigation, governmental proceedings or 
investigations, possible unasse11ed claims or other contingent liabilities, to which any of the Company, VTB or their respective 
affiliates is <1 party or may be subject and at the Company's direction and with its consent, our opinion makes no assumption 
concerning and therefore does not consider, the possible assertion of claims, outcomes, damages or recoveries arising out of 
any such matters. No company or transaction used in any analysis for purposes of comparisuu is .identical to the Company, 
VTB 01· the Merger. Accordingly, an analysis of the results of the comparisons is not mathematical; rathet·, it involves complex 
considerations and jndgments about differences in the companies and transactions to which the Company, VTB and the 
Merger were compared and other factors that could affect the public trading value ot transaction value of the companies. 

This opinion is necessarily based upon the information available to us, facts and circumstances and economic, market and 
other conditions as they exist and are subject to evaluation on the date hereof; events occulTing after the date hereof could 
materially affect the assumptions used in preparing this opinion. We are not expressing any opinion herein as to the price at 
which shares of common stock of the Company have traded or such stock may !J·adc following announcement of the Merger or 
at any future time. We have uot uudertaken to reaffinn or revise this opinion or otherwise comment upon any events occurring 
after the date hereof and do not have any obligation to update, revise or reaffum this opinion. 

This opinion is furnished pursuant to our engagement leltt:r dated April 24, 2013. Tllis opinion is directed to the Board of 
Directors of the Company in connection with its consideration of the Merger. This opinion is not intended to be and does not 
constitute a recommendation to any stockholder of the Company as to how such stockholder should vote with respect to the 
Merger. Except with respect to the use of this opinion in connection with the proxy statement relating to the Merger in 
accordance with our engagement letter with the Company, U1is opinion shall not be published or otherwise used, nor shall any 
public references to us be made, without our prior written approval. T11is opinion has been approved by the Craig-
Hallum Fairness Opinion Committee. 

This opinion addresses solely the fairness, from a financial point of view, to the Company of the Per Share Exchange Ratio set 
forth in the Agreement and does not address any other terms or agreement relating to the Merger. We were not requested to 
opine as to, and this opinion does not address, the decision to undertake or the terms of any Qualified Offering, the basic 
business decision to proceed with or effect the Merger, or any solvency or fraudulent conveyance consideration relating to the 
Merger. We express no opinion as to whether any altemative transaction might produce consideration in excess of the amount 
contemplated in the Merger. We express no opinion as to the relative mel"its of the Merger as compared to any alternative 
business strategies or transactions that might exist for the Company or any other party or the effect of any other transaction in 
which the Company or any other party might engage. We express no opinion as to the amount, nature or fairness of the 
consideration or compensation to be received in or as a result ofthe Merger by preferred stock holders, wruTant holders, option 
holders, officers, directors or employees of the Compll!ly or VTB, or any other class of such persons, or relative to or in 
comparison with the Per Share Exchange Ratio. 

Based upon and subject to the foregoing and based upon such other factors as we consider relevant, it is our opinion that, as of 
the date hereof, the Per Share Exchange Ratio is fair, from a financial point of view, to the Company. 

Sincerely, 

Craig-Hallum Capital Group, LLC 
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ANNEXC 

- VOTE BY INTERNET - www.prosyvote.com 

PAR~,.,;(eTRICJDOUND~ 
~ CQt?t"'QrtATfON 

PARAMETRIC SOUND CORP 
13771 DANTELSON STREET, STB. L 
POWAY, CA 92064 

Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic delivery of 
mformation up until II :59 P.M. l:iastem Time the day before the cut-off date or meeting 
date. I lave your proxy card in hJllld when you access the web site and follow the 
instructioJ'lS to obtain your records and to create an clectromc voting instruction form. 
ELECTRONfC DELIVERY OF FUTURE PROXY MATERIALS 
If you would like to reduce the costs incurred by our company in mailing proxy 
materials. you can consent to receiving all future proxy slatements, proxy cards and 
annual reports electronically via e-mail or the lntemcl To sign up for electronic 
delivery, please follow the instructions above to vote using the Internet. and, when 
prompted, indicate thai you agree to rcce1ve or access proxy materials electmnical1y in 
future years. 
VOTE BY PHONE -1-80~90-4>903 
Use JliiY touch-tone telephone to transm1t your voting instructions up until 11:59 P.M. 
Eastern Time the day before the cut-off date or meetmg date. Have your proxy card in 
hW1d wben you call and then follow the instructions. 
VOTE BY MAD.. 
Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope we have 
provided or return it to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, 
NY 11717. 

TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK !NK .1\S FOLLOWS: KEEP THIS PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDS 
DETACH AND RB'ilJRN THIS PORTION ONLY 

TffiS PR OXY CARD IS VALID ONLY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED. 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY 
RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FO R'' PROPOSALS 1, Z, 3, 4 AND 5. 

To approve the issuance of common stock, par value $0.00 I per slulre, ofParamelrio Sound Corporation 
(Parametric) in connection wjth the merger contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated all of 
August 5, 2013, among Parametnc, VTB Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Paris Acquisition Corp., 
a Delaware corporation, and the correspond"'g change of control of l'arametric (the merger proposal). 

l To approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, specified compensation that may become payable to the 
named executive officers of Pararnelric in connection with the merger. 

3 To approve the adjournment of the special meeting to a later date, 1f necessary or appmpnate, to solic1t 
additional proxies ifthere are Insufficient votes at the ume of the special meeting to approve the merger 
proposal. 

4 To approve U1e Parametric Sound Corporation 2013 Stock-Based Incentive Compensation Plan. 

S To approve the Parametric Sound Corporation Annual Incentive Bonus Plan. 

NOTE: In their discretion, the Proxies are authorized to consider 1111d transact such other business as may properly 
come before the special meeting or any adjournment thereof. The undersigned revokes any prior proxies to vole tb.e 
shares covered by this proxy. PROPERLY EXECUTED PROXIES WILL BE VOTED IN THE MANNER 
DIRECTED HEREIN BY THE UNDERSIGNED. lF NO SUCII DIRECTIONS ARE GIVEN, SUCH PROXIES 
WILL BEVOTED"FOR" PROPOSALS 1, 2,3, 4 AND 5. 

Please sign exactly as your name(s) appear(s) hereon. When signing as attorney, e.~ecutor, administrator, or other 
fiduciary, please give full utle as soch Joint owners should each sign personally. All holders must sign. If a 
corporation or partnership, please sign in full corporate or partnership name, by authorized officer. 

I I I I 
SiJU~awre [PLEASE SIGN WITHIN BOXl Date SilUlature (Joint Owners) 
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Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for· the S pecial Meeting: The Notice & Proxy Statement is/are 
av11ilablt: at www.proxyvote.com. 

PARAMETRIC SOUND CORPORATION 
THJS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF PARAMETRIC SOUND CORPORATION 

PARAMETRIC SOUND CORPORATION (lliE "COMPANY'') 

FOR USE AT THE SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 01' THE COMPANY 

TO BE HELD AT HANIPTON INN & SUITES, 14068 STOWE DRIVE, POWAY, CA 92064, 
1:00PM PACIFIC TIME, ON DECEMBER27, 2013 

The undersigned hereby appoints James A. Barnes and KeruJeth .F. Potasluter, and each of them, as the true and lawful 
attorneys-in-fact, agents arJd proxies with full power of substitution to vote in the name of and as proxy for the undersigned all 
the shares of common stock of the Company held of record by the undersigned on November 11, 2013 at the Special Meeting 
of Stockholders ofthe ComparJy to be held on December 27, 2013 at 1:00 p.m. Pacific Time, at Hampton Inn & Suites, 14068 

Stowe Drive, Poway, CA 92064, and at any adjournment thereof. 

Continued and to lle signed on reve.-se. side 

-C-2-
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ANNEXD 

VTB Holdings, Inc. 

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Nine Months Ended September 28, 2013 and September 29,2012 and tbe Years Ended December 31, 2012, 20ll and 
2010 

Reports oflndependent Registered Public Accounting .Firms 
Consolidated Financial Statements: 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Consolidated Statements of Operations 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive <Loss) Income 
Consolidated Statements of Conve1tlble Preferred Stock and of Stockholders' (Deficit) Equitv 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
VTB Holdings, fnc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet ofVTB Holdings, lnc. as ofDecember 31, 2012 and lhe related 
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, conveJiible preferred stock and stockholders' deficit, and cash 
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are lhe responsibility of the Company's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
1l1ose standards require tbat we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assmance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perfonn, an audit 
of its internal control over fmancial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the pul'pose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Company's internal contr"Ol over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An 
audit also iucludes examining, on a test basis, evidence supportiug the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that ow· audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, tl1e consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position ofVTB Holdings, Inc. as of December 3 1, 2012, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then 
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

/s/ FREED MAX!CK CPAs, P.C. 
Buffalo, New York 
November 4, 2013 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Board of Directors and Stockholders 
VTB Holdings, Inc. 
ValhalJa, New York 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet ofVTB Holdings, Inc. as of December 31,2011 and the related 
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, conve1tible prefetTed stock and stockholders' (deficit) 
equity, and cash flows for each ofthe two years in the period ended December 31,2011. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company' s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial 
statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perfoon, an audit 
of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over fmancial reporting as 
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and signi:ficant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the c<>nsolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position ofVTB Holdings, Inc. at December 31, 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two 
years in the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

As discussed in Note 3, certain restatements have been made to the previously issued consolidated financial statements for the 
year ended December 31,2010. 

lsi BDO USA, LLP 
New York, New York 
November 4, 2013 
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VTB HOLDINGS, INC. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(In thousand\', except share ami per share daftl) 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS: 

As of September 28, 
20J3 

(Unaudited) 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,062 
Accounts receivable, net of allowat1ces of $3,033, $14,404 and 

$ 10,934 as of September 28, 2013 (unaudited) and 
December 31,2012 and 201 I 

Inventories, net 
Deferred tax assets 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Total current assets 
Property and equipment, net 
Deferfed tax assets, long tenn portion 
Intangible assets, net 
Other assets, net 

32,810 
62,270 

8, 148 
6,897 

115,187 
6,798 
3,794 
4,243 
2025 

132,047 TOTAL ASSETS =$==~~ 
LIABJLITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND 

STOCKHOLDER S' DEFICIT 
CURRENT LIABil-ITIES: 

Revolving line of credjt 
Term loan, cmTent portion 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to shareholders, current portion 
Income taxes payable 
Other current liabilities 

Total current liabiJities 
Term loan, long-term portion 
Due to shareholders, long-term portion 
Series B redeemable preferred stock 
lncome tax payable, long tetm portion 
Deferred tax liabiJjties 
Subordinated loan 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 9) 

Series A convertible preferred stock, $0.0 I par value -
50,000,000 shares authorized; 48,689,555 shares issued and 
outstanding as of September 28,2013 (unaudited), 
December 31, 2012 and 2011 

STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICl T: 
Common stock, $0.0 I par value- I 00,000,000 shares authorized; 

35,282,286 shares issued and outstanding as of September 28, 
2013 (unaudited), December 3 1, 2012 and 2011 

Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT 
TOTAL LIABIL!TLES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND 

STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT 

$ 30,186 
18,750 
50,480 

9,545 
3,125 

878 
112,964 

5,000 

13,448 
1,934 
1, 174 

10,000 
144,520 

24,345 

353 
(55,0 15) 
17,894 

{50) 
{36,818) 

$ 132,047 

Page 284 of 348 

As of December 31, 
2012 2011 

$ 5,219 $ 1.5,942 

65,586 48,994 
40,706 30,480 

4,452 2,672 
3,130 1,591 

119,093 99,679 
5,732 1,680 
2,266 3,197 
4,955 
~149 609 

$134,195 $105,165 

$ 33,000 $ 12,000 
15,000 16,200 
24,190 19,886 
12,496 9,588 
3,125 3,125 
8,106 9,207 

470 60 
96,387 70,066 
26,250 9,000 

3,125 6,250 
12.703 13,648 

1,933 1,385 
1,174 536 

141,572 100,885 

24,345 24,345 

353 353 
(56,934) (57,919) 
24,938 37,50 1 

(79) 
(31,722) (20,065) 

$134,195 $105,165 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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VTB 1-lOLDINGS, INC. 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
(In thousands, except per share data) 

Nine Months Ended Years Ended Decembcr311 
September 28, St.ptembcr 29, 2010 

2013 2012 2012 2011 As Rc~tatcd 

Net revenue $ 
(Unnudltcd) 

92,352 $ 97,099 $207,136 $166,121 $ 91,870 
Cost of revenue 68,759 62,890 132,795 96,536 50,556 

Gross profit 23,593 34,209 74,341 69,585 41 ,3 14 

Operating expenses: 
Selling and marketing 21,783 12,193 22,837 13,009 5,641 
Product development 3,239 1,538 2,099 1,839 825 
General and administrative 5,678 3,359 6,153 7,094 2,128 
Business transaction 2,287 342 9,375 14,433 

Total operating expenses 32,987 17,090 31,431 31,317 23,027 

Operating (loss) income (9.394) 17,119 42.910 38,268 18,287 

Othez· expense (income), net: 
Interest expense, net 4,580 2,873 4,738 2,932 581 
Other expense, net 256 7 
Gain on bargain purchase from 

acquisition {2,303) 
Total other expense, net 4,836 2.873 2,442 2,932 58 1 

(Loss) income before (benefit) provision for 
income taxes (14,230) 14,246 40,468 35,336 17,706 

(Benefit) provision for income taxes {7,186) 4957 14,008 13,782 72584 
Net (loss) income $ {7!044) $ 9,289 $ 26,460 $ 2 1,554 $ 10,122 

Net (loss) income attributable to common 
stock11olders: 

Basic $ (7,044) $ ~13,338) $ 11611 $ 8,855 $ 9,339 

Diluted $ p!044) $ {13.338) $ 1,611 $ 8,855 $ 9,339 

Net (Joss) income per sbare anributable to 
common stockholders: 

Basic $ (0.20) $ {0.38) $ 0.05 $ 0.26 $ 0.07 

Diluted $ (0.20) $ !0.38) $ 0.04 $ 0.25 $ O.o7 
Weighted-average shares used in computing net 

(loss) income per share attributable to 
common stockholders: 

Basic 35,282 35,282 35,282 33,952 127,356 

Diluted 35,282 35,282 36,265 34,924 127,356 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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VTB HOLDINGS, INC. 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Jncome 
(In tllousands) 

Net (loss) income 
Other comprehensive gain (loss), net of tax: 

Foreign currency translation adjustments 
Other comprehensive gain (loss), 

netoftax 
Comprehensive (loss) income 

Nine Months Ended 
September 28, 

2013 
September 29, 

2012 
(Un.audjted) 

$ {7,044) $ 9,289 

29 

29 
$ (7,015) $ 9,289 

Page 287 of 348 

Years Ended December31, 
2010 

As Restated 

$ 10,122 

$ 10,122 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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VTB HOLDINGS, INC. 

Consoliffilted Statements of Convertible .Preferred Stoclt nud of Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity 
(In thousands, except slzare datil) 

Series A Convertible 
Accumulated Totnl 

Adtlitional Otbe~• Stockboldct·s' 
Preferred Stud < Common Stock Pnid-l u Rctuincd Comprehensive (Ddiclt) 

Shnr·cs Amount Shares ~ CnJ!ital Enruinl!s Loss Equity 

Balance -
December 31, 2009 $ 153,993,675 $ 1,540 $ 309 $ 5,825 $ $ 7,674 

Net income As 
Restated 10,122 10,122 

Cancellation of 
common stock (153,993,675) (1,540) 1,540 

Issuance of 
common stock 32,459,434 325 (325) 

Issuance of 
Series A 
convertible 
preferred stock 48,689,555 24,345 

Issuance of 
Series 8 
redeemable 
preferred stock 
(liability) ( 12,425) (12,425) 

Distributions to 
fonner 
shareholders 
related to 
recapitaHzation (48,866) (48,866) 

Purchase price 
adjustment {1!145) (11145) 

Balance -
December 31,2010 
As Restated 48,689,555 24,345 32,459,434 325 (60,912) 15,947 (44,640) 

Net income 21,554 2 1,554 
Restricted stock 

grant 2,822,852 28 (28) 
Purchase price 

adjustment to 
prior 
shareholders (728) (728) 

Stock-based 
compensation 3,749 3 749 

13alance -
December 31,2011 48,689,555 24,345 35,282,286 353 (57,919) 37,501 (20,065) 

Net income 26,460 26,460 
Other 

comprehensive 
loss, net oftax (79) (79) 

Stock-based 
compensation 985 985 

Cash dividends (39,023) (39,023) 
Balnnoe-

December 31, 2012 48,689,555 24,345 35,282,286 353 (56,934) 24,938 (79) (31,722) 
Net loss 

(unaudited) (7,044) (7,044) 
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Other 
comprehensive 
gain, net of ta.'< 
(unaudited) 

Stock-based 
compensation 
(unaudited) 

Balance - September 
28, 2013 
(unaudited) 48,689,555 $24,345 

Page 289 of 348 

29 29 

1,919 1,919 

35,282,286 $ 353 $(55,015) $ 17,894 =$ =====(5:10) $ (36,818) 

The accompanying notes are an integral patt of these cnnsolidatedfinancia/ statements. 
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VTB HOLDINGS, INC. 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(In thousands) 

Nine Months Ended Y car~ Ended December :n, 
2010 

September 28, September 29, A$ 
2013 2012 2012 20tl Restnted 

(Ummdited) 
CASH FT,OWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Net (loss) income $ (7,044) $ 9,289 $26,460 $ 21,554 $ 10,122 
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net e<~sh provided 

by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 3,051 1,127 1,858 700 211 
Amortization of intangible assets 712 748 29 
Amorti7.ation of debt financing costs 1,209 638 835 207 
Stock-based compensation 1,919 402 985 3,749 
Accrued interest on Series B redeemable preferred stock 745 (1 ,189) {945) 1,011 212 
Gain on bargain purchase from acquisition (2,303) 
Deferred income taxes (5,224) (60) (1,598) (1 ,388) (3,311) 
Sales returns reserve (5,756) (2,571) 1,596 2,046 (2,000) 
Provi~ion for (reversal of) doubtful accounts (350) 35 358 (705) 570 
Provision for obsolete inventory (347) 2,283 588 219 334 
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of 

(9) 47 

acquisition: 
Accounts receivable, net 38,882 23,845 (23,461) (25,724) (16,392) 
rnventories (21,217) (34,100) (857) (11,530) (17,047) 
Accounts payable 26,290 13,014 4.]23 14,442 11 ,015 
Accrued liabilities (2,951) (3,378) 1,081 (2,197) (85) 
Due to stlareholders (3,125) (3,125) (3,125) 9,375 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (3,832) (1,034) (1,203) (1,543) 3 
Income taxes payable (8,105) (7.629) (534) l ,5$R 8,064 
Other liabilities 411 240 ____1fl ___ 2 __ 6 

Net cash provided by (used in) opemtiog 
activities 15 259 (2,213) 5,000 _MQ]. ____h!.Q§ 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES~ 
Purchase of property and equipment 
Acquisition of business, net of cash a(:{juired 

(4,109) (5,305) (5,945) 
(5,335) 

(1,634) (822) 

Net cash used in lnvcstiug activities (4,109) (5,305) (11,280) (1 ,634) ~) 
CAS!-! FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIBS: 

Borrowings on revolving line of credit 30,250 37,000 48,000 12,000 
Borrowings on tem1loan 45,000 45,000 28,000 
Repayment of revolving line of credit (33,064) (22,000) (27.000) 
Repayment of term loan (17.500) (25,200) (28,950) (2,800) 
Debt financing costs (1,021) (2,391) (2,391) (143) (666) 
Proceeds from subordinated notes 10,000 
Cash dividends on Series A preferred and common stock (39,023) (39,023) 
Distributions to former shareholders related to recapitaliZ!\110n (48,866) 
Payments to fonner shareholders (1,872) 
Proceeds from issuance of Series ~ convertible preferred stock, 

net of Issuance costs 24,345 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing 
activities (I 1,335) (6,614) ~) ~ __1.ill 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casb equivalents 28 (79) 
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS (157) (14,132) (10,723) 7,952 3,097 
CASH AND CASH EQUJV Al.ENTS-Beginning ofperfod 5,219 15,942 15,942 7,990 4, 893 

CASH AND CASH EQU!VALENTS-Endofperiod $ 5,062 s 1,810 ~ $ 15,942 $ 7,990 
= = 

SUPPLEMENTAL DlSCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW 
TNFORMATlON: 

Cash paid for interest $ 2-349 $ 3 115 $ 4716 $ 1,682 $ 207 

Cash paid for income taxcs $ 8 224 $ 12.838 $ 16,749 $ 14,669 $ 2,708 

SUPPLEMENTAL NON-CAST-I INVESTING AND FINANCING 
ACTTVJTJES; 

Issuance of Series B preferred stock upon recapitalization $ $ $ $ $ 12,425 

Settlement Df accQun~ raceivable related to acquisition $ $ $ 8,920 $ 
-$--
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Recapitalization purchase price adjustment $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

D-8 

Exhibit Page Number 307 

http://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/1493761/000119312513459818/d621612ddefml ... 12/11/2013 



 
PA391

DEFM14A Page 292 of 348 

Table or Contents 

VTB llOLDINGS, INC. 

Notes to Consolidated Finnncial Statements 

Nine Mo1•ths Ji:ndecl Septcmher 211, 2fH3 and September 29,2012 (Unaudited) and tl;lc 
Years Ended December 31,2012,2011 and 2010 

1. Organization and Description of Business 

Organizntion 

VTB Holdings, Inc. ("VTBH" or the "Company") was incorporated in the State of Delaware in201 0 and is headquartered in 
Valhalla, New York. In January 20 11 , a reorganization of the business was effected whereby VTBH became the paret't 
holding company of the historical business ofVoyetra Turtle Beach and Subsidiary ("VTB"). Subsequent to the 
reorganization, VTB is a wholly-owned subsidiary ofVTBH. 

VTB was incorporated in the State of Delaware in 1975 and is headquartered in Valhalla, New York with warehouse 
distribution centers in New York, New Jersey, Texas and California. VTB is a designer and marketer of stereo video gaming 
headsets and audio accessories for the Microsoft Xbox 360 console, Sony PlayStation 3 console and personal computer. Sales 
of gaming headsets represented the majority ofVTB's gross sales, with the remaining gross sales derived from accessories, 
including replacement parts for gaming headsets and audio cables and sound cards. TI1e Company currently derives the 
majority of revenue fi·om headsets for the Xbox 360 and PS 3. The majority of VTB 's products are distributed domestically to 
specialty retailers of consumer electTonics and wholesalers, and internationally to wholesalers. Products are a!so sold directly 
to consumers through VTB's website. International sales are generally shipped directly from VTB's supplier in China to the 
international wholesalers. 

In October 2012, VTB acquired Lygo International Limited (''Lygo"), which is a corporation established in the United 
Kingdom. As a result of the acquisition, Lygo become a wholly-owned subsidiary ofVTB. Lygo's results are included 
prospectively in the accompanying consolidated financial statements after the acquisition date. 

Recapitaliza lion 

IJ1 October 2010, VTB effected a transaction that allowed Stripes Group to acquire an equity ownership interest in VTB. The 
transaction was effected by having SG VTB Merger Sub, an inactive nonpublic shell incorporated in Delaware, merge with 
and into VTB, the smviving corporation. As a result of this merger, VTB cancelled 153,993,675 shares of its $0.0 I par value 
common stock that it had outstanding. VTB then issued 32,459,434 shares of its $0.0 I par value common stock to certain 
former shareholders, 48,689,555 shares of its $0.01 par value Series A convertible preferred stock to Stripes Group and 
1,000,000 shares of Series B redeemable preferred stock to one ofthe former shareholders. Concurrent with this transaction, 
VTB also entered into a long-term debt financing arrangement for $28.0 million. 

As a result of this transaction, Sttipes Group acquired U1e ownership interest in VTB for $66.2 million, including a final 
purchase price adjustment. The transaction value of$66.2 million was allocated as follows: $48.9 million for acquiring the 
equity interests of the former shareholders, $12.4 million for incurring liabilities associated with the issuance of the Series B 
redeemable preren·ed stock and the purchase price adjustment payable to certain former shareholders of$1.2 million with the 
remaining balance of $3.7 million used for transaction-related expenses. During 2011, an additional payment of $0.7 million 
was made to the fanner shareholders towards a purchase price adjustment, which was recorded as a distribution to the former 
shareholders in additional paid-in capital in the accompanying consolidated statements of stockholders' (deficit) equity. 
Additionally, performance bonuses of $9.4 million were paid to certain members of management for the year ended 
December 3 1, 201 I, which is included as a business transaction expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations. 
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VTB HOLDINGS, INC. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Nine Montbs Ended September 28,2013 and September 29,2012 (Unaud ited) and the 
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 

The transaction was treated as a recapitalization for accounting purposes rather than a business combination since SG VTB 
Merger Sub is not substantive and does not meet the de·finition of a business. SG VTB Merger was formed to facilitate tile 
transaction, did not have any prior operations and the debt financing was incurred by VTB. Accordingly, the consolidated 
financial statements of VTB subsequent to the recapitalization have been prepared based upon the historical cost and 
operations ofVTB. 

Reorganization 

In January 20\1 , VTB effected a reorganization whereby VTBH became the holding company ofVTB. This resulted in VTB 
becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary ofVTBH. 

Prior to the reorganization, VTB executed a reverse stock split of .its common stock by issuing 1 share for each .6,890. 7 shares 
of common stock held by its former shareholders. VTBH also executed a stock split of its Series A conve1tible preferred stock 
and common stock by issuing 47. I shares for each 1 share of Series A convertible preferred stock and common stock held by 
its former shareholders. The stock split has been recorded retroactively in the consolidated fmancial statements for all periods 
presented. 

1n the reorganization. all of VTB 's equity interests in the form of shares of common stock and preferred stock were contributed 
and transferred to VTBH. VTBH then issued its $0.01 par value common stock, Series A $0.01 par value convertible preferred 
stock and Series B redeemable preferred stock, as applicable, to VTB's existing shareholders. There were no changes in the 
Company's equity structure as a result of the reorganization. 

The reorganization was accounted for as a recapitalization because VTBH did not have any prior operations. Accordingly, the 
consolidated financial statements ofVTBH subsequent to the reorganization have been prepared based upon the historical cost 
and operations ofVTB. 

Merger Agreement 

On August 5, 2013, the company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger ("Merger Agreemenf') with Parametric 
Sound Corporation ("Parametric"). Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, Parametric will issue shares 
of its common stock to the former VTBH stockholders which, together with options to purchase shares of VTBH common 
stock that will be converted into options to purchase shares of Parametric common stock (and will be assumed by Parametric 
at the effective time of the merger), will represent approximately 80 percent of the shares of Parametric common stock on a 
fully-diluted basis after the merger, subject to adjustment as provided in the Merger Agreement. 

The acquisition will be effected by VTBH's issued and outstanding common stock being cancelled and converted into shares 
of Parametric's common stock upon the consummation of the merger, based on the formula set forth in the Merger Agreement, 
VTBH's issued and outstanding Series A convertible preferred stock will also be cancelled and converted into shares of 
Parametric's common stock upon the consummation of the merger, based on tlte same formula. VTBH' s issued and 
outstand.ing Series B redeemable preferred stock and the phantom units issued under the 201 1 Phantom Equity Appreciation 
Plan will remain outstanding following the merger. 

The consummation of the Merger is subject to a number of conditions, including, but not limited to, (i) adoption and approval 
ofthe Merger Agreement by Parametric stockholders in accordance with NASDAQ rules, (ii) the approval of the continued 
listing application by NASDAQ, (iii) the completion of a qualifYing capital-raising transaction through the occurrence of debt 
or the issuance of equity by Parametric. with net proceeds to 
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Parametric of at least $5.0 million, and (iv) certain other closing conditions. On November 15, 2013 Parametric completed the 
sale of364,286 shares of its common stock in a registered direct offering, with net proceeds to Parametric of$5.1 million. 

The Merger Agreerneut may be terminated by eitl1er Parametric or the Company if the Merger has not occurred on or prior to 
Februaty 28, 2014. In addition, ihe Merger Agreement contaius certain tennination rights by each party under special 
circumstances. Tf the Company were to tenninate the Merger Agreement under special circumstances, it may be reqLtired to 
pay Parametric a termination fee of $1.0 million. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles ("GAAP"). Subsequent to the reorganization in 2011, lhe accompanying consolidated financial 
statements include the accounts ofVTBH and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Prior to the reorganization in 2011, the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts ofVTB and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All 
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

The Company historically records its results on a four-four-five week basis such that its fiscal quarters end on the last Saturday 
of each calendar quarter. For the fourth quarter of each year, the Company uses December 31 as botb its fiscal and calendar 
quatter ending date. 

Unaudited Jnterim Financial Information 

The accompanying interim consolidated balance sheet as of September 28, 2013, the interim consolidated statements of 
operations, comprehensive (loss) income and statements of cash flows for the nine months ended September 28, 2013 and 
September 29, 2012 and the interim consolidated statement of convertible preferred stock and stockholders' deficit for the nine 
months ended September 28, 2013 are unaudited. The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
on the same basis as the atmual consolidated financial statements, and, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments, 
which only include normal recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly the consolidated balance sheet as of 
September 28, 2013 and the consolidated statements of operations, compJehensive (loss) income and statements of cash 'flows 
for the nine months ended September 28,2013 and September29, 2012 and convertible preferred stock and stockholders' 
deficit for the nine months ended September 28,2013. The consolidated financial data disclosed in these notes to the 
consolidated financial statements related to the nine months ended September 28,2013 and September 29,2012 are also 
unaudited. The consolidated results of operations for the nine months ended September 28, 2013 are not necessarily indicative 
of the results to be expected for the entire year ending December 31, 20 13, or for any other future annual or interim period. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the Company to 
make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in the consolidated financial 
statements and accompanying notes. Those management estimates include, b\•t are not limited to: revenue recognition and 
sales return reserves; determination of the fair value of net assets acquired in 
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a business combination; valuation of inventories; useful lives of property and equipment; determination of fair value of stock­
based awards; income taxes and various other contingencies. The Company evaluates estimates and assumptions on an 
ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors and adjusts those estimates and assumptions when facts and 
circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be determined with precision, actual results could differ from 
these estimates, and those differences could be material to ihe consolidated financial statements. 

Concentration of Credit rusk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash 
equivalents and receivables. The Company places its cash and cash et"Juivalents with various domestic and foreign fmancial 
institutions of high credit quality. Pe.riodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of all of the institutions are performed. 
From time to time, cash balances with domestic financial institutions may exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
insurance limits. 

Accounts receivable are ansecured and represent amounts due based on contractual obllgations of customers. Concentrations 
of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are mitigated due to the Company's large number of customers. Credit risk is 
also mitigated by perfonning ongoing credit evaluations of customers to assess the probability of accounts receivable 
collection based on a number of factors, including past transaction experience with the customer, evaluation of their credit 
history, limiting the credit e>..iended, and review of the invoicing terms of the contract. The Company generally does not 
req·uire customers to provide collateral to support accounts receivable. The Company has tecorded an allowance for doubtf11l 
accounts for those receivables that were determined not to be collectible, 

Business Concentrations 

The Company relies on foreign third parties to manufacture its products. For the nine months ended September 28, 2013, two 
suppliers accounted for 57% oftJ1e Company's purchases and 72% of the accounts payable outstanding. For tbe year ended 
December 31, 2012, two suppliers accounted for 54% of the Company's purchases and 90% of the accounts payable 
outstanding. For the year ended December 31 , 2011, two suppliers accounted for 67% of the Company's purchases and 92% of 
the accounts payable outstanding. Quality or performance failures of the Company's products or changes in the manufacturers' 
or vendors' financial or business condition could disrupt the Company's ability to supply quality products to customers, and 
thereby have a material adverse effect on tb.e Company's business and consolidated financial statements. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, derivative inst111ments, 
revolving line of credit and long-term debt. Cash equivalents are stated at amortized cost, which approximated fair value as of 
the balance sheet dates, due to the short period oftime to maturity. Accounts receivable and accounts payable are stated at 
their carrying value, which approximates fair value due to the short time to the expected receipt or payment. The revolving line 
of credit and long-term debt are stated at tb.e carrying value as the stated interest rate approximates market rates currently 
available to the Company. As of September 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and 20ll, the Company has not elected the fair 
value option for any fmancial assets and liabilities for which such an election would have been permitted. 
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Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis in the consolidated balance sheets are categorized based upon 
the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to measure their fair values. Fair value is defined as the exchange price 
that would be received for an asset or an exit price that would be paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. 
Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and m in imize the use of 
unobservable inputs. The authoritative guidance on fair value measurements establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy for 
disclosure of fair value measurements as follows: 

Level J- Inputs arc unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date. 

l.evel TT - Inputs are observable, unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, unadjusted 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable 
or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full tenn ofthe related assets or liabilities; and 

Level m- Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market data for the related assets or liabilities. 

11te categorization of a fmancial instrument within the valuation hierarchy ts based upon the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement. Financial insttuments consist of Level I and Levelll assets and liabilities. Level I 
assets include highly liquid money market funds that are included in cash and cash equivalents. Level ll liabilities include 
derivative instruments. The Company does not have any Level ill assets or liabilities. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

All highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be casb 
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and money market accouttts. Interest is accrued as earned. 

Accounts Receivable and A.llowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Accounts receivable are recorded at their invoiced amount, net of any allowance for doubtful accounts and reserve for sales 
returns, and do not bear interest. Accounts receivable from wholesale transactions are recorded at their outstanding unpaid 
principal balances. Accounts receivable from e-commerce transactions consist of amounts from credit cards b illed for which 
payment has not been received. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to reserve for potentially 
uncollectible accounts, which is recorded based upou a detailed review of all outstanding invoices, including the number of 
days that receivables are outstanding, historical and expected loss patterns and an evaluation of the potential risk associated 
with delinquent accounts. 
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Concentrations of Revenue and Accounts Receivable 

Significant customers are those which represent 10% or more of the revenues for each period presented or gross accounts 
receivable balance at each balance sheet date. For each significant customer, revenue as a percentage of total revenues and 
accounts receivable as a percentage of gross accounts receivable are as follows: 

Customers 
Customer A 
CustomerB 
Customer C 
CustomerD 
CustomerE 

1ft Less than 1 0% 

Customers 
Customer A 
CustomerB 

* Less than 1 0% 

Derivative Instruments 

Nine Months Ended 
Percentage of Revenues 

Year Ended December 31, 
September l8, September 29. 2010 

2013 2012 2012 As Restated 
(Unaudited) 

11% 
10% 
12% 

* 
* 

l4% 18% I6% 11% 
14% 16% 24% 34% 
13% 12% 12% * 

* * * 19% 
(2% * * * 

Percentage of Accounts Receivable 
As of September 28, As of December 31, 

2013 2012 2011 
(Unaudited) 

14% 
23% 

28% 
27% 

19% 
35% 

The Company uses derivatives to partially offset its business exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. The Compaey may 
enter into foreign currency forward and option contracts to offset some of the foreign exchange risk on expected future cash 
flows on certain operating expenses. These insfruments are not entered into for speculative purposes and the Company does 
not seek to qualify for hedge accounting. 

AU derivative instruments are recorded at fair value on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The notional amounts 
of the Company's outstanding derivative instruments associated with outstanding or unsettled derivative instruments as of 
September 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012 were $10.0 million and $8.8 million and the fair value of the derivative liabilities 
was $0.6 million and $0.2 million. Derivative liabilities include foreign currency forward and option contracts which are 
measured using observable quoted prices for similar instruments. There were no derivative instruments for the year ended and 
as of December 31, 2011 and for the nine months ended and as of September 29, 201 2. The gain/loss recognized in other 
expense, net for foreign currency forward and option contracts instruments was not significant during the year ended 
December 31, 2012. For the nine months ended September 28, 2013, the loss recognized in other expense net for foreign 
currency forward and option contracts was $0.4 million. These amounts represent the net gain or loss on the derivative 
instruments and do not include changes in the related exposures, which generally offset a portion of the gain or 
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loss on the derivative contracts. Counterparties to these instruments are major banking institutions with credit ratings of 
investment grade or better and no collateral is required. Management believes the risk of incllll'ing any losses on these 
derivative instruments related to credit risk is remote. 

Inventories, net 

Inventol'ies consist primarily of fmished goods and related component parts, and arc stated at the lower of standard cost (which 
approximates actual cost on a fHSt-in, first-out basis) or market value (estimated net realizable value). TI1e Company maintains 
an inventory allowance for returned goods, slow-moving and unused inventories based on the historical trend and estimates. 
Inventory write-downs, once established, are not reversed as they establish a new cost basis for the inventory. Tnventory write­
downs are included as a component of cost of revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. lnven!ory 
write-downs for the pcl'iods presented had been insignificant. 

Property and Equipment, net 

Property and equipment, net including leasehold improvements, are stated at cost Jess accumulated depreciation and 
amortization. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, whiclt 
range from two to five years. Repairs and maintenance expenditures are expensed as incurred. 

Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the 
respective assets or the property lease tenns, which range up to five years. Upon the retirement or disposition of property and 
equipment, the related costs and accumulated depreciation is removed and any related gain or Joss is recorded in the 
consolidated statements of operations. 

I ntangible Assets 

Intangible assets consist of identifiable intangible assets, including customer relationships and non-compete agreements, 
resulting from the Company's acquisition of Lygo in October 2012. Intangible assets are recorded at their initial fair value, net 
of accwnulated amortization . The Company amortizes intangible assets that are subject to amortization over their estimated 
useful life based on economic beuefit. which range from two to thirteen years. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

The carrying amounts of long-Jived assets, including property and equipment and intangible assets subject to depreciation Rnd 
amortization, are periodically reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate tl1at the carrying 
value of these assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of these assets is measured by comparison of the carrying amount 
of each asset to the future undiscounted cash flows the asset is expected to generate. If the asset is considered to be impaired, 
the amount of any impairment is measured as the difference between the canying value and the fair value ofthe impaired 
asset. No impairment of long-lived assets was identified for any of the periods presented. 

Revenue Recognition and Soles Return Reserves 

Net revenue consists primarily ofreve1111e fi·om the sale of gaming headsets and accessories to wholesalers, retailers and to a 
lesser extent, on-line customers. The Company recognizes tevenue when persuasive evidence of 
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an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the sales price is ftxed or determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. 
Product is considered delivered to the customer once it bas been shipped and title and risk of loss have been transferred. Net 
revenue for on-line purchases are recognized when products are shipped from the Company's distribution facilities. 

Provisions for sales discounts, product returns and price adjustments are recorded as a reduction of revenue. These revenue 
reductions are established by the Company based upon management' s best estimates at the time of sale following the historical 
trend, adjusted to reflect known changes in the factors that impact such reserves and allowances, and the tenns of agreements 
with customers. 

Revenue is recognized net of sales taxes collected from customers and subsequently remitted to governmental authorities. 

Cost of Revenues 

Cost of revenues primarily consists of expenses from the manufacturing of the Company's products. Cost of revenues also 
consists of personnel costs and facility costs. 

Shipping and Handling 

Freight charges billed to customers are included in net revenue and the related freight costs are included in cost of revenues in 
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 

Product Warranty Obligations 

The Company provides for product warranties in accordance with the contract tetms given to various customers by accruing 
estimated warranty costs at the time of revenue recognition. Warranties are generally fulfilled by replacing defective products 
with new products. 

Advertising Costs 

Advertising costs are expensed to selling and marketing expenses as incurred in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations. Advertising costs were $3.4 million, $1.7 miiJion, $8.2 million, $4.3 million and $0.5 million for the nine months 
ended September 28,2013 and September 29,2012 and for the years ended December 31, 2012,2011 and 2010. 

Product Development 

Development costs incurred in the research and development of new products and enhancements to existing products are 
charged to expense as incurred. Development costs include personnel costs and third-party development and programming 
costs, localization costs incurred to translate software for international markets and in-process research and development. Such 
costs related to product development are expensed as incurred until the point that technological feasibility is reached, which 
for the Company's products, is generally shortly before the products are released to manufacturing. 
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Software Development Costs 

Software development costs not qualifying for capitalization are expensed as incurred. The Company capitalizes software 
development costs when the product is available fof general release to customers. Capitalized costs are amortized on a 
product-by-product basis, as the greater ofthe ratio of current gross revenues for a product to the total of current and future 
gross revenues for tbe product or tbe straight-line amortization over the estimated useful life of the product (generally tlu-ee 
years). Unamortized capitalized software development costs determined to be in excess of the net realizable value of the 
product is expensed immediately. The Company did not incur significant capitalized software development costs for any of the 
periods presented. 

The Company capitalizes costs iucurred during the application development stage relating to the development of its websites 
and computer software developed or purchased for intemal use and bas been insignificant to date. Costs related to preliminary 
project activities and post-implementation activities are expensed as incurred. Once placed into service, the Company 
anticipates amortizing these costs over a period of three years. Total costs incu11ed to date during the application development 
stage have been insignificant. 

Business Transaction Costs 

For the nine months ended September 28,2013, the Company incurred business transaction costs associated with the proposed 
merger with Parametric in the amount of$2.3 million. Por the year ended December 31, 2012, business tran.saction costs of 
$0.3 million consist of acquisition-related costs related to the Company's Lygo acquisition. For the year ended December 31, 
2011, business transaction costs consists of performance bonuses related to the recapitalization. For the year ended 
December 31, 2010, business transaction costs consist of $4.0 million in legal and professional fees and $10.4 million in 
performance bonuses rel ated to the recapitalization. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

Compensation costs related to stock options and restricted stock grants are calculated based on the fair value of the stock-based 
awards on the date of grant, net of estimated forfeitures. The grant date fair value of awards is determined using tbe Black­
Scholes option-pricing model and the related stock-based compensation is recognized on a straight-line basis, over the period 
in which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award, which is generally four years. 

For stock-based awards issued to non-employees, including consultants, compensation expense is based on the fair value of the 
awards calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model over the service performance period. The fair value of options 
granted to non-employees for each reporting period is re-measured over the vesting period and recognized as an expense over 
the period the services are received. 

Income Taxes 

The Company accounts for income ta.~es using the asset and liability approach to record deferred taxes. Deferred income tax 
assets represent temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets 
and liabilities that will result in deductible amounts in future years. The measurement of current and deferred tax ass~:ts and 
liabilities is based on provisions of enacted tax laws; the effects of changes in tax laws are not anticipated. Based on estimates, 
tbe carrying value of the Company's deferred tax assets assumes 
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